Public Document Pack

DISTRICT COUNCIL
NORTH OXFORDSHIRE

Committee: Executive

Date: Monday 2 September 2013

Time: 6.30 pm

Venue Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, OX15 4AA

Membership

Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman) Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman)

Councillor Ken Atack Councillor Norman Bolster

Councillor John Donaldson Councillor Michael Gibbard

Councillor Tony liott Councillor Nigel Morris

Councillor D M Pickford Councillor Nicholas Turner
AGENDA

1. Apologies for Absence

2. Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare any interest and the nature of that interest that they
may have in any of the items under consideration at this meeting.

3. Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting
The Chairman to report on any requests to submit petitions or to address the
meeting.

4, Urgent Business

The Chairman to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent business
being admitted to the agenda.

Cherwell District Council, Bodicote House, Bodicote, Banbury, Oxfordshire, OX15 4AA
www.cherwell.gov.uk




Minutes (Pages 1-10)

To confirm as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 1 July 2013.

Strategy and Policy

High Speed 2 (HS2) Update (Pages 11 -72) 6.35pm
Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy

Summary

To receive an update on the High Speed Rail - HS2 scheme and Cherwell District.
Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1)  To note the process that has been introduced by HS2 Ltd for Safeguarding.
(2) To note the CDC response to the HS2 Environmental Statement.

(83) To note the on-going Legal Challenge to the HS2 scheme and next steps.
District Wide Programme of Article 4 Directions to Protect Heritage Interest
(Pages 73 - 100) 6.45pm
Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy

Summary

To consider the introduction of a District wide programme of Article 4 Directions to
preserve the Character and Appearance of Areas with Heritage Significance.

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1)  To approve the process of rolling-out a programme of Article 4 Directions.
Funding Provision for Enforcement Action in Connection with Work-in-default
and with Bringing Empty Homes Back into Use (Pages 101 - 106) 6.55pm
Report of Head of Regeneration and Housing

Summary

To seek support in principle for the establishment, through the annual budget
setting process, of a capital budget against which the Housing and Regeneration
Service can draw when taking enforcement action to bring empty homes back into

use, or when needing to undertake Works-in-Default following the failure of a notice
recipient to comply with an enforcement notice requiring remedial works.



10.

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1)  To support the establishment of a capital budget, through the annual budget
setting process for 2014-15, and in successive years, that will enable
enforcement powers delegated to the Head of Regeneration to be utilised

effectively, and without the need for the necessary funding to be sought
separately in each particular case.

Service Delivery and Innovation

South West Bicester Sports Village Progress Update 7.05pm
(Pages 107 - 112)

Report of Head of Community Services

Summary

To give Members a progress report on the Bicester Sports Village project.
Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1)  To note the progress on the construction of Phase 1 (grass pitches, cycle

track and landscaping) and the progress on the procurement process for
Phase 2 (design and construction of a pavilion and car park).

Value for Money and Performance

Performance Management Framework 2013/14 First Quarter Performance
Report (Pages 113 - 144) 7.15pm

Report of Head of Transformation and Corporate Performance Manager
Summary

This report covers the Council’s performance for the period 01 April to 30 June 2013
as measured through the Performance Management Framework.

Recommendations
The Executive is recommended:
(1)  To note the many achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3.

(2) To identify any performance related matters for review or consideration in
future reports identified in paragraph 1.4.

(3) To note progress on issues raised in the Quarter two report highlighted in
paragraph 1.5.



11.  Quarter 1 2013/14 Finance and Procurement Report (Pages 145 - 160) 7.25pm
Head of Finance and Procurement
Summary
This report summarises the Council’'s Revenue and Capital performance for the first
3 months of the financial year 2013/14 and projections for the full 2013/14 period.
These are measured by the budget monitoring function and reported via the
Performance Management Framework (PMF) informing the 2013/14 budget
process currently underway.
To receive information on treasury management performance and compliance with
treasury management policy during 2013/14 as required by the Treasury
Management Code of Practice.
Recommendations
The Executive is recommended:

(1)  To note the projected revenue & capital position at June 2013.

(2) To note the quarter 1 (Q1) performance against the 2013/14 investment
strategy and the financial returns from the two funds.

(3) To note the contents and the progress against the Corporate Procurement
Action Plan (detailed in Appendix 1) and the Procurement savings achieved
at June 2013 (detailed in Appendix 2).

Urgent Business

12. Urgent Business

Any other items which the Chairman has decided is urgent.

(Meeting scheduled to close at 7.35pm)

Information about this Agenda

Apologies for Absence

Apologies for absence should be notified to
democracy@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk or 01295 221589 prior to the start of the
meeting.

Declarations of Interest

Members are asked to declare interests at item 2 on the agenda or if arriving after the
start of the meeting, at the start of the relevant agenda item.



Local Government and Finance Act 1992 — Budget Setting, Contracts &
Supplementary Estimates

Members are reminded that any member who is two months in arrears with Council Tax
must declare the fact and may speak but not vote on any decision which involves budget

setting, extending or agreeing contracts or incurring expenditure not provided for in the
agreed budget for a given year and could affect calculations on the level of Council Tax.

Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information)
(England) Regulations 2012

This agenda constitutes the 5 day notice required by Regulation 5 of the Local Authorities
(Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England) Regulations
2012 in terms of the intention to consider an item of business in private.

Evacuation Procedure

When the continuous alarm sounds you must evacuate the building by the nearest
available fire exit. Members and visitors should proceed to the car park as directed by
Democratic Services staff and await further instructions.

Access to Meetings

If you have any special requirements (such as a large print version of these papers or
special access facilities) please contact the officer named below, giving as much notice as
possible before the meeting.

Mobile Phones

Please ensure that any device is switched to silent operation or switched off.

Queries Regarding this Agenda

Please contact Natasha Clark, Democratic and Elections
natasha.clark@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk, 01295 221589

Sue Smith
Chief Executive

Published on Thursday 22 August 2013



This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda ltem 5

Cherwell District Council
Executive

Minutes of a meeting of the Executive held at Bodicote House, Bodicote,
Banbury, OX15 4AA, on 1 July 2013 at 6.30 pm

Present: Councillor Barry Wood (Chairman), Leader of the Council
Councillor G A Reynolds (Vice-Chairman), Deputy Leader of
the Council

Councillor Norman Bolster, Lead Member for Estates and the
Economy

Councillor John Donaldson, Lead Member for Banbury Brighter
Futures

Councillor Michael Gibbard, Lead Member for Planning
Councillor Tony llott, Lead Member for Public Protections
Councillor D M Pickford, Lead Member for Housing

Councillor Nicholas Turner, Lead Member for Performance and
Customers

Also Councillor Sean Woodcock, Leader of the Labour Group
Present:

Apologies Councillor Ken Atack, Lead Member for Financial Management

for Councillor Nigel Morris, Lead Member for Clean and Green
absence: Councillor Tim Emptage, Leader of the Liberal Democrat Group
Officers: Sue Smith, Chief Executive

Calvin Bell, Director of Development

Kevin Lane, Head of Law and Governance / Monitoring Officer
Adrian Colwell, Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy (for
agenda items 8 and 10)

Jo Pitman, Head of Transformation (for agenda Item 16)

Nicola Jackson, Corporate Finance Manager

Ed Potter, Head of Environmental Services (for agenda items 9 and
15)

Helen Town, Strategic Housing Officer (for agenda items 6 and 7)
Marianne North, Housing Needs Manager (for agenda item 7)
Natasha Clark, Team Leader, Democratic and Elections

14 Declarations of Interest

Members declared interests in the following agenda items:

15 Petitions and Requests to Address the Meeting
Page 1



16

17

18

19

Executive - 1 July 2013

There were no petitions or requests to address the meeting.

Urgent Business

There were no items of urgent business.

Minutes

The minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2013 were agreed as a correct

record and signed by the Chairman.

Graven Hill Acquisition Update

The Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report which sought

consideration of the next steps towards the acquisition of Graven Hill

Executive and provided an update on the progress being made with the

acquisition of Graven Hill.

Resolved

(1)  That Full Council be recommended to add the acquisition and
redevelopment of Graven Hill and prudential borrowing into the Policy
Framework and make available the capital sums required as part of the
budget.

Reasons

To ensure that the Council is following correct procedures in making key
decisions

Options
Option One: To approve the recommendation

Option Two: To reject the recommendation

Cherwell Housing Strategy and Tenancy Strategy 2012-17

The Head of Head of Regeneration and Housing submitted a report which
provided an update on the Housing Strategy 2012-17 and Tenancy Strategy
2012-17.

In introducing the report, the Lead Member for Housing report on the work
being done in the District by the council and partners to deliver affordable
housing, housing related support and to prevent homelessness and improve
housing standards.

Page 2



20

Executive - 1 July 2013

Housing Services had enabled the delivery of 113 new affordable homes in
2012/13 by supporting Registered Provider's (RP’s) and working with
planners and developers and the Council’s ‘Build’ Programme had delivered 7
refurbished properties for single people.

The Lead Member for Housing explained that the Welfare Reform Act 2012
which had introduced major changes to the social welfare system would mean
a fundamental change for housing organisations and for those receiving
benefit. In terms of the social sector size criteria, which affected over 900
social tenancies in Cherwell, the Council had worked with Registered
Providers to minimise the effects by changing the priority for downsizers in the
Allocations Policy, by the use of Discretionary Housing Payments and through
the development programme providing a greater number of one and two
bedroom homes. Officers were working with Sanctuary Housing to monitor the
impact.

Resolved
(1)  That the contents of the report and progress to date in delivering the
Council’s Housing Strategy and the Council’s Tenancy Strategy be

noted.

(2)  That officers be requested to submit a further update in twelve months’
time.

Reasons

The Council’s Housing Strategy contains six main priorities that the Council
identified it would deliver over the period of the Strategy.

The Council’s Tenancy Strategy provides guidance for Registered Providers
operating in the Cherwell area.

Options

None

Criteria for Local Heritage Assets Register

The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy submitted a report which
sought consideration of the criteria for a District wide Local Heritage Assets
Register.

Resolved

(1)  That the criteria for the selection of Local Heritage Assets be approved.
Reasons

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local authorities to
ensure that local heritage is protected. This is done by understanding local

heritage assets and managing change to ensure that the significance is not
harmed. The criteria for assessing Local Heritage Assets is therefore

Page 3



21

Executive - 1 July 2013

important to ensure that local heritage assets are appropriately managed and
their significance is not harmed. The criteria from Cherwell District Council will
help provide long term protection for the heritage of the District.

Options

Option One: To accept the document as criteria and process for the purposes
of planning.

Option Two: To decline the document as criteria and process for the purposes
of planning.

Carbon Management

The Head of Environmental Services submitted a report which sought
consideration of the progress the Council’s Low Carbon Management Plan
and well as other low carbon related projects.

Resolved

(1)  That the achievements of the ongoing delivery of the Carbon
Management Plan be noted.

(2)  That the success of the investment in solar panels on key buildings be
noted.

(3) That the results of the Energy & Environment Survey be
acknowledged.

(4)  That Cherwell’s sign up to the national Climate Local Commitment be
supported.

Reasons

The Low Carbon Environmental Strategy is key to reducing energy costs and
emissions along with the Carbon Management Plan

The work already achieved by the Use of Natural Resources Group needs to
continue to deliver the Carbon Management Plan.

Key to the internal and external environmental work of the council is to
understand residents’ opinions and expectations regarding climate change
and energy efficiency and to engage with them.

Options

Option One: To approve the forward plan for the Use of Natural Resources
Group for 2013/14, to note the results of the Energy & Environment Survey
and to support Climate Local

Option Two: To reject either all or some of the proposals under Option One

Page 4



22

Executive - 1 July 2013

Option Three: To ask officers to modify either all or some of the proposals
under Option One

Enabling Business Investment in Cherwell

The Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy submitted a report which
sought consideration of how to use recent research to enable business
investment in Cherwell.

In introducing the report, the Lead Member for Estates and the Economy
explained that independent research had been undertaken across England,
the results of which could contribute towards the planning and economic
development objectives of the Council.

Local Futures’ Place Profiles were computer-generated reports that provided
a high-level analysis of an area and told a ‘story of place’. The reports
provided a quick, easy to understand and yet comprehensive analysis of an
area in relation to a national index by using standard data sources. Cherwell
had been examined in terms of its attractiveness to inward investors and
businesses considering the District as a location.

The overall analysis revealed that, despite some areas of weakness, Cherwell
performed extremely well overall and had the highest Business Location Index
when compared to surrounding districts and compared very strongly at an

English level. Cherwell ranked 1

1™ out of all 325 local authority areas in

England.

Resolved

(5)

(7)

That agreement be given to share this research and engage with
members of the Cherwell-M40 Investment Partnership (CHIP) to
identify competitor locations and points of Cherwell’'s competitive
advantage to form the basis of a promotional campaign to strengthen
the economic base of the District and attract inward investment and
this should also assist the retention of local SMEs and support them to
prosper, all of which will contribute to growth in business rates and the
vitality of Cherwell.

That new District- wide promotional material to secure new investment
including Investor Profiles for our portfolio of major sites, setting out
location, characteristics of the population, local demographics etc. be
commissioned.

That agreement be given for Cherwell District Council to lead new
initiatives in 2013/14 including a bulletin for businesses to promote
investment, and a District wide business forum to enhance the
networks the loD, FSB and local Chambers within the District as a
whole.

Reasons

Page 5



23

24

Executive - 1 July 2013

The Cherwell Economic Development Strategy (2011-16), adopted by both
the District Council and the Local Strategic Partnership, identifies the
importance of a strong and resilient economy for the future of north
Oxfordshire. By leading and enabling investment in three broad areas: people,
business and place, specific commitment was given to take action on the
following inter-related themes:

a) Promote business & cluster development

b) Attract new investment

c) Promote employment sites & premises

Options

Option One: To take no action and retain the funding for other purposes.
Option Two: To implement the plans described in the recommendations.
Option Three: To alter and implement the plans described in the
recommendations.

Joint Arrangements Steering Group (CDC/SNC/SDC) Terms of Reference
The Head of Law and Governance submitted a report which sought
agreement to adopt formal terms of reference for the “three way” Joint
Arrangements Steering Group involving members and officers of Cherwell
District Council, South Northamptonshire and Stratford on Avon.

Resolved

(8) That the terms of reference for the “three way” Joint Arrangements
Steering Group (JASG) be adopted.

Reasons

As discussions on shared working with SDC bear fruit and significant progress
is made towards recommended implementation of proposals it is important to
define the role and responsibilities of the “three way” JASG in a way which is
consistent with the existing terms of reference for the SNC/CDC JASG.
Options

Option One: To approve the recommendation.

Option Two: To amend the proposed terms of reference, but this is not
recommended as they have the support of all three sets of Council members

on the body and are consistent with the existing terms of reference for the
CDC/SNC JASG.

Transformation Challenge Award

Page 6



25

26

Executive - 1 July 2013

The Head of Finance and Procurement submitted a report which outlined
proposals for bidding against the transformation challenge award and detailed
the process and timetable for completion.

Resolved

(1)  That the contents of the report and the purpose of the transformation
challenge award be noted.

(2) That the areas suggested for collaboration with South
Northamptonshire and Stratford upon Avon Councils be endorsed.

(3)  That authority be delegated to the Director of Resources in consultation
with the Head of Finance and Procurement and the Leader of the
Council to finalise submissions ahead of the deadline date of 14 July
2013.

Reasons

Through the Transformation Challenge Award the Government is making
funding available to support local authorities that are at the cutting edge of
innovation for service transformation so that they are going further and faster
in re-engineering service delivery and achieving efficiency savings.

The 3 way Joint Arrangements Steering Group has recommended areas the 3
councils could bid for funds together and independently. In order to satisfy the
bidding criteria we need to be able to evidence that the areas for collaboration
have political support and the JASG is asking the Executive to confirm this
support.

Options

Option One: Implement as per recommendations

Option Two: To approve or reject the recommendations above or request that
Officers provide additional information.

Exclusion of the Press and Public

Resolved

That, in accordance with Section 100A(4) of Local Government Act 1972, the
press and public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of
business, on the grounds that they could involve the likely disclosure of
exempt information as defined in paragraphs 1, 2, 3 and 4 of Schedule 12A of
that Act.

Shared Services - Environmental Services

The Head of Environmental Services submitted an exempt report which
sought approval of the implementation of Stage 1 of a shared service covering

Page 7



27

Executive - 1 July 2013

Environmental Services in Cherwell District Council and South
Northamptonshire Council.

Resolved

(9)  That the implementation of Stage 1 of a shared service covering some
elements of Environmental Services be approved.

(10) That it be noted that a report covering Stage 2 of a shared service will
come forward later in the financial year.

Reasons

This report is presented to provide information on Stage 1 of a shared service.
The impact on staff is very low and the savings proposed are achievable and
some need to be delivered in 2013/14.

Stage 2 business case will be developed later during 2013.

Options

Option One: To approve the implementation of the shared service.

Option Two: To not approve the implementation of the shared service.

Option Three: Investigate other options

Proposal for a Shared Human Resources Service with South
Northamptonshire District Council and a Collaborative Approach to the
Delivery of HR Services with Stratford On Avon District Council

The Head of Transformation submitted an exempt report which sought
consideration of the proposal for a shared Human Resources service with
South Northamptonshire District Council and a Collaborative Approach to the
Delivery of HR Services with Stratford on Avon District Council

Resolved

(11) That the responses to the consultation process with the affected staff
and trade union representatives be noted.

(12) That the approval of the Personnel Committee of the staffing aspects in
relation to the proposal for a Shared HR Service with SNC be noted.

(13) That the proposal to work in collaboration with Stratford on Avon
District Council in relation to the delivery of HR Services be approved.

(14) That the proposed final business case to share an HR Service between
CDC and SNC be approved and implemented, subject to similar
approval by SNC Cabinet and Full Council.

Reasons

Page 8



Executive - 1 July 2013

The introduction of a shared HR Service will continue to build upon the
Shared Service model between CDC and SNC, whilst supporting the principle
of collaborative working with SDC.

It will provide increased resilience to all partners and ensure that specialisms
and best practice can be developed internally to be shared across all
partners.

It will deliver service improvements, increase efficiency, avoid duplication and
deliver financial savings for CDC.

Options
Option One: To reject the proposal meaning the two services continue to
operate independently. This would not deliver the benefits or financial savings

to CDC identified in the business case.

Option Two: Approve the business case as attached

The meeting ended at 7.20 pm

Chairman:

Date:

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



Agenda ltem 6

Executive
High Speed 2 (HS2) Update
2 September 2013
Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To receive an update on the High Speed Rail - HS2 scheme and Cherwell District.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:
(1) To note the process that has been introduced by HS2 Ltd for Safeguarding.
(2) To note the CDC response to the HS2 Environmental Statement.

(3) To note the on-going Legal Challenge to the HS2 scheme and next steps.

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1 The update report provides an overview of how the Safeguarding process
will work in relation to the HS2 scheme, the submission of the Cherwell
response to the Environmental Assessment and the on-going legal
challenges to the HS2 scheme. The detailed, extensive response to the
Environmental Assessment forms the basis for the enhanced mitigation that
will be sought in those areas most affected by the scheme.

Proposals

1.2 Details of the issues to be considered are set out in the background
information.

Conclusion

1.3 Cherwell District Council continues to take appropriate steps to respond to the
HS2 scheme. This includes supporting legal challenge when necessary and
engaging directly with HS2 Ltd to secure the best possible mitigation for the
District should the scheme be approved by Parliament.

Page 11



Background Information

21

2.2

2.3

2.4

2.5

Background

High Speed Two (HS2) is a scheme advocated by the UK Government to deliver
enhanced rail capacity and connectivity between Britain’s major conurbations. The
HS2 Y’ network aims to provide direct, high capacity, high speed links between
London, Birmingham, Leeds and Manchester. Direct links also planned to Heathrow
Airport and to the Continent via the existing HS1 (Channel Tunnel Rail Link) line.

Delivery of HS2

High Speed Two (HS2) Ltd is a company wholly owned by the Department for
Transport charged with the development and promotion of the high speed rail project
on behalf of the Government.

HS2 Ltd is currently progressing Phase One of the project, including engineering,
design and environmental work to allow the Government to ‘deposit’ a Hybrid Bill in
Parliament by the end of 2013. This Bill will seek powers to construct and operate
Phase One, with anticipated construction commencing in 2017 and trains operating
from 2026.

The Secretary of State for Transport announced a consultation on preferred route for
Phase Two to Leeds and Manchester in July 2013.

Delivery of HS2: developing the route

HS2 Ltd has appointed specialist teams of consultants, engineers and architects to
design route and create indicative station layouts. Significant environmental effects
have been identified and mitigation measures proposed.

A number of formal consultations have taken place, including the draft Environment
Statement (Spring 2013), Property & Compensation proposals & Safeguarding
(October 25th 2012 to 31st January 2013). Consultation also sought views on the
proposed approach to safeguarding Phase One, included draft directions that would
be issued to Local Planning Authorities.

DfT: Safeguarding Directions — 9" July 2013

Safeguarding Directions were issued to Local Planning Authorities (LPA) including
Cherwell on 9 July 2013.

Safeguarding is a long established town planning mechanism that protects large-
scale infrastructure projects, such as railways and motorways, from developments
that could conflict with them.

As a result of the Safeguarding Direction being issued, LPAs are now required to
consult HS2 Ltd from that “commencement date” before determining certain planning
applications that fall within the safeguarded area. The LPA has no discretion on
these issues so Cherwell District Council is required to follow the new rules and
procedures.

Notice to property owners

HS2 Ltd has written to all property owners within surface and sub-surface areas.
Letters were also sent to all owners who were within a draft safeguarded area but are

Page 12



2.6

2.7

not within actual safeguarding and are unlikely to be in the future. The Directions
contain plans showing limits of the safeguarded area, areas of surface interest
(AOSI), the direction wording (ie the Statutory Instrument) and the duties on the local
planning authorities (LPAs)

Accompanying the Direction are guidance notes to LPAs (includes local land charge
searches) and provisions on blight and purchase notices.

Example Plan

Legend

[ LIy of Lang sutiect 20 Safeguaraing Directen Areas of Surface ot | ] Boreugh / Duxct Bounaanes

Documents received by each Local Planning Authority from HS2 Ltd include:

Maps relevant to the LPA

GIS shapefile

Safeguarding directions

HS2 Ltd report on consultation

Government response to consultation

Guidance for LPAs

Guide to claiming compensation

Impact assessment

Document setting out changes to maps following consultation

These documents are available for download from the CDC Website.

Implications for Planning Applications.

These Safeguarding Directions apply to certain planning applications (including those
not finally determined) within the relevant zone. HS2 Ltd may comment on a planning
application where there is a:

Conflict with the construction and/or the operation of HS2;
Requirement to protect land from potential impacts of the construction and/or
operation of HS2;

Page 13



2.8

2.9

2.10

2.11

e Opportunity to provide for joint schemes, e.g. major developments with the
proposed stations.

The responsibilities of Local Planning Authorities such as Cherwell are:

o To apply criteria for referral to HS2 at the registration of planning applications
stage.

e To consider whether the proposal falls ‘In or out of the AOSI’ and to consider
possible exemptions.

e To consider hard copy or electronic consultation.

e That the role of the case officer is restricted, in that they must not determine
an application before the expiry of the consultation period with HS2 Ltd.

e To apply HS2 Ltd’s advice or refer the application to the Secretary of State
before determination.

e To take account of the HS2 Safeguarded area within Planning and Local
Land Charge Registers

The responsibilities of HS2 Ltd fall within three types of response:-
1. No objection
2. Conditions — standard or bespoke
3. Recommendation of refusal

HS2 Ltd aim to respond within 21 days, with a dedicated webpage and planning
mailbox for referring applications by email.

Further Information is available from www.hs2.org.uk/safeguarding

Response to draft Environmental Assessment - July 11th 2013

Cherwell District Council (CDC) submitted a major response to the consultation on
the HS2 Draft Environmental Statement on 10" July. The response was approved for
submission by the Portfolio Holder for Planning, Councillor Gibbard. The response is
attached as Appendix A.

CDC re-iterated a number of points that have been made in previous submissions, by
ourselves and others, to reinforce those areas where we still feel that insufficient
preparation work and research has been done, such as on transport impacts, local
economic impacts, conservation and noise issues.

CDC has sought local community views and drawn on expertise from neighbouring
authorities within the 51M consortium in a few specialist areas such as ecology to
ensure that our response is both comprehensive and complimentary.

The document is downloadable from -
http://www.cherwell.gov.uk/HighSpeed2RailLink.htm

Response to High Court Challenge — 24th July 2013

On 24th July the Court of Appeal dismissed the latest appeal against the HS2
scheme.

Action was brought against the Department for Transport’s decision to progress with
HS2 by a group of 15 local authorities from the 51M alliance; HS2 Action Alliance
and Heathrow Hub Limited.

The local authorities have asked for permission to appeal to the Supreme Court, the

Page 14



212
2.13

2.14

2.15

highest court in the UK.

The Supreme Court appeal will be brought on the ground that a full Strategic
Environmental Assessment (SEA) should have been carried out to assess the effect
on the environment of both HS2 and its alternatives. An additional and related ground
is that the Hybrid Bill process is incompatible with another aspect of European law,
the Environmental Impact Assessment Directive.

Cherwell District Council is a party to the appeal but on the basis that no additional
costs fall on the authority as a result of its participation. This was also the stance
taken by the Council at the Court of Appeal stage. The appeal hearing is being
expedited and it is currently estimated to be heard in October.

Next Steps

CDC has begun preparing detailed mitigation proposals for where the preferred route
passes through Cherwell, such as additional bunds, planting and screening to reduce
the impacts of noise and visual impacts. There will be close liaison with community in
shaping these proposals.

CDC plans to engage Parliamentary Agents jointly with South Northants Council to
coordinate responses to Hybrid Bill when tabled in December 2013. CDC anticipates
being called to give evidence on issues facing the District from the route. As
Parliament can change much about the HS2 scheme, the nature of the mitigation
sought by CDC stands to be important and will be considered during the passage of
the Hybrid Bill

The government is currently aiming to try to get the Hybrid Bill through Parliament
before the General Election is held in May 2015. The passage of the London Cross
Rail Hybrid Bill took 91 Parliamentary days which suggests that the proposed
Parliamentary Bill timetable looks very challenging to secure, a point made recently
by the Public Accounts Committee.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

3.1
3.2

To note the Safeguarding Direction. This is now in force.

To note the steps taken in response to the Environmental Statement, the on-
going legal challenge and the preparation of a detailed mitigation strategy in
time for the consideration by Parliament of the Hybrid Bill.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is
believed to be the best way forward

Option One To note the recommendations relating to CDC actions and
discretion.

Option Two To reject those recommendations

Option Three To propose an alternative approach.

Page 15



Consultations

Oxfordshire County
Council, South
Northants Council
and 51M

Extensive discussions on the nature and potential impacts
of High Speed Rail on landscapes.

Implications

Financial: The cost of preparing the response to the HS2
Environmental Statement was met from existing
resources.
Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Head of Finance.
0300 0030106

Legal: As indicated in the report the Council remains a party to

Risk Management:

Wards Affected

the on-going appeal but with immunity from any adverse
costs consequences should it be unsuccessful. The
proceedings are being conducted by external solicitors
procured on behalf of the 51M authorities.

Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law and
Governance, 0300 0030107

There are major implications for the District from the DfT
proposals, which Cherwell Council is working to address.

Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate
Performance Manager, 0300 0030113.

Fringford

Corporate Plan Themes

A Cleaner, Greener Cherwell

Lead Member

Councillor Gibbard

Lead Member for Planning

Document Information

Appendix No

Title

Appendix A

Response to draft Environmental Assessment - July 11th 2013

Background Papers

None

Report Author Adrian Colwell, Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy
Contact 03000030110
Information

Adrian.colwell@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Page 16




Cherwell District Council

Formal Response to DfT Consultation on:

HS2 Draft Environmental Statement
(May 2013)

8th July 2013

Page 17



CONTENTS: Page

1. Executive Summary 4
2. Response to Volume 1 8

3. Response to Volume 2: CFA Report 14 15
4. Response to the Draft Code of Construction 95
5. Conclusion 100
6. Contacts

Page 18



Cherwell District Councils formal response to the above consultation is in five
sections.

1. Executive Summary
2. Response to Volume 1: Introduction to the Draft ES

3. Response to Volume 2: Community Forum Area Report 14 (Newton
Purcell to Brackley)

4. Response to the Draft Code of Construction
5. Conclusion

Within sections 2, 3 and 4 there is an opening section reiterating a number of
points made by CDC previously in our response to the Consultation on the
HS2 White Paper (Spring 2011). These are repeated as we do not consider
that they have received sufficient consideration in later published material.
Our formal response to the published consultation documents then follows
within each section.

Page 19



1. Executive Summary: The anticipated impact on Cherwell District

Cherwell District Council is extremely concerned that the Draft Environmental
Statement is just one-tenth of the size of the anticipated final ES
(approximately 5000 and 50,000 pages respectively). Further, that the
majority of the critical baseline data, on which to assess actual impacts is
omitted from the Draft. It is therefore extremely difficult to comment on the
anticipated end result without this foundation of baseline data.

To add to these facts, there will not be an opportunity to respond to the final
document other than through petitioning, an action which is simply not an
option for the vast majority of those individuals, communities and businesses
directly and indirectly affected.

Cherwell District is also extremely concerned that common sense principles
such as the ‘Kent Criteria’, which could have significantly reduced the
environmental impact of the scheme have not been incorporated despite two
years of promotion by Cherwell District Council and Community Forum
members;

The Kent Criteria are:

i.  ‘To use existing transport corridors (both rail and road) where that can
be shown to minimise land take, severance and environmental and
noise intrusion.

ii.  To avoid built development as far as possible where new rail tracks are
constructed outside present BR operational land.

iii. — To take careful account of the constraints arising from different geology
and drainage in order to minimise environmental damage from tracks.

iv.  Construction of rail tracks on lengthy embankments to be avoided to
minimise noise and visual and noise intrusion.

v.  To design cuttings, tunnels, cut and cover screening embankments and
acoustic walls to minimise visual and noise intrusion.

vi.  The greatest possible degree of noise attenuation shall be the aim, and
the general standard of protection shall not be inferior to that provided
in accordance with best practice elsewhere.

vii. ~ There will be a fundamental requirement for the final route alignment to
pay regard to existing settlements to an extent that with the use where
necessary of protective measures there is no significant deterioration in
the noise climate.

Viil. Protection of communities and the environment from noise intrusion to

be planned to the highest modern standards, which take account of the
special characteristics and intrusion of railway noise within parameters

Page 20



ix.

Xi.

Xil.

Xil.

Xiv.

XV.

XVi.

related to receiver sensitivity, and measured over a period bearing
direct relationship to the actual period of operation of the route, and
with special consideration being given to any overnight operations.

Noise protection to be achieved wherever possible at source by the
incorporation of the highest engineering standards in motive power
units, rolling stock, the design and construction of tracks, power
distribution systems, structures and trackside equipment rather than
the insulation of individual properties.

To design for operating speeds which enable commuter use of new
tracks and permit maximum practical flexibility in vertical and horizontal
alignments so as to minimise property loss, environmental damage and
noise intrusion.

Fair, flexible and comprehensive compensation to be speedily settled
for affected property, whether for impact from land take, noise or visual
intrusion and to include property affected by increased use of existing
tracks.

Roads and paths to be reinstated where severance occurs.

Agricultural and other land severed to be reassembled to enable good
long term management.

Financial provision to be made for full environmental treatment of new
and enhanced rail facilities to the highest modern standards, including
substantial “off-line” landscaping.

Principles and proposals be established for the construction phase
including identifying the location and function of each construction site
and access to and between them, planning controls to be exercised
over the construction stage and included within any Bill proposal; and
an environmental code of conduct for the management of the sites.

Principles and proposals be established for spoil disposal and other
bulk material movements including identifying disposal sites considered
necessary to meet predicted requirements, giving priority to mitigation
measures alongside of close to the Rail Link, seeking to use chalk in
cement-making or sand in the minerals industry where feasible, taking
the opportunity to fill a derelict site (or sites) within NW Kent or the
Medway Valley which is otherwise unlikely to be satisfactorily restored,
and maximising the transportation of spoil and other bulk materials by
rail, overland conveyors or river barges as appropriate rather than by
road planning controls to be exercised over the construction stage and
included within any Bill proposal, and an environmental code of
conduct for the management of sites.

Page 21



XVil.

XViii.

To design a high standard of safety for both passengers and those
living adjacent to the rail lines, and provide suitable means of
emergency access.

To recognise the social and environmental blight created by houses
Ssubject to purchase left empty in a community, and prepare and
implement a letting, sales and management policy designed to reduce
such impact’.

If the scheme is confirmed by Parliament, it needs to become an exemplar
scheme worthy of the nation, particularly as it is the latest transport
infrastructure project in UK history. As it stands it will fundamentally &
permanently alter communities to the detriment and needs to be radically

red

esigned.

In addition, Cherwell District Council makes the following observations and will
expand on each point within this document.

The cumulative effects from other plans and programmes have not yet
been considered (e.g. Aviation Review)

Distinct lack of baseline information, specifically baselines on noise, air
pollution, water resources/flooding and traffic

There is no clarity about consultation on the final ES and how this fits with
the Hybrid Bill process

Community — significant leisure/business impacts have not been fully
assessed.

There are discrepancies between the plan and profile maps and the map
books and narrative under Community Forum Areas, which contains out of
date data

Community Cohesion: This will have a direct impact on those who will no
longer be able to live within the hamlet of Lower Thorpe and an indirect
effect on the two neighbouring communities due to the severance effect of
the railway viaduct and the loss of community cohesion that currently
exists between two neighbouring villages and the historic community that
joins them (Lower Thorpe).

Landscape and visual assessment — There is no mention of having
referred to local Landscape Character Assessments. The methodology
has recently changed and it is unclear whether the LVIA takes account of
this

Air quality — No baseline data. It is not stated whether construction will be
by road or rail and this is fundamental

Climate — there is no assessment in the Draft ES

Cultural heritage — there is very limited information

Sound, noise and vibration — there is no background data or baseline.
The assumed use of 3m sound barriers is misleading as the character of
areas has not been considered.

Socio-economics — no assessments are included. Some businesses will
be lost. It is not acceptable that is addressed by off-setting jobs and
implying that replacing a lost locally-based motorsport engineer role with a

Page 22



groundworker from out-of-district is acceptable and hence not significant in
terms of loss.

Traffic and transport — the lack of a Traffic Assessment is a fundamental
omission at this stage. In addition, the Highways Agency has not approved
any routes

Waste and Minerals — nine million tons of ‘surplus excavated material
and imported aggregates have an interaction with traffic and transport
impacts and will affect areas as much as 20 miles from the route in order
to access the strategic trunk roads network

Water resources and flood risk — detailed design but no real
information. There is no justification of tunnel impacts on groundwater or
de-watering on archaeology

Presentation and layout comments -

The Non Technical Summary (NTS) should be a standalone document,
ideally avoiding where possible a lot of cross referencing to volumes in the
main ES.

The overall construction programme should be in the NTS and it would be
helpful for construction times to be included in each CFA section in the
NTS — standalone document.

Summaries of waste and climate would be helpful in the NTS

The NTS contains very limited descriptions of the receiving environment.
Some settlements/features are referred to in the text but not shown on the
maps — this should be rectified.

If referred to in the text it should be shown on the plan —e.g. in NTS only 2
viaducts shown but 3 referenced in text.

The maps (NTS and CFA Reports) could be clearer, they are quite difficult
to read — could the colouring be improved?

It would be helpful to summarise in each CFA chapter in NTS buildings
demolished, roads and PROW diverted.

NTS should briefly summarise local options rather than just cross ref vol 2.
It would be helpful if NTS contained bullet points identifying main mitigation
measures during construction rather than just referring to CoCP -
standalone document.

More reference to comments of statutory consultees would be helpful.

Will the SMR form part of the formal ES to enable easy cross referencing?
When considering cumulative effects with other proposed/likely
developments there will need to be liaison with the LPA to ensure all
developments are included.

There are very few references to how comments from communities have
been addressed in respect of significant effects. Valued environmental
attributes identified by the consultation should be identified as should
activities with significant effects on those valued attributes.

Policy framework should make reference to national policy.

ES could be arranged clearer so that the significant effects are clearly
defined — in places they get ‘lost’ in the text and must have clear
prominence.

It would be useful if all significant effects and residual effects were
tabulated. The Draft ES uses tables for some topics but not others

Page 23



e Chapter summaries would be helpful.

A number of key issues in terms of impact and mitigation are still being
considered and are to date unresolved so it's very difficult to offer much
detailed comment at this stage. Also therefore we can’t be clear on any
residual effects.

In addition, not all full methodologies are included so we can’t really comment
on their appropriateness or otherwise.

Some areas are still very vague — ‘potential loss of archaeological features
‘could’ be significant’, ‘significant noise effects ‘may’ occur’ —is it or isn’t it, will
they or won’t they? The Landscape/Visual section is particularly vague.
Together with noise this is the biggest concern facing this council.

As a result no confidence can be placed in the results at this point in time and
Cherwell District Council questions the value of the draft ES and consultation.

Page 24



2. CDC Response to Volume 1:

Cherwell District is a rural, unspoilt and tranquil place, where a substantial
proportion of the population live in villages and countryside; a tranquil
environment that this project will destroy.

This part of Cherwell District is not a formal Area of Outstanding Natural
Beauty (AONB), but it is an unspoilt ancient landscape with deep history and
tranquillity which the Council have always sought to protect.

The Council is committed to ‘Preserving what is Special’ about the District and
in particular protecting the villages and countryside from inappropriate
development and developments of scale. It remains very unclear how local
character will be maintained. We are surprised that so little work has been
undertaken of what will be lost as a result of this project.

This response to the Draft Environmental Statement is driven by a desire to
minimise the impact on individuals, communities and fundamental character of
the District. We wish to ensure that the final proposal and the ongoing debates
on mitigation and compensation minimise impact from the scheme.

We don’t believe that rural areas are just blank spaces on the map to be filled
with development, but something unique, something to be treasured. We have
a duty to ‘Preserve what is special’ and try to pass it on intact to future
generations. The proposed route will pass through a district with Conservation
Areas, Listed buildings and a high quality environment. This is what needs to
be recognised, both the implications for communities, businesses and
individuals now, but the loss to communities of the future too.

A scheme of national significance therefore demands the very highest
environmental standards to achieve the very lowest impact possible. As what
is the price to put on tranquillity, or the heritage and biodiversity that will be
adversely affected or lost?

In the Cherwell District the revised ‘preferred route option’ will have a direct
impact on the Fringford district ward.

We believe that it is critical that the wider impact of development on all of the
heritage and environmental assets in Cherwell District is considered in more
depth than has been the case to date. The impact on the setting of Scheduled
Monuments, Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas are required in law to
be considered when assessing the impact of a development. Similarly the
biodiversity sites all have a wider context and cannot survive if isolated from
their surroundings.

The impact work is not just limited to designated or known sites and a major

infrastructure project such as this will have a significant impact on the historic
and existing landscape of the District.

Page 25



It is critical that HS2 takes a number of additional studies into account in
considering the impact on Cherwell District. These should include
Environmental Character Areas, a Green Infrastructure Study and the
Landscape Sensitivity Studies in assessing the impact the HS2.

Sound and Noise

The assessment for sound, noise and vibration is based on criteria defined in
the Scoping and Methodology Report (SMR). However, whilst assessment
criteria adopted for assessing airborne and ground borne sound, noise and
vibration impacts from construction activities and operationally static
equipment have been based on criteria defined in relevant British Standards
and Codes of Practice, no detailed reference or explanation has been
provided for the criteria used to assess airborne sound in respect of
operational train movements or reasons why other relevant criteria has not.

For example, the absolute sound levels stated in the third bullet point of
paragraph 14.3.26 of the SMR. Also, how the criteria for determining the
significance of an impact, detailed in paragraph 14.3.31 of the SMR, will be
taken account of acoustically in the assessment process particularly the
character of the existing environment and any unique characteristics for the
train noise in terms of level/spectra differences. All of this information needs to
be provided in the final ES in order that any reasoning can be understood and
demonstrate adherence to the policy objectives of the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) and also the Noise Policy Statement for England
(NPSE) concerning the use of robust scientific evidence.

Where assessment has been based on criteria applied in respect of other
similar development projects in the UK or abroad then some explanation
needs to be provided on the evidence supporting that criteria and/or analysis
of post project monitoring after the development was completed and
operational.

Whilst a description has been provided in respect of some of the likely
construction noise sources no similar description has been provided in respect
of operational train noise sources such as from wheel/track interface,
aerodynamic noise, and also from infrastructure such as acoustic impacts
when trains pass into and out of tunnels/viaducts/cuttings, embankments etc .

This information is important to enable anyone reading the ES to better
understand the reasoning behind the assessment.

The comment that HS2 Ltd has the “opportunity to design and specify a
complete railway system” including “quieter trains and noise barriers that are
effective” (section 6.12) is noted. However, details of the “specifications”
would need to be provided in the final ES including comparisons between
alternative mitigation options using a “cost benefit analysis” approach (i.e.
each measure ranked in terms of level of mitigation provided and costs) as
typically used in “Best Practicable Means” for example. This could be used to
demonstrate good design practice and drive innovation towards the aims of

Page 26



the NPPF and NPSE, and also HS2 Ltd Sustainable design aims and
Sustainability Policy.

The Assessment of Noise & Vibration, Air Quality and Contaminated
Land

Chapter | Section Heading Comment
1 Introduction

1.1 Overview of HS2 | No comment but noted that
environmental effects that result from
train operations have been assessed
using the expected Phase Two
Operations

1.2 Hybrid bill No comment
procedure

1.3 The need for No comment
EIA & role of an
Environmental
Statement

1.4 Environmental No comment
Minimum
requirements

1.5 HS2 & No comment
sustainability

2 Background to No comment
High Speed 2

3 The Proposed
Scheme

3.3 Services & No comment
Operating
Characteristics

3.4 Proposed No comment
Scheme
description
(Aylesbury to
Coventry Gap)

3.5 Principle No comment — but some reference to
features & any specific acoustic attenuation
infrastructure characteristics would have been

useful.

3.6 Construction No comment — noted that
Construction impacts of Phase 1
included in the Noise & Vibration
Assessment as based on the Code
of Construction Practice and
Principles of BS5228:2009 Control of
noise and vibration on Construction
& Open Sites.

Page 27




Environmental
impact
assessment

Comments in Section 4.4 General
assumptions and limitations- noted

Scope
&methodology
for
environmental
topics

5.3

Air quality

Use of the local authority data and
defra background maps for
assessing the exisiting air quality
concentrations is acceptable.
However, they will still need to be
assessed and it is unclear what
criteria will be used to assess the
significance of any impacts.
Previously proposed reduction in
emissions due to improvements in
vehicle abatement technology driven
by EU standards have not delivered
the reductions in emissions
expected. As such, it should be
assumed that emissions will not
decrease as previously expected and
assumed to stay the same to assume
worst case scenario.

5.9

Land Quality

Appropriate risk assessment is
welcome as outlined but the focus
should be on demonstrating the
development is suitable for use. This
is not made clear in this section.
There is no specific information
included in this section on what
criteria will be used to assess. The
investigation, assessment and
proposals should be provided prior to
commencement.

5.12

Sound, noise &
vibration

Noted that assessment for sound,
noise and vibration is based on
criteria defined in the Scoping &
Methodology Report as finalised and
published in September 2012.
However, whilst assessment criteria
adopted for assessing
airborne/ground borne noise and
vibration impacts from construction
activities and operationally static
equipment have been based on
criteria defined in relevant British
Standards and Codes of Practice, no

Page 28




detailed reference or explanation has
been provided for the criteria used to
assess airborne sound in respect of
operational train movements or
reasons why other relevant criteria
has not. For example, the absolute
sound levels stated in the third bullet
point of paragraph 14.3.26 of the
Scoping Methodology Report (SMR).
Also, how the factors detailed in
paragraph 14.3.31 of the SMR will be
taken account of acoustically in the
assessment process but particularly
the character of the existing
environment and unique
characteristics for the train noise in
terms of level/spectra differences. All
of this information needs to be
provided in the final ES in order that
any reasoning can be understood
and demonstrate adherence to the
policy objectives of the National
Planning Policy Framework (NPPF)
and also the Noise Policy Statement
for England (NPSE) concerning the
use of robust scientific evidence.

Also, where assessment has been
based on criteria applied in respect
of other similar development projects
in the UK or abroad then some
explanation needs to be provided on
the evidence supporting that criteria
and/or analysis of post project
monitoring after the development
was completed and operational.

Whilst a description has been
provided in respect of some of the
likely construction noise sources no
similar description has been provided
in respect of operational train noise
sources such as from wheel/track
interface, aerodynamic noise, and
also from infrastructure such as
acoustic impacts when trains pass
into/out of tunnels/viaducts/cuttings,
embankments, etc .

Such information is important for the

Page 29




lay person to better understand the
reasoning behind the assessment.

The criteria for determining the
significance of an impact, outlined in
section 14.3.31 of the SMR with
regard to the number and grouping of
receptors is still under discussion.

The limitations of the assessment are
noted.

Approach to
mitigation

6.6

Air quality

No mitigation is foreseen as
necessary other than that included in
the transport assessment and the
CoCP. Without appropriate
assessment and understanding of
the methodology of assessing the air
quality impact as referred to above,
this cannot be assumed.

6.12

Sound, noise &
vibration

Noted comment regarding
“opportunity to design and specify a
complete railway system” including
“quieter trains and noise barriers that
are effective”. Details of the
“specifications” would need to be
provided in the final ES including
comparisons between alternative
mitigation options using a “cost
benefit analysis” approach (i.e. each
measure ranked in terms of level of
mitigation provided and costs) as
typically used in “Best Practicable
Means” for example. This could be
used to demonstrate good design
practice and drive innovation towards
aims of NPPF & NPSE and HS2
Sustainable Design Aims &
Sustainability Policy.

Appendix
A

Sustainable
Design Aims

No comment but stress the
importance of the relevant details
being provided in the final ES Report
to demonstrate this.

Page 30




Page 31



3. Response to Volume 2: Community Forum Area Report 14
(Newton Purcell to Brackley)

The anticipated impact on this section of Oxfordshire is considerable, as a
brief description of the line as it passes through the Council’s area illustrates:

a) Travelling south to north the line would first enter the district for a short
section to the north of Godington. The proposed line is generally following the
former Great Central railway line, but north of Godington it will deviate further
north on new viaducts (approx 3 metres high) over the Padbury Brook. It is
assumed, but not confirmed, that the former railway embankment and bridge
will remain in situ and thereby shield the village of Godington to some extent.

b) The route then passes back into Aylesbury Vale DC’s area passing the
village of Chetwode before passing back into Cherwell to the east of the main
part of Newton Purcell village. The line would travel on a raised embankment
parallel to, and just to the north of, the former railway embankment. It is not
clear if the former railway embankment adjacent will stay or go. The line
would then pass over the existing A4421 just to the north of the existing
redundant railway bridges and abutments. No information is available
whether these former structures will stay or go. The plans submitted with the
consultation show a diversion of the A4421 to the north west of the current
alignment to pass over the new rail line (at least 8 metres above the new rail
height. Long embankments to north and south lift the road to that level.
Accommodation works to the existing roadway are needed so that the existing
road can still function as the access to houses north and south of the HS2 line
and to serve the end of the Barton Hartshorn Road.

C) Proceeding north-westwards the proposed HS2 line regains the Great
Central alignment (albeit in wider cutting) and travels in low cut to the A421. A
new bridge to take the A421 across the railway would be needed. The line
continues north westwards in increasingly deep cutting passing between
Warren Farm and The Oaks Farm. Just short of the Mixbury Lodge to Fulwell
Road the line would start to deviate north eastwards from the former railway
line remaining in deep cutting as it passes under that road and north of
Tibbetts Farm. To the north-east of Mixbury the line would need to come out
of cutting and pass over a short viaduct to cross the deep valley of a small
brook flowing eastwards to the Great Ouse River at Fulwell. The line would
then pass back into deep cutting for 300-400m (8 metres deep approx) before
re-emerging onto embankment and viaduct (10 metres high) as it crosses the
Great Ouse River heading onto Aylesbury Vale again to pass between
Westbury and Turweston and hence into South Northamptonshire Council’s
area to the north-east of Brackley.

HS2 must consider the implications that the scheme has for the delivery of a
number of key corporate priorities for the council. In particular, the effect on
the A422 and A4421 and the impact on construction when these key projects
are under construction, and the A422 and A4421 will be the primary route for
construction traffic.

Page 32



Similarly, there are a number of works required to the A422 and A4421 as a
result of these developments and we need to understand if and how these will
be affected by HS2 sooner rather than later. Delivering these improvements
has been taken into account when considering the viability of these
developments and we need to understand the implications i.e. are
improvements being sought and made for works that will then be affected by
HS27?

3.1 Fit with Local Plan Policies

It is illustrative that the area through which the HS2 route proposes to run is
judged locally to be sensitive and significant.

All of the area of Cherwell through which the line passes is a locally
designated Area of High Landscape Value (AHLV) in the adopted Cherwell
Local Plan. This is not recognised in the ES at all.

The line will be in a mixture of cutting and embankment. The new
construction will be a raw feature in the landscape which on-site planting will
do little to alleviate in the short to medium term. The impact is not only from
the new engineering structures of the line (embankments, cuttings and
viaducts) but also from the view of the trains themselves and the overhead
gantries. In addition one has to consider the structures that will carry roads
and footpaths across the line. The overbridge at Newton Purcell will be
particularly prominent, as will the viaduct across the Great Ouse River.

Of lesser visual significance will be the A421 overbridge and the Padbury
Brock viaduct but these are still substantial new structures in the AHLV. With
regards to the cuttings it cannot be established, on the basis of the submitted
drawings, what the land take will be as some of the cuttings are quite deep
around Mixbury. It is therefore difficult to assess the true impact. The Council
will need to seek mitigation of these impacts both on and off site if the scheme
proceeds.

HS2 does not sit well with these policy objectives.
3.2 Geology and Topology Issues

The proposed route in Cherwell District will largely pass through clay. This will
have a major impact on how the route is designed.

The experience around Oxfordshire of development in the same rock series
has established the need for well shored sides, wider V cuts to avoid under-
slip occurring through water and frost effects. This experience suggests that
HS2 may need to have a potentially larger land take than might at first be
anticipated.

It is this geology that will lead to a larger land take being needed than might

first be anticipated as a cutting into clay requires a shallower V to ensure a
stable side to the cutting, as the experience from HS1 shows.

Page 33



This does not appear to have featured in the scheme assessment to date.

CDC believes that a number of issues require more detailed consideration:

e The impact of a loss of high quality agricultural land, minerals areas
and potential waste planning sites.

e The scale of the land take required for the line and associated works.

e The locations of land take for new access during and after construction.

e The early identification of where to deposit 1,000’s tonnes of waste and
most appropriate location in the District for the construction of haul
roads and access roads.

3.3 Impacts on the Local Environment

CDC has considerable concern about the impact of the proposal on the
environment of Cherwell District.

The environmental issues from HS2 are considerable and include:

e Applying the lessons from HS1 and London Crossrail, that good
environmental planning and scheme management is the key to a
successful scheme.

e Anticipating construction and operational impacts; considering
avoidance (within a broad corridor), mitigation and compensation.

e Completing a full Environmental Impact Assessment and Strategic
Environmental Assessment urgently.

e Resolving how the project meets the obligations on the promoters
under the Climate Change Act 2008 and contributes to the national
plan for emission reduction given the levels of embodied carbon in the
construction and operation of the scheme.

e Justifying why HS2 has not considered alternatives that would have a
much lower environmental impact.

It is of considerable regret that the protection offered in the Treasury Growth
Strategy (March 2011) for Green Belt and sensitive environmental areas such
as AONB's as a consequence of the proposed reforms of the Planning system
excludes HS2, which undermines the reassurance offered in the Planning
Reforms being introduced through the Localism Bill. As para 2.21 records —
‘the Government’s commitment to maintain the greenbelt, Sites of Special
Scientific Interest, Areas of Outstanding Natural Beauty and other
environmental designations’.

This commitment amounts to little of substance in the light of the HS2
experience and communities cannot draw any reassurance from it.

CDC is concerned to ensure that a number of lessons from HS1 are given
more detailed consideration ahead of HS2 being submitted for adoption
through the planned Hybrid Bill including:
e The implications of removal of vegetation for both route and on sites
nearby for construction or access purposes.

Page 34



e The impact on properties affected by loss of visual amenity close to
route and all those with views across the railway.

e The need for high quality mitigation to ensure visual amenity impacts
during the construction of HS2.

e The need to aim to ensure that permanent effects are mitigated in
some areas once HS2 construction is completed and vegetation
becomes established.

e The landscape and visual impact from foot bridges, road bridges and
other structures. The HS1 designs were very intrusive visually.

There is a need to consider how the soil type, gradient of cutting and climate
change will affect the most appropriate species to plant to secure a rapid
reclamation of areas affected by earth movement during construction. The
quality of the restoration achieved in Kent after 10 years + of new growth and
planting has been impressive as the photograph below shows:

But a major concern for CDC stems from the evidence of the HS1 line in Kent
over the height of line and gantries, locations for screening, tunnels and
banking. An example from Kent is below shows how visible the route can be:

Page 35 1



Cherwell District Council notes the effort made within the context of HS1 to
seek to minimise the visibility of the route through lowering of the floor of the
cuttings to reduce the visibility of the actual line. We are also clear that this
step did not always succeed and the tops of the overhead cables is frequently
visible the length of the route through Kent. It is envisaged that this problem is
likely to occur to the east of Mixbury where the line is in shallow cutting.

Page 36 20



CDC are also keen to avoid the experience of HS1 where poor quality of
bridges providing local service access as well as for footpaths and bridleways
were provided, with a negative visual impact. An example is shown below:

T
1k
1) ;*["‘;l

3.3.1 Air quality

Estimates of background air quality have been obtained from Defra for 2011
and future years (2017 and 2026), and reference has also been made to
Cherwell District Council’s air quality data. It is agreed that the main effects
on air quality will be from construction activities, which will be localised and
controlled and managed through the methods outlined in the Code of
Construction Practice (CoCP) the general requirements of which will be
supplemented by Local Environmental Management Plans and method
statements for each community Forum.

No baseline data. It is not stated whether construction will be by road or rail
and this is fundamental.

There is considerable potential for localised dust occurrence and the potential
for nuisance on residential, business and amenity areas in the construction
period that would be necessary to build the proposed HS2 line. This includes
the line of the preferred route, the wider land that is planned for acquisition for
operational safety.

Page 37 21



But air quality impacts can also be anticipated from a number of associated
factors, including:

e Traffic impacts during construction and from new road alignments and
in particular the proposed new bridge for the A4421 over the HS2 route
at Newton Purcell and the air quality impact from the elevated road on
nearby dwellings, flora and fauna.

It is of great concern that these issues are not considered in the consultation
documents and that an Environmental Impact Assessment is planned some
time after the need case will have been considered; thus excluding issues of
local impact and potentially costly remediation from the business case
assessment.

At the very minimum, should a decision be taken to proceed with the scheme
a construction environmental management plan will be required to address
mitigation management.

3.3.2 Climate
There is no assessment in the Draft

There is considerable potential for localised dust occurrence and the potential
for nuisance on residential, business and amenity areas in the construction
period that would be necessary to build the proposed HS2 line. This includes
the line of the preferred route, the wider land that is planned for acquisition for
operational safety. We expect measures to reduce this to be taken,
particularly to the east of the route due to prevailing south-westerly winds.

3.3.3 Ecology

The HS2 route passes through an almost entirely rural setting within Cherwell
District. Whilst it is called a Draft ES it is only slightly more detailed than an
EIA scoping document. It is very disappointing that we are not being given
the opportunity to comment on a full Draft ES. The documents do not provide
enough information to comment properly or to assess the impact of HS2.

The Council endorses a series of questions that have been raised by
Oxfordshire County Council’'s Ecologist, namely:-

e What evidence (ecological survey data) are the conclusions in section
8 and Community Forum Area Chapters 13 and 14 of the Draft ES
based on? No survey results are included and it states that surveys
are ongoing. It is inadequate to base assumptions about likely impacts
on insufficient data.

e Para. 5.7.2 of Vol. 1 states that they will be “...guided by the

methodology advocated by IEEM...”. Why “guided by” and not “adhere
to”? The ES should adhere to IEEM methodology.

Page 38



e There is no assessment of route-wide cumulative impacts on ecology.
Cumulative impacts on ecology could be very significant and need to
be properly assessed.

Para. 5.7.8 of Vol. 8 states:

“‘However, it is considered unlikely that HS2 Ltd will gain access to survey all
land where access has been requested prior to the submission of the formal
ES. HS2 Ltd is currently developing (in liaison with Natural England) a
formalised precautionary approach to assessment which is to be followed in
the formal ES.”

We do not consider that this is an appropriate way of dealing with this issue.
Other organisations and individuals should be given the opportunity to
comment on the definition that will be used for the “precautionary approach”.
There is an Ecology Working Group of ecology stakeholders along the route
and HS2 should agree the definition of the precautionary approach through
this group.

Sources of information are incomplete: e.g. the list for the Environmental
Features Maps does not include TVERC (Thames Valley Environmental
Records Centre), nor does Chapter 13 section 7. Information from TVERC
should be included. Woodland is from OS maps — this is a very unusual
approach. UK Biodiversity Action Plan Priority Habitats should be included
based on information from TVERC, then verified through HS2’s ecological
surveys. At present the maps do not show UK Biodiversity Action Plan habitat
— this is inadequate. Local Wildlife Sites should include Proposed Local
Wildlife Sites. In the Community Forum Chapters the assessment of UK BAP
Priority Habitats should include Scrub-dense continuous.

The documents refer to mitigation measures for Great Crested Newt and other
protected species, but these are not detailed. These need to be clearly
stated.

The route comprises large areas of arable farmland, as well as more valuable
areas for wildlife including and protected sites, stream corridors and areas of
ridge and furrow grassland. There is therefore a good opportunity for
enhancing the wildlife value of this area through mitigation and compensation
works.

There will be direct impacts from HS2 on already identified protected sites and
habitats and also a loss of connectivity in the landscape, particularly impacting
butterflies and mammals.

While there are no international designated sites affected in Cherwell District,

there will be an impact on nationally designated sites (e.g. SSSI's) and
regional / local designated sites.

Page 39



There is a potential for major loss of ancient woodland and historic hedgerows
and the Council are in the process of mapping these sites given the
incomplete nature of the BAP coverage in the District.

Cherwell DC is concerned at the serious potential for impact on protected
species and areas with abundant wildlife.

There will also be an impact on productive farmland in Cherwell District. It is
unclear whether there will there be restrictions on farming with farm access
broken. There is a continuing need for livestock and crop access and new
bridges to a width to accommodate farm machinery. The current mapping
undertaken by HS2 does not take into account the nature of land ownership
and the impact on farm businesses of the route.

The Council is concerned to ensure that the correct surveys & assessments
are undertaken. An appropriate assessment is required for the project to
comply with the provisions of Council Directive 92/43/EEC on the
conservation of natural habitats and of wild flora and fauna (Habitats
Directive).

An independent assessment of the environment and biodiversity of the area
affected is critical to ensure this is properly considered if the scheme is
proceeded with. In addition, HS2 must ensure appropriate surveys are
undertaken to identify the potential opportunity for habitat creation and
extension in appropriate locations.

3.3.4 Loss of Hedgerows
The area through which the HS2 route proposes to run is judged locally to be
sensitive and significant. The Cherwell District- Local Plan Saved Policies has

sought to provide protection against the unwarranted loss of hedgerows.

There is no evidence of HS2 taking account of its impact on this sensitive
landscape form.

3.3.5. Specific Site impacts in Cherwell District:

We seek to ensure that the real ecological costs of all proposals are
understood and taken account of before any decision on High Speed Rail is
made.

There are sites where the HS2 route will result in the direct loss and
fragmentation of valuable wildlife habitat and impact on many important
species of flora and fauna.

We have the following records of species and areas of ecological/ biodiversity
interest within 500m either side of the proposed line within Cherwell District:

Protected Species:

Page 40



e Water vole (protected under Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981 as
amended)

e Badger (Protected under Protection of Badgers Act 1992)

e Grass snake (protected under Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
against killing and injury)

e Common Lizard (protected under Wildlife and Countryside Act 1981
against killing and injury)

e Biodiversity Action Plan (BAP) Priority/ Section 41 Species and notable

species:

Water flax beetle — Nationally Notable invertebrate

Small Heath - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Cinnabar - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Wall - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Shaded Broad-bar - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Basil Thyme - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Wood White - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Dingy Skipper - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Grizzled Skipper - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Small Blue - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Four-spotted - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Figure of eight - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Cuckoo - BAP/ Section 41 NERC Act species

Lebia chlorocephala (ground beetle) — Nationally notable

Stenus butrintensis — Nationally notable

Psallus albicinctus — Nationally notable B

Kingfisher — amber list bird

The route passes within close proximity to a number of large ponds and
lagoons (close to Finmere and Godington). There may therefore be issues
with amphibians, most notably Great Crested Newts to be addressed, which
could be using areas to be affected as terrestrial habitat. The lagoons may
also be important for water birds which could be impacted by disturbance.

The route also appears to pass through or directly adjacent to a couple of
plantation and woodland areas near Finmere. There may be important nesting
birds or roosting bats in these areas which would need to be surveyed for.

Bats — there are no specific records for bats but they are likely to be foraging
along the watercourses and hedgerows throughout the area as well as the old
LNER railway as this forms a major vegetated corridor across the wider
landscape and therefore could be important for commuting and foraging bats,
which may be difficult to mitigate for.

We have records of water vole throughout the district and it is likely they are
present on some of the other watercourses to be affected. Nine crossings of
watercourses of various sizes have been identified in addition to on the River
Great. Otters may be present on any of these watercourses.

Badgers are also likely to be widespread.

Page 41



For all these species the principal impacts both during construction and in the
long-term when trains are running will be

e direct destruction and loss of habitat
direct and indirect disturbance due to noise, lighting and habitat
fragmentation and loss of connectivity of habitats
isolation of populations
potentially direct injury and killing of individuals both during construction
and when trains are running

There is only one specifically highlighted habitat in our records namely a
District Wildlife Site — the Old LNER railway LN2/3. This was previously of
Local Wildlife Site value but has been downgraded due to loss of ecological
interest. It still contains Lowland Calcareous grassland of BAP priority habitat
quality and is important for butterflies and likely to be important for other
invertebrates. There would be direct land loss of this area.

The proposed route would necessitate the loss of a number of hedgerow
sections which are also likely to be BAP priority habitat and similarly a number
of woodland areas which may qualify under lowland deciduous woodland.

The closest local wildlife site is Spilsmere wood 850m to the West. It is not
foreseen that there would be any impacts on this, however there may be
disturbance from noise.

3.3.6 Ecological mitigation and compensation

Mitigation and compensation needs to focus on protecting and improving
protected sites, ensuring connectivity across the route and improving
connectivity through the landscape alongside the route

CDC believes it is essential that offsite mitigation / compensation is in place
before construction takes place in order to minimise impacts.

Creation of new habitats as a replacement for those lost, potentially fencing
during construction and removal of reptiles/amphibians to receptor sites.
Replacement bat roosts and bird nesting opportunities. Timing restrictions on
work to avoid or coincide with breeding/hibernation times. Bridge designs to
cater for bats, otter passes etc...

Attention has already been drawn above to the loss of tree cover. There is a
potential for further hedgerow loss as well. The Council is concerned that the
level of information provided is currently poor. If the scheme proceeds to the
Hybrid Bill stage we will need to ensure that the Environmental Statement is
based on current and up to date survey information to ensure compliance with
the EEC Directives on the conservation of natural habitats and of wild flora
and fauna.

Proposals for the sort of environmental compensation and mitigation
necessary to address the impact of the proposed HS2 scheme include:

Page 42



¢ Increasing woodland cover in the area

e Enhancement of existing ridge and furrow sites to create flower rich
meadows

e Focus of compensation works around areas of existing interest and at
potential route crossings for wildlife, as this is where wildlife may
become ‘funneled’.

e Working with Environmental Stewardship to deliver large scale habitat
improvements

e Enhancing existing wildlife corridors such as disused railways and
streams

3.4 Landscape and visual assessment

There are few visual representations of the impact on our district with the
Community Area Forum Reports. As such, the anticipated impact is requires
significant mitigation measures.

There is no mention of having referred to local Landscape Character
Assessments. The methodology has recently changed and it is unclear
whether their LVIA takes account of this.

CDC is looking for the scheme (if pursued) to be as inconspicuous as possible
with minimal impact and change to the character of the District. CDC are
concerned with the potential for major visual impact and to ensure rail clutter
is screened and kept to a minimum.

Due to the typology of Cherwell District HS2 stands to be very visible from
many part of the District. We have particular concerns about the potential
visual impact at a number of locations, including the following:

e The line disects a relatively small area on the eastern side of Cherwell
district and although the route physically only occupies 5.5km the visual
impacts extend well beyond this.

e The landscape character is one of unspoilt undulating arable and
pasture land with good hedgerow and associated tree cover. In places
there are small to substantial blocks of woodland. A number of small
villages are relatively sparsely located within 5km of the line.

e Area accessible from Godington Footpaths. The line will be on a
viaduct at this point as it travels through the valley. From the Cherwell
side approaching from Godington there will be some screening
provided by the disused rail track which is estimated to be 6m high and
has some scrub cover making the screen higher. The power line
gantries are likely to be visible. The existence of a disused line very
close to a new one may well have the effect of making the area look
quite degraded visually as there will be an area of dead ground
between the the two lines. It would be preferable to remove the original
line and utilise the spoil in constructing the new line. Visual Impact
substantial

Page 43



Area around Newton Purcell. A sizeable part of the village is within the
500m of the line. The line is 3.5m above grade with a major road bridge
over track plus power lines. This will necessitate a considerable bridge
and engineering works which will be intrusive on a small village which
is very close. It is assumed that some properties will be too close to be
retained as the ground re-modelling required will be considerable.
Substantial impact +

Footpath at 627 319 The track is almost at grade here where it runs
along the line of the disused railway. Here the impact will be caused by
the overhead power lines. The existing track at this point is currently
well screened by vegetation but it is not clear if it will be possible to
retain this. This may be possible on one side of the track but not the
other as there will be some cutting which there is not at present. There
is insufficient detail yet available to form definitive opinions upon Impact
moderate to substantial.

Footpath at 624 325. The track will be slightly cut in here. Again due to
the earthworks required it may not be possible to retain all the existing
screening. Impact moderate to substantial

A421. The proposed line crosses the A421 by way of a bridge. The
landscape is relatively flat and the approach to the bridge along a long
straight road. The bridge will rise above the A421 creating a large
structure over the road. Substantial impact.

Featherbed lane. The line will be in cut, not significantly visible at this
point but a new bridge will be required with associated earthworks.
Impact moderate to substantial

Mossycorner Lane. In cutting as it passes directly past Mixbury with a
small length of viaduct before passing into cutting again. Unlikely to be
visible in summer due to intervening vegetation. Likely to be visible in
winter. The village is just outside the 500m examination zone.
Moderate visual impact, possibly substantial in winter.

The line ploughs through valleys and raised ground, from cut to viaduct
and back, completely disecting the landscape and interrupting the
landscape pattern.

There will be considerable localised impacts wherever there are
substantial sections of cut or fill. In Cherwell the maximum extent of
these is 10m. Allowing for 1:5 slopes this could mean cutting or filling
for up to 50m either side of the rail corridor. At this stage none of this
has been identified and considered. Much less any mitigation of the
scars.

There will be very significant earth moving required in the construction
process. Roads in the vicinity of the line are narrow country lanes

Page 44



unsuited to heavy traffic. Construction impacts will be considerable due
to noise, dust, traffic and visual scaring.

e The visual impact of the line will be much greater than shown on the
sections as these just illustrate the impact for track levels, and do not
include the overhead power lines which add further to the height of the
structure above ground. There is also the possibility of noise baffles to
reduce the sound impacts creating a further landscape impact which
will then require mitigation in themselves.

e A further significant consideration in landscape impact terms is the loss
of tree cover. The existing cuttings and embankments provide strong
linear features containing established trees. Where the existing
alignment is being re-used, or the line runs close to and parallel to the
former line, it is considered that most of these landscape features will
be lost. This will cause significant harm. In addition between Newton
Purcell and Mixbury the line would run adjacent to and through two
plantations. These would be severely affected as landscape features.
North east of Mixbury the line has to cross a sharp sided valley on a
viaduct between two deep cuttings. This is likely to be a significant
feature when viewed from the footpath which runs north from
Beaumont Lodge.

Mitigation of landscape and visual effects is most effective if it is designed into
a project at inception stage as this gives opportunities to avoid, reduce, offset
and if possible remedy the effects of the development. Adding on cosmetic
measures such as screen planting are likely to be less successful.

The landscape is very sensitive to this development because of its nature and
scale, the distribution of visual receptors and the extremely limited scope for
mitigation. Accommodating a development like this without a detrimental
effect to the landscape character of the area is considered to be impossible.

This is a major project in terms of size and scale. It will create a significant
artificial linear structure in landscape and visual terms and a resulting
substantial adverse impact with few if any benefits. Protection and
enhancement of the landscape is one of the objectives of the Transport
Analysis Guidance. The Council cannot see how this project achieves these
aims.

Specifically, in relation to the design of bridges and acoustic barriers, CDC
does not support ‘standard’ concrete bridges and barriers regardless of
pigmentation/colour. The visual impact needs to preserve what is special. We
expect to see locally distinctive materials and appropriate design — e.g. use of
natural and locally sourced stone facings.

CDC is concerned to ensure that a number of lessons from HS1 are given

more detailed consideration ahead of HS2 being submitted for adoption
through the Hybrid Bill including:

Page 45



e The implications of removal of vegetation for both route and on sites
nearby for construction or access purposes.

e The impact on properties affected by loss of visual amenity close to
route and all those with views across the railway.

e The need for high quality mitigation to ensure visual amenity impacts
during the construction of HS2.

e The need to aim to ensure that permanent effects are mitigated in
some areas once HS2 construction is completed and vegetation
becomes established.

e The landscape and visual impact from foot bridges, road bridges and
other structures. The HS1 designs were very intrusive visually.

There is a need to consider how the soil type, gradient of cutting and climate
change will affect the most appropriate species to plant to secure a rapid
reclamation of areas affected by earth movement during construction. The
quality of the restoration achieved in Kent after 10 years + of new growth and
planting has been impressive as the photograph below shows: -

But a major concern for CDC stems from the evidence of the HS1 line in Kent
over the height of line and gantries, locations for screening, tunnels and
banking. An example from Kent is below shows how visible the route can be:

Page 46 30



Cherwell District Council notes the effort made within the context of HS1 to
seek to minimise the visibility of the route through lowering of the floor of the
cuttings to reduce the visibility of the actual line. We are also clear that this
step did not always succeed and the tops of the overhead cables is frequently
visible the length of the route through Kent.

CDC are also keen to avoid the experience of HS1 where poor quality of
bridges providing local service access as well as for footpaths and bridleways
were provided, with a negative visual impact. An example is shown below:

Page 47 o



Engineers at a consultation event on June 3™ 2013 confirmed that it would be
possible to add pigment to colour concrete infrastructure. Whilst we are keen
to investigate this further as a visual impact mitigation measure, we
emphasize the need for the use of local materials and design styles to
sympathetically incorporate harsh modern infrastructure into soft historic
landscapes.

Careful blending of tones and use of locally sourced facings could significantly
reduce the blight caused by standard white concrete architecture which, as
the local planning authority, we will not accept under any circumstances.

3.4.1 Power and train servicing points

It is known that the HS2 will be electrified and will need connection to the
National Grid with suitably located transformer compounds. No information is
available about the location of these sites which will also need road access for
maintenance. To the east and north of Mixbury an existing high voltage pylon-
line crosses the proposed railway and then runs along the former Great
Central railway line. At least one pylon would need to be relocated to facilitate
the building of the railway. This is at the point where the Mixbury Lodge to
Fulwell road crosses the line, and therefore is road served. From seeing such
power take-off compounds in Kent when viewing HS1 it is considered that this
feature would also be harmful to the visual amenity of this part of the
countryside which is classified as being of high landscape value.

It is clear from the experience the communities in Kent that were affected by

the HS1 project that there was a substantial effort in places to mitigate and
compensate for the worst effects of the line. CDC would expect no less than

Page 48



they received and for lessons from HS1 and the 18 Kent Principles to be
applied to the design and development of HS2.

CDC notes that there were unexpected late additions to the ‘architecture’ of
the scheme, with power download facilities and train servicing centres that
were not revealed in the consultation phase. From the HS1 experience in Kent
CDC is also concerned to ensure that the land take required for all elements
of the scheme is provided to the public in advance.

To avoid this situation with the HS2 project CDC want to know up-front the
locations of power supply facilities and rolling stock support points which
would be visible intrusions across the District. These issues should be
covered in the ‘permissive provisions’ and deemed consents parts of the
Hybrid Bill.

It is of profound regret that HS2 has not sought to provide any detailed
information on the locations for:

e Electricity Substations

e Service & Maintenance roads and access points

The proposed location of electricity substations is a key issue. CDC would be
concerned about new overhead pylons being erected to provide electricity
connections.

The visual intrusion of such substations in Kent illustrates how intrusive this
industrial architecture can be and requires substantial screening:

Page 49 5



3.5 Sound, noise & vibration

The basis for the operational train noise assessment criteria needs to be
explained as detailed in the comments to Section 5 of Volume 1 (see above).

The potential for significant noise effects is dependant on the baseline data
and the change in sound level brought about by the Proposed Scheme
(paragraph 11.6.5). However, with the limited information provided with
regard to baseline data it is not possible to determine the likely impacts at
receptors in terms of the criteria specified in 14.3.26 of the SMR.

Further information needs to be provided in the final ES to explain how the
criteria in 14.3.31 of the SMR, used in assessing whether an effect is
potentially significant at a residential receptor, will be applied.

The significance of an impact at all receptors should be assessed regardless
of their number and grouping. The decision on whether or not to consider
mitigation for isolated or small groups of receptors then needs to be explained
and reported in the final ES in terms of cost benefit analysis and sustainability,
and not just discounted on the basis that there are five or less.

It is noted that further assessment work is being undertaken to confirm
operational sound and vibration significant effects that will include further
baseline monitoring and the consideration of additional mitigation. This
should all be detailed in the final ES and having regard to the comments
above.

CDC want to ensure that the final line if approved has as little noise impact as
possible.

The AOS identifies only 3 or 4 properties at Newton Purcell as potentially
experiencing high noise levels, with further housing nearby potentially eligible
for noise insulation (implying relatively high noise levels). The same plans
show four properties in Godington, all the remaining properties in Newton
Purcell and five outlying properties (Cross Farm, Widmore Farm, The Oaks
Farm, Warren Farm (4 properties), Tibbetts Farm, and Beaumont Lodge) as
potentially experiencing a noticeable noise increase. It is not explained why
the The Oaks Farm, which is located immediately adjacent to the line is not
categorised as experiencing high noise levels. Two areas, close to the
railway at Newton Purcell, and around Warren Farm are also annotated as
“preliminary candidate areas for mitigation”.

There are two other areas for concern.

e Firstly to the north east of Mixbury the line crosses a short viaduct
between two cuttings. It is thought likely that high speed trains
crossing this at full speed will send a pulse of noise up and down the
valley to each side, with properties at Mixbury and Fulwell likely to
experience this sudden repetitive noise event. This could have a
significant detrimental affect.

Page 50



e To a lesser extent Fulwell may also experience noise from the much
longer viaduct across the Great Ouse River. The AOS recognises the
potential for noticeable noise in Westbury, but not in Fulwell.

In their Appraisal of Sustainability document at Appendix 5.4 the HS2
organisation sets out the criteria it proposes to assess the impact of noise and
vibration generated by the planned high speed rail project.

In the opening paragraphs of the report the case is made for the use of the
LAeq unit of noise measurement to assess and quantify the noise levels
produced by trains. A time period of 18 hrs has been chosen as the
appropriate averaging period over which the LAeq is to be applied. The 18 hr
time period is defined as ‘daytime’ between 06:00 and 00:00 (midnight). It is
suggested that the LAeq measure ‘correlates best with the annoyance caused
to humans by noise’

Whilst it is accepted that LAeq is a commonly used noise measurement the
claim that it correlates as an index of annoyance is to be questioned
particularly in the case of rail noise where individual noise events typically
involve large amounts of sound over short periods of time followed by periods
of time when the ‘nuisance’ is entirely absent. In these circumstances the use
of a maximum event noise level such as LAmax may more accurately reflect
the noise impact. Equally the LAeq measurement does not accurately reflect
the additional impact caused when for example a train emerges from a cutting
or tunnel and a nearby sensitive receptor is suddenly exposed to a significant
volume of noise. This effect is in part addressed later in the report when the
issue of tunnel boom is considered. It is felt that due to the depth of some of
the cuttings to be employed this effect or elevated levels of noise could be a
problem in these locations.

In addressing ground borne vibration mention is made of the variation in effect
that can arise as a result of the underlying geology. Whilst the report is by
nature general in its terms it is felt that this point is significant and should have
been addressed in more detail with reference being made to specific rather
than general local conditions.

Another significant omission is an appraisal of noise impacts on non
residential receptors as the affect of noise on the ability for individuals to work
productively and effectively should not be under estimated.

In predicting noise levels that are likely to be generated by the HS2 rolling
stock reference is made to quantitative noise measurements obtained from a
survey of operation of TGV rolling stock. These trains typically operate at
speeds up to 300 km/hr yet the aspiration for HS2 is for trains to operate at
360 km/hr or faster. The report does concede that data for aerodynamic noise
from trains travelling at 360 km/hr or faster is not currently available and as a
consequence modifications to the Calculation of Rail Noise Methodology
cannot be made at this time. This shortcoming does call in to question any
use of an unmodified model for predicting noise levels.

Page 51



Noise from the operation of the high speed railway originates from a number
of sources:
¢ Mechanical noise from motors, fans and ancillary equipment
Rolling noise from wheels
Aerodynamic noise from airflow
Catenary noise from the power pick up from the overhead lines.

It is considered that lowering the height of the line may assist further around
Mixbury/Finmere, with perhaps the use of a “green” (cut-and-cover) tunnel to
avoid the deep cuttings. This would have the added advantage of lowering
the viaduct over the Great Ouse River. Particular concern is also expressed
about the noise impacts at Newton Purcell. As the line is elevated relative to
the nearest properties, noise barriers would be the only technical solution, but
it is not possible to assess their effectiveness on the basis of the information
currently provided.

The operating hours of 5am to midnight give the Council cause for concern.
Both early hours operation and evening/night operation will be at times when
the background noise level is low and the consequent impact of the noise
generated by the trains will be higher and more harmful to the quiet enjoyment
of nearby houses. It is therefore suggested that the operating hours should
be shortened.

Noise nuisance is also a function of the frequency of the noise events — the
number of trains per hour and per day. The 18 trains per hour in each
direction which is proposed at peak hours i.e. 36 trains (less than 2 minutes
between each noise event potentially) is considered excessive and
unreasonable to endure for the occupiers of nearby properties.

Specific Noise issues

Chapter | Section Heading Comment
1 Introduction No comment
2 Newton Purcell to
Brackley
2.1 Overview of the No comment.
Area
2.2 Description of No comment.

proposed scheme

2.3 Construction of No comments
the proposed

scheme
24 Operation of the Some information needs to be
proposed given with respect to likely
scheme. frequency/duration of
inspection and maintenance
works and likely noise impacts.
2.6 Route section See comment on 2.2 above.

Page 52



main alternatives.

Air quality

No comments. But noted that
estimates of background data
have been obtained from Defra
for 2011 and future years (2017
and 2026), and reference has
also been made to CDC’s air
quality data. Main impact will
be from construction activities,
which are covered by the
CoCP.

The assessment and screening
criteria used to assess the
impact of the scheme on air
quality are not clear. What
criteria have been used to see
whether further assessment
criteria is required and what
guidance has this been taken
from? This is not stated in this
report and should be clarified
with additional details on how
the conclusions were reached.

Land Quality

Section No comments8.5.3
makes reference to
contaminated land but should
be extended to include “land
affected by contamination”.
Section 8.5.3 makes reference
to measures outlined in the
draft CoCP to be implemented
to manage the effects of land
affected by contamination. One
of the general provisions
reported in section 11.1.2 of the
draft CoCP is the potential to
affect aquifers but there is no
mention of other sensitive
receptors and these should be
included. It is noted that these
are referred to later in the draft
CoCP.

It is also not clear where there
are any areas of public open
space or public access within
the scope of the construction
area which will need to be
included as human receptors in
pollutant linkages. This should
be noted and included in the

Page 53




risk assessment as necessary
to ensure the appropriate
screening criteria are utilised,
particularly if fill materials will
be left exposed.

The testing of soils for
redistribution detailed in the
CoCP is welcomed but it is not
clear how and when this will be
undertaken e.g. at the end of
the construction phase to
demonstrate the soils are
suitable for use? Or earlier as
part of the land quality risk
assessment  process. This
should be clarified and how this
is proposed to be presented to
demonstrate the land is suitable
for use.

11

Sound, noise &
vibration.

11.4

Environmental
Baseline

Needs to be defined with
measurement data  having
regard to comments on the
SMR as detailed in the
comments to Chapter 5 of
Volume 1 (see above).

11.5

Construction

Noted that further work is being
undertaken to confirm
significant construction noise
and vibration effects, including
any temporary effects from
construction traffic, and
mitigation measures that may
be needed.

11.6

Operation

The basis for the operational
train noise assessment criteria
needs to be explained as
detailed in the comments to
Section 5 of Volume 1 (see
above).

The potential for significant
noise effects is dependant on
the baseline data and the
change in sound level brought
about by the Proposed Scheme
(paragraph 11.6.5). However,
with the limited information
provided with regard to

Page 54




baseline data it is not possible
to determine the likely impacts
at receptors in terms of the
criteria specified in 14.3.26 of
the SMR.

An explanation/information
needs to be provided as to how
the criteria used in assessing
whether an effect is potentially
significant in accordance with
the criteria specified in 14.3.31
of the SMR will be applied.

No significant effects have
been identified for Public Rights
of Way (paragraph 11.6.8)

The significance of an impact at
all  properties should be
assessed and reported in the
final ES regardless of the
number and grouping of
receptors  affected. The
decision on whether or not to
consider mitigation for isolated
or small groups of receptors
then needs to be explained and
reported in the final ES, in
terms of cost benefit analysis
and sustainability, and not just
discounted.

Noted that further assessment
work is being undertaken to
confirm operational sound and
vibration significant effects that
will include further baseline
monitoring and the
consideration of addition
mitigation. This should all be
detailed in the final ES and
having regard to the comments
above.

3.6 Water resources and flood risk assessment

Detailed design, but no real information. There is no justification of tunnel
impacts on groundwater or de-watering on archaeology.

Page 55



CDC is concerned that the business case and earlier consultation
documentation gave minimal regard to the challenge of potential flood risk and
this still remains insufficiently dealt with.

CDC believes that a number of issues must be considered in more detail
including:
e A full flood risk assessment of the river crossings required and the
diversions that may be appropriate.
e The impacts on aquifers and in the Cherwell District case vulnerable
flood risk areas.
e Impacts on rivers, streams and ponds and in particular an assessment
of historic and environmentally.
e Compliance with the Water Framework Directive and the need to
maintain high water quality.
e The potential for use/need for demountable flood defences and their
cost impacts.

CDC has particular concerns about the need for the Water Framework
Directive to be respected.

Cherwell District is a high water quality area by virtue of being located at the
top of the river catchment area. We note that under Article 4.7 of the Water
Framework Directive there should be no diminution of that high water
standard whereby development cannot reduce the quality of an areas water
from ‘high’ to ‘good’ without meeting the provisions of the article, which is in
the 2003 UK Act that transposed the EU Directive into UK law.

CDC has seen no evidence of how this challenge has been addressed.

Whilst the ES maps the flood plains (Padbury Brook north of Godington, the
River Great Ouse north of Mixbury/Fulwell, and its small tributary running from
Fulwell towards Mixbury) and comments briefly on the aquifer situation the
documentation is short on detail information and impact assessment. This will
need to follow in the Environmental Statement if the application is to proceed.
However, with particular regard to the protection of water quality this makes
assessment at this time difficult. This part of Cherwell, together with the
adjacent areas of Aylesbury Vale and South Northamptonshire is a high water
quality area by virtue of its position at the top of the river catchment area.

Article 4.7 of the Water Framework Directive states that there can be no
diminution of that high water standard from high to good as a result of
development without meeting the provisions of that Article.

CDC has seen no evidence of how this challenge has been addressed.

3.7 Community

The impact of the new railway upon residential amenity is greater than the
imposition of noise nuisance at whatever level it is experienced. It is also the

Page 56



affect upon the tranquility of a rural location, or the interruption of a rural
landscape by modern transportation infrastructure. This impact affects
communities/properties such as:

e Godington — A remote village accessed off of a dead end lane. The
village which contains 15-20 properties, is tranquil and unaffected by
road noise. It will in the future, if this proposal goes ahead, have
significant train noise albeit that the trains will not be visible.

e Newton Purcell — A small village astride the A4421 the
noise/disturbance and division by a road carrying relatively high
volumes of HGV and other traffic transiting from the A34/M40 to Milton
Keynes and the M1. The imposition of frequent train noise is an
unreasonable extra burden.

e Warren Farm/The Oaks Farm — A secluded group of former farm
buildings and working farm north of the A421. The proposed line
charges between them in low cutting. The noise, visibility of the
overhead lines/tops of trains and the accommodation works to ensure
that the private access road is maintained will have a significant affect
upon the whole group, especially The Oaks Farm which will be very
close to the line.

e Mixbury — A Conservation Area, which is predominately an old estate
village. Despite the relatively close proximity of the A43 and A421
roads the village is relatively tranquil. The train noise which will be
apparent will detract from this heritage asset and the residential
amenity of villages.

e Fulwell — A remote hamlet in a secluded and tranquil location. Concern
is expressed that sudden noise events will result from the proposed
track configuration near Mixbury, and longer noise occurrences from
the River Great Ouse viaducts which are both up-wind of the hamlet.

Community Integrity — This is an issue where a community is sub-divided by
transport infrastructure. It is considered that this is a significant concern in
two locations. Firstly, at Newton Purcell -the few properties to the north of the
proposed railway line will be segregated from the remainder of the village if
the existing route under the Great Central Railway is to be blocked and a long
and circuitous journey by foot or vehicle is necessary to get from these
properties to the Church, public house, or other houses. This is unfortunate
and at the very least consideration should be given to providing a footpath
connection under the line.

The second location of concern is at Warren Farm/The Oaks Farm north of
the A421. These isolated properties form a small integrated grouping. The
railway will split them apart, and unless the accommodation works for the
access is well done they will feel dislocated from one another, and the Warren
Farm set of properties will be further removed from the main road

Page 57



3.8 Impacts on Local Conservation and Heritage
The Draft ES offers very limited information on this issue.

Historic significance must inform the strategic choices about route alignment.
We need a clear recognition of historically sensitive areas. We expect to see a
deeper process of character assessment to identify significance and to ensure
mitigation is appropriate and sufficient, but where this cannot be secured that
compensation is of a scale proportionate to the loss.

The Draft ES overview itself contains very little information regarding the
potential impacts on any heritage assets and is actually more of a scoping
report setting out what the final EIA will contain. However the Community
Forum Area reports do contain an assessment of the potential impact of this
scheme.

In general this is acceptable however there are two omissions that will need to
be highlighted in the final document.

Section 6.4.7 Non-designated assets: The area from Mixbury to the Brackley
has seen little formal archaeological investigation and therefore there is the
potential for previously unknown archaeological features and deposits to be
present which would be disturbed by this development.

The Area report should therefore highlight the potential for previously
unknown buried archaeological remains along the proposed route.

Understanding and defining a heritage asset involves more than simply
recording the appearance of that asset and drawing a line around it on a map.

The character of a historic place is the sum of all its attributes. These include:
its relationship with people, now and through time; its visual aspects; and the
features, materials, and spaces associated with its history, including its
original configuration and subsequent losses and changes.

The context of a historic place embraces any relationship between it and other
places, which are relevant to its heritage values. These relationships can be
cultural, intellectual, spatial or functional and apply irrespective of distance,
extending well beyond what might be considered a place’s setting. As well as
a place’s relationship with its immediate physical surroundings, context can
include the relationship of one historic asset to other assets of the same
period, or serving the same function, or designed by the same architect, no
matter where they are situated.

Placing a slightly different construction on the term ‘context’, it can also be
seen that all new developments have a context that includes the character of
the historic place within which it is located and the settings of adjacent
heritage assets. It also includes taking account of other attributes including
the relationship of the asset with their surroundings and their setting.

Page 58



The desirability of protecting the settings of important heritage assets is well
established in UK statute and in national policy guidance. Sections 16(2) and
66(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
refer to setting with Section 66(1) stating that:

“In considering whether to grant planning permission for development which
affects a listed building or its setting, the local planning authority or, as the
case may be, the Secretary of State shall have special regard to the
desirability of preserving the building or its setting or any features of special
architectural or historic interest which it possesses”

The importance attached to setting is also recognised by the Government’s
Planning Policy Statements with the general requirement to enhance and
protect the historic environment, landscape, and townscape character, being
set out in Planning Policy Statement 1: Delivering Sustainable Development
(ODPM 2005).

National planning policy on development affecting the setting of heritage
assets follows this and is set out in detail in Planning Policy Statement 5:
Planning for the Historic Environment (PPS5). Policy HE9 of that document
confirms that the significance of a designated heritage asset can be harmed
or lost through development within its setting and sets out the basis on which
local planning authorities should weigh the public benefit of a proposal against
the harm to an asset’s significance, including through development within its
setting.

The importance of protecting the setting of heritage assets is also recognised
internationally. For example, in the Xi'an Declaration (ICOMOS 2005), which
recognises the importance of protecting the settings of heritage structures,
sites or areas, and in the Washington Charter (ICOMOS, 1987), which
underlines how important it is that new development reflects the historic
character and functions of urban areas, the relationship between buildings
and green spaces, and the relationship of the town to its surrounding setting.

More locally Article 3 of the European Union Environmental Impact
Assessment Directive (85/337/EEC as amended by 97/11/EC and
2003/35/EC) requires the appropriate identification, description and
assessment of the direct and indirect effects of projects on - inter alia -
landscape, material assets and cultural heritage.

Article 4 of the Directive stipulates that where consideration of cases is being
undertaken to determine whether Annex Il projects should be subject to an
environmental assessment, selection criteria (Annex IllI) should have due
regard to the environmental sensitivity of ‘landscapes of historical, cultural or
archaeological significance’.

Appendix E to the Directive includes the following subjects to be considered in
scoping and preparing an Environmental Statement:

Page 59



o Effects of the development on the architectural and historic heritage,
archaeological features, and other human artefacts, e.g. through
pollutants, visual intrusion, vibration.

e Visual effects of the development on the surrounding area, visitor and
resident populations and landscape.

The information that has been considered so far as part of the HS2
consultation and business case is limited in this regard by being concerned
with pollutant impacts and does not appear to fully grasp the significance of
the heritage assets and the issues surrounding their conservation.

The character and setting of historic places are clearly of importance with
setting being defined in Annex 2 of Planning Policy Statement 5: Planning for
the Historic Environment (PPS5) as:

“...the surroundings in which an asset is experienced. All heritage assets have
a setting, irrespective of the form in which they survive and whether they are
designated or not. Elements of a setting may make a positive or negative
contribution to the significance of an asset, may affect the ability to appreciate
that significance, or may be neutral. “

Setting is generally more extensive than curtilage, and its perceived extent
may change as an asset and its surroundings evolve or as understanding of
the asset improves. Setting embraces all of the surroundings (land, sea,
structures, features and skyline) from which the asset can be experienced or
that can be experienced from the asset. Setting does not have a fixed
boundary: construction of a distant but high building, a development
generating noise, odour, vibration or dust over a wide area, or a new
understanding of a relationship between neighbouring places may extend
what might previously have been understood to comprise its setting.

The setting of a heritage asset is also likely to include a variety of views of,
across, or including that asset. In this regard HS2 raises particular challenges
for a District with many Conservation Areas and Listed buildings where setting
is as significant as the form of the building or buildings themselves.

Setting relates not only to buildings but also to areas and whole settlements.
With paragraph 1.5 of Planning Policy Guidance 2: Green belts (DETR 2001)
making it clear that historic settlements are regarded as having a setting.

This can be clearly seen in relation to the settlements of Cherwell District
where individual assets of various types and designation interrelate to create
interesting locations and places of significance. It is in such locations that
additional values arise from seeing the assets as a group where the
significance of the whole is greater than the sum of its parts. These are often
the cumulative result of a long history of development and the gradual accrual
of aesthetic and communal values.

The route of the proposed HS2 will undoubtedly have an impact on the setting
of a number of heritage assets both within and beyond the district of Cherwell

Page 60



District. This impact is unlikely to be positive and a greater understanding of
the impact of the route on the district heritage asset is needed before the
proposals progress.

3.8.1 Conservation and heritage impacts on Cherwell District

The consultation underplays the significance of local designations of
Conservation Areas. There are a number of local heritage sites that stand to
be affected by the implementation of the route of HS2 in Cherwell District.

The historic aspects of the environment are a key part of the quality of places.
But conservation and heritage is not just about nationally registered heritage
sites. Conservation Areas are a substantial part of the character of Cherwell
District and give it the form that we see today. Respecting the place of
Conservation Areas will require a substantial package of mitigation.

There has been no obvious effort made by HS2 to maintain the local character
of the conservation areas affected in the District.

CDC is concerned at the potential for major blight effects from the line and
associated infrastructure on historic buildings and their wider context. One
lesson from HS1 was the importance of understanding proximity, alignment
and visual impact. The cumulative impact of development and the impact of
development is a major concern for CDC and especially in those areas where
there is an apparent hotspot of sensitivity.

Heritage issues concern listed buildings (detail on characterisations and their
relative importance), historic fields and archaeology. We are concerned at the
impact on setting that can make a listed building ‘unviable’ and so may require
moving. Archaeology needs to be integrated into the development and
construction programme which is not now an optional extra following the
publication of the new Government Planning guidance set out in the revised
PPS5, as discussed earlier. These considerations must begin early in the
scheme when service diversions are planned to commence.

CDC is seriously concerned about the cumulative impact of the proposed HS2
scheme on a number of sensitive conservation and heritage landscapes,
villages and buildings.

The Cherwell District Conservation Strategy is a fundamental first step to
‘preserving what is special about the district’ and ensuring that its exceptional
heritage is recognised, valued, enhanced, explained and made accessible to
as many people as possible. It sets out the Council’'s responsibilities and
aspirations for the historic environment within the district, the resources that
are available to it and a programme for how it intends to undertake this task
over the next five years.

The key objective for the strategy is to protect what is special in Cherwell

District’s historic built environment by preventing loss, managing change
effectively, promoting understanding and contributing to sustainable

Page 61



development. The strategy also reflects a range of national, regional and local
policies affecting our heritage and is a framework for Cherwell District Council
for how it will manage the historic environment of the district whilst allowing
the growth and for the vitality of our towns and villages to be strengthened.

Historic character must inform the strategic choices about route alignment.
We need a clear recognition of historically sensitive areas. We expect to see a
deeper process of character assessment to identify significance and to ensure
mitigation is appropriate and sufficient, but where this cannot be secured that
compensation is of a scale proportionate to the loss.

As a generality the ES significantly underplays the significance of local
designation such as conservation areas. Grade |l buildings are recorded, but
in our opinion an assessment of their significance should be made and so
should an assessment of the impact of the proposal upon them.

The issues of concern are:

e Mixbury Conservation Area should have been recognised as a heritage
asset.

e Mixbury also has a Grade II* listed building and the Beaumont Castle
Scheduled Monument. It is assumed that English Heritage have been
asked for their comments upon the setting of the Scheduled Ancient
Monument.

e There are two Grade Il listed building in Godington, 8 in Newton Purcell
and 4 in Mixbury which should be taken into account.

3.5 Impacts on the Local Economy

The line of the proposed HS2 route stands to impact on the rural economy of
the north east of Cherwell District.

The rural economy of Cherwell District is substantial and includes village
shops, rural businesses and business units, farming, equestrian and market
garden businesses.

CDC is working to maintain rural communities that are sustainable, vibrant
and thriving. We aim to strengthen our village economies to help make them
more sustainable. Through the implementation of our Economic Development
Strategy we are promoting tourism into our villages through our Tourism
Guide and the promotion of walking, cycling and equestrian activities to draw
people to the villages increasing the footfall for village based enterprises and
to maintain the current high levels of rural employment.

CDC have sought through our planning and conservation policies to retain
village confines and preserve landscape setting as well as maintaining and
extending the coverage of existing conservation area designations, protection
of listed buildings, historic houses, parks and gardens, scheduled ancient
monuments and landscape designations as they all have the potential to form
a part of a new green tourism approach for the District. All this stands to be
put at risk by the proposed HS2 route.

Page 62



The ‘preferred route option’ for HS2 raises substantial policy implications for
development in the open countryside.

The rural economy is about more than just those employed in farming and
includes home based businesses, secondary employment and associated
rural industries in our market towns.

The direct impact from HS2 on land based businesses; both farming and
equestrian are expected to include:
e Separated fields.
Separated fixed machinery.
Loss of farm land for production and secondary food processing.
The potential for the loss of access routes along bridle paths and lanes.
In the case of equestrian businesses the impact of visual and noise
intrusions affecting sensitive and valuable horses.
e A substantial impact from blight and the need for early compensation
and avoiding lengthy payments.

No assessments have been included of the socio-economic impact. Some
businesses will be lost. It is not acceptable that is addressed by off-setting
jobs and is therefore not significant (i.e. replace 1 technical consultancy jobs
with 1 groundworker). The jobs that are created, how local they will be, i.e. will
the contractors just be bringing in lots of workers along the line as it is built?

The line of the proposed HS2 route stands to impact substantially on the rural
economy of the west of Cherwell District.

The rural economy of Cherwell District is substantial and includes village
shops, rural businesses and business units, farming, equestrian and market
garden businesses.

It is unacceptable to state that the significant socio-economic affects are
currently being assessed and will only be reported in the final ES.

In short, it is impossible to make a full judgement on the anticipated impact
until the final ES is produced, assuming that the later document will go into
considerably more detail.

In much the same way as a motorway it is possible that a new railway line
may cut off one part of a farmer’s land from the rest of his land or his
farmstead. It has not been possible to establish whether this type of impact is
likely, but it is known that in some locations the farmers make use of the
former railway to transit between parts of their holdings. It may be necessary
to consider if further accommodation bridges or underpasses are necessary to
ensure the continuation of those farm enterprises without detriment to their
viability. Such bridges may of course add to the visual harm of the railway by
introducing yet more transport infrastructure into open landscape.

Page 63



There are storage activities being undertaken on the old station site at Newton
Purcell and the proposed alignment and the overbridge for the A4421 seems
to eliminate this as a business enterprise.

The proximity of the line to the farmhouse at The Oaks Farm seems to call
into question it's viability as a dwelling. It is believed that this is the only
house associated with this farm business. If this enterprise cannot function
without a dwelling it may be necessary to fundamentally change the farming
enterprise, or to consider the construction of a replacement dwelling further
from the line.

The economic benefits of the scheme for the District are likely to be
insignificant locally.

It is anticipated that there will be a progressive shift of the economic
geography to the area surrounding the location of the proposed stations which
over time may undermine the economic advantages the District has in terms
of major transport links due to its access to the M1, M40 and the A422.

There are set to be a significant set of local economic impacts from the
preferred route option of HS2, from disruption during the lengthy construction
phase and the direct impacts of the route on businesses close to the line.

A more precise economic impact analysis of HS2 on local businesses is
required.

3.9.1 Impact of Development on Open Countryside

There are long established national policy objectives for the consideration of
development in rural areas, as now set out in the National Planning Policy
Framework ( for example paras109, 114, 118).

The the chosen route for HS2 is likely to have a negative impact as the
construction and appearance of the railway with its associated facilities and
service paraphernalia will detract from the qualities of the landscape which
make this district special. This has been set out at Section 3.4 above

3.10 Traffic and Transport

No traffic assessment is included and there is no tangible detail or baseline. .
CDC is encouraged that the impact on the footpath or bridleway network has
been minimised, but the impact on the highways network of the proposed
scheme looks substantial.

A number of strategic highways and local roads will need to be bridged Sites
that are split will require new road access to the road network. Of particular

importance will be the crossing over the A4421 near Newton Purcell (and the
disruption during construction).

Page 64



We also wish to ensure that the design of any bridges is to a higher standard
than that delivered on the HS1 project, to be of a less visually intrusive design
than were provided for HS1. Landscape sensitivity is a major issue for the
District. CDC is encouraged that Engineers have confirmed that coloured
concrete infrastructure is being considered.

Careful blending of tones and use of locally sourced facings could significantly
reduce the blight caused by standard white concrete architecture which, as
the local planning authority, we will not accept under any circumstances.

Whilst it is clear that the trunk and major roads network, in particular the A43,
A421,and A4421 and access to the M40 will be impacted by the project, the
lack of transport assessments or clarity about how spoil is removed and
ballast is imported to the construction sites is unclear and in turn unhelpful.

While there is no specific section relating to PRoW issues we are pleased to
note that in CFA Report 14 — Newton Purcell to Brackley] the impacts of the
scheme are considered in relation to a number of key areas: construction,
community, noise, sound and vibration, visual assessment and traffic &
transport. There are is also a table outlining the length of the proposed
diversions [2.3.26 pg.22 — Chapter 13] and statements regarding the use of
temporary diversions during construction under 12.5.2 pg. 85 [Chapter 13].
Mitigation and reducing the impact during and post construction is considered
alongside more ‘major’ issues e.g. road closures and as a consequence is
fully integrated in the scheme plan, rather than an ‘add on’ which can then
impact on other aspects of the scheme delivery or ignored altogether.

Progressing from south to north the following highway crossings are affected
by the proposals:

a) Bridlepath north of Godington — currently passes under Great Central
line by underbridge — would need to be accommodated under the new
viaduct.

b) A4421 Newton Purcell Road currently passes under Great Central line
with redundant bridges still in place. Proposal appears to be to leave
underbridge but stop through traffic under new line (?). New overbridge with
lengthy approach embankments and diversion of line of A4421 to west
proposed.

C) Bridlepath from Home Farm Shelswell to Finmere crosses line of old
railway. No accommodation works shown. Bridge would be required.

d) Bridlepath from Widmore Farm to Finmere crosses line of old railway.
No accommodation works shown. Bridge would be required.

e) A421 near Warren Farm. Relatively recent diversion of road south of

old bridge point on embankment. Old bridge works remain. New bridge
proposed still further south. Unclear what happens to old bridge works.

Page 65



f) Footpath from Tibbetts Farm to Warren Farm alongside (north) of
former railway line. Will need accommodation works associated with (g)
below.

g) Roadway from Mixbury Lodge to Fulwell. Current overbridge over
dismantled railway will need to be replaced.

h)  Bridlepaths north from Beaumont Lodge and north east from Mixbury
Lodge meet and continue to Westbury. The meeting point will be at a deep
cutting point on new line. Will need overbridge.

It is considered important to ensure that all existing footpaths and bridlepaths

are properly accommodated during construction of, and after the opening of,
any new railway line. The Council recalls that during the M40 construction
(another government promoted scheme) a large number of footpaths were
truncated or had significant diversions made to them. These were never
replaced satisfactorily. Objections are raised if assurances are not
forthcoming that this will not be repeated as a function of this scheme

Of particular concern are the proposals relating to the routeing of the A4421
across the proposed railway at Newton Purcell. Rather than take the road
under the railway as currently the proposal is to divert the road over the line
further to the west. No explanation has been given as to why it is not possible
to continue with an underbridge. Because of the height of the line relative to
surrounding land levels the proposed bridge has to be approached via lengthy
and high embankments.  These would be harmful to the character and
appearance of the landscape. The embankments will also have a significant
impact upon the amenity of the two houses on the western side of the A4421
at this point. Indeed it must be questioned whether these will be viable
houses after this construction, particularly that one to the south of the railway
line, Station House, which will be dominated by the new railway and road
infrastructure and suffer high noise levels. The raising of the road will also
have the effect of raising the road noise source and may have an effect upon
the amenity of the houses in the vicinity. The plans available do not make it
plain whether the existing roadway under the railway will remain open.

The amenity of rural footpaths and bridleways will be fundamentally affected
by the proposal. The footpath north of Godington has a particularly remote
and tranquil feel to it. This will be lost completely. Similarly the two
footpaths/bridleways north and east of Mixbury, which form part of a well used
dog-walking loop, will have an entirely different character once the railway is
constructed. They will no longer be a source of tranquil remote recreation, but
will instead be subjected to the frequent passage of trains travelling at
maximum speed. Again similar expressions of concern should be expressed
about the footpaths which cross or are close to the line between Mixbury and
Newton Purcell.

3.11 Impacts on Utilities and Services

Page 66



A large proportion of the route is at or below current ground level and has the
potential to be a major disturbance to the water table and its natural
environment.

Large areas of land adjacent to the route will also need significant re-
engineering of both the natural and man-made water courses. This re-routing
and associated penalty costs will also run into many millions and risk
damaging the delicate eco-systems during construction. These natural
systems may not return to their pre-interference state for many years, if at all.

The extent of the disruption to utilities (gas, water, electric and fibre-optic) has
not been identified. Reinstatement of the existing utilities should not be
underestimated and can be expected to exceed tens of £1000’s per route mile
(EM’s for the entire route).

Page 67



5. Response to the Draft Code of Construction
Impact during construction

CDC is concerned with ensuring that the impact during construction is
minimised and that contractors do not introduce changes we have not agreed
to.

CDC will play close attention to the breadth of ‘permissive provisions’ and
deemed consents to ensure all impacts are anticipated and planned for. CDC
notes the high standards of design and construction impact minimisation
achieved during the construction of the London Cross Rail scheme and expect
a similar sensitive approach to be taken were the HS2 scheme to be
approved.

The Council have proposed that the Cherwell Local Plan (currently at Pre-
submission stage) includes provisions for considering the HS2 proposa, ,as
follows

Policy SLE 5: High Speed Rail 2 - London to Birmingham

The design and construction of the High Speed 2 Rail Link must minimise
adverse impacts on the environment, the local economy and Ilocal
communities and maximise any benefits that arise from the

proposal.

The implementation of HS2 will also be expected to:

e Deliver high quality design to protect communities and the environment
from noise and visual intrusion

e Manage the construction to minimise the impact on communities and
the environment

e Adopt sustainable procurement and construction methods
e Minimise adverse social and economic impacts, by maintaining
accessibility and avoiding the severance of communities and
agricultural holdings
e Ensure that community and other benefits are fully realised.
If the decision is taken to proceed with HS2 Cherwell District Council will
expect any impacts on the District to take account of all the above elements
as an absolute minimum requirement.

Our concerns centre on:

e The potential size of noise panels and intrusive concrete screening to
baffle noise and not delivering the noise reduction sought.

Page 68



e The overhead cabling generating additional noise..

e The use of cuttings to reduce noise, which in an area such as Cherwell
District with a geological structure that is primarily clay will lead to
shallow sided cuttings and a greater noise effect than occurs with steep
sided cuttings where the noise is funnelled upwards.

e The impact of vibration from the route. (We are aware that vibration has
been an issue for residential properties at Bluebell Hill on the HS1
route in Kent, where the line sits in a deep tunnel in chalk)

The experience of the HS1 route through Kent illustrates that the nature of
noise attenuation matters both for how noise is reduced and for how intrusive
the scheme is visually.

Other noise issues concern a) Construction noise & vibration and b)
Operational noise & vibration.

The impacts include:
¢ Noise from fixed installations
¢ Line Maintenance
¢ Reradiated noise from tunnels

We expect mitigation to consider:
¢ Route alignments
e Location of planned tunnels and additional ones
e Location, depth and cut of cuttings

Page 69 o3



e Location of barriers and sound insulation
e Potential for relocation during construction

Cuttings are the cheapest option for developers but maximise environmental
impact.

Cut and Cover is a compromise between a cutting and tunnel. The “Cut and
Cover” approach is suggested in the Route Engineering report for some
communities along the route. The experience of HS1 has shown that cut and
cover options can be an effective compromise between cost and community
concerns, but raises substantial issues of the level of disruption to be
generated during construction.

CDC wish to ensure that the impact during construction is minimised and that
contractors do not introduce changes we have not agreed to.

CDC will play close attention to the breadth of ‘permissive provisions’ and
deemed consents to ensure all impacts are anticipated and planned for. CDC
notes the high standards of design and construction impact minimisation
achieved during the construction of the London Cross Rail scheme and expect
a similar sensitive approach to be taken were the HS2 scheme to be
approved.

If the final parliamentary decision is taken to proceed with HS2, Cherwell

District Council will expect any impacts on the District to take account of all
the above elements as an absolute minimum requirement.

Page 70 o4



6. Conclusion

Cherwell District Council is extremely concerned that the Draft Environmental
Statement is just one-tenth of the size of the anticipated final ES
(approximately 5000 and 50,000 pages respectively). Further, that the
majority of the critical baseline data, on which to assess actual impacts is
omitted from the Draft. It is therefore extremely difficult to comment on the
anticipated end result without this foundation of baseline data.

To add to these facts, there will not be an opportunity to respond to the final
document other than through petitioning, an action which is simply not an
option for the vast majority of those affected.

If the scheme is confirmed by Parliament, it needs to become an exemplar
scheme worthy of the nation, particularly as it is the latest transport
infrastructure project in UK history. As it stands it will fundamentally &
permanently alter communities to the detriment and needs to be radically
redesigned.

As a result no confidence can be placed in the results at this point in time and
Cherwell District Council questions the value of the draft ES and consultation.

Page 71



10. Contacts

Adrian Colwell — Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy
Bob Duxbury — Development Control Team Leader

Cherwell District Council
Bodicote House

Oxon

OX15 4AA

8th July 2013

Page 72



Agenda ltem 7

Executive

District-wide programme of Article 4 Directions
to protect Heritage Interest.

2 September 2013

Report of Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To consider the introduction of a District wide programme of Article 4 Directions to
preserve the Character and Appearance of Areas with Heritage Significance.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1) To approve the process of rolling-out a programme of Article 4 Directions.

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1 The Town & Country Planning Act (General Permitted Development) Order
1995 (GPDO) sets out the options (‘rights’) for certain minor development,
including some alterations, extensions and improvements to domestic
buildings to be carried out without the need for planning permission. Such
work is known as 'permitted development'.

1.2 Within certain areas, including conservation areas and areas of outstanding
natural beauty, these permitted development rights are automatically
reduced so that certain work requires planning permission. However, they
are not removed altogether and a significant amount of development can still
be carried out without the need for planning permission.

1.3 Experience has shown that the accumulation of minor works can have a
significant impact on the character and appearance of conservation areas
and other areas of heritage significance in the district.

1.4  Local Planning Authorities have the option of making a direction under Article
4 of the GPDO to reduce permitted development rights. The effect of an

Page 73



1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

Article 4 Direction is not that development within the particular category of
development cannot be carried out, but that it is no longer automatically
permitted by Article 3 of the General Development Order.

The result of the Direction is that any works covered by it will now require
planning permission and the submission of a formal planning application. No
fee is payable for planning applications required solely as a result of this
Direction. There would be the usual right of appeal against any refusal of
permission or the imposition of conditions. Article 4 Directions are there to
manage the detrimental effect of the many small changes to unlisted
buildings.

The intention of an Article 4 Direction is to ensure that any significant
changes are subject to planning control, thus allowing for public comment on
the proposals and for the local authority to assess their impact on the
character and appearance of the conservation area or other areas that have
heritage significance.

Background Information

Cherwell District Council has a responsibility under the National Planning
Policy Framework (NPPF) to maintain and manage change to the built
heritage in a way that sustains and, where appropriate, enhances its
significance. Significance being the value of the built heritage to this and
future generations because of its inherent interest. That interest may be
archaeological, architectural, artistic or historic.

The significance and integrity of an area is derived from the contributions
made by all aspects of the heritage - buildings, structures, boundaries and
spaces — to the whole. Buildings that contribute to this significance can be
listed or non-designated, vernacular or terrace properties within rural and
urban settlements. Significance derives not only from the physical presence of
a structure/ historic asset, but also from the integrity of its appearance and its
setting.

In particular Paragraph 126 of the NPPF points out that Local Planning
Authorities should recognise that heritage assets are an irreplaceable
resource and conserve them in a manner appropriate to their significance.
Account should be taken of:

o The wider social, cultural, economic and environmental benefits that
conservation of the historic environment can bring; and

o Opportunities to draw on the contribution made by the historic
environment to the character of a place.

Paragraph 132 of the NPPF affirms that significance can be harmed or lost
through alteration or destruction of the heritage asset or development within
its setting.

Paragraph 137 of the NPPF observes that Local Planning Authorities should
look for opportunities to enhance or better reveal the significance of the
heritage. Proposals that preserve those elements of the setting that make a
positive contribution to or better reveal the significance of the asset should be
treated favourably.

Page 74



1.12

The effectiveness of Article 4 Directions in curbing loss of historic character
and appearance within conservation areas is outlined by English Heritage
(Guidance on making Article 4 Directions, 2010; Understanding Place:
Conservation Area Designation, Appraisal and Management, 2011).
Government guidance has also been issued
(https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/replacement-appendix-d-to-
department-of-the-environment-circular-09-95).

Research by the  English Historic  Towns  Forum  (2009)
(http://www.historictownsforum.org/node/318) has shown that 81% of local
planning authorities have Article 4 directions for one or more of their
conservation areas.

In the light of the guidance available Oxford Archaeology undertook an
extensive survey of the whole district in 2012 on behalf of Cherwell District
Council, to assess the potential for Article 4 Directions. A list of indentified
buildings whose contribution to the collective character and appearance of the
areas of heritage value in which they are located could be better protected
has been drawn up.

Operational Details and Impact

1.15

The aim of Article 4 Directions is to ensure the significance of an area or
heritage asset is not eroded by piecemeal change which in itself does not
require consent. Directions for the most part are tailored to an area with
identified significance. A conservation area is ‘an area of special architectural
or historic interest, the character or appearance of which it is desirable to
preserve or enhance’. It therefore follows logically that the serving of Article 4
Directions within conservation areas can directly contribute to the
preservation of local features and characteristics.

Article 4 Directions should be targeted at preserving the character and
appearance of a particular locality (either within or outside a conservation
area) and in most instances will solely cover proposed works to the
front/highway elevation of a building. Article 4 Directions are not retrospective.

Examples of the types of work that can be covered by a direction are set out
below (although within conservation areas some of these works are already
subject to control). Directions apply only to dwelling houses, as flats,
commercial premises, shops and offices do not have the permitted
development rights associated with dwelling houses. An Article 4 Direction,
therefore, will bring certain controls on residential houses into line with those
other properties.

o Alterations to windows that will affect the historical significance of the
building;

o Alterations to doors that will affect the historical significance of the
building;

o Alterations to roofs including the replacement of natural stone flags or
slate with concrete tile;

o Alterations of roofing alignment and insertion of dormers and rooflights;

Page 75



1.20

o The erection of renewable technology including solar panels;
o Installation of TV aerials or satellite dishes;

o The cladding, painting, rendering or re-rendering of properties;
o The erection of porches;

o The inappropriate replacement of original rainwater goods, or the addition
of external drainage etc.;

o The erection or alteration of fascia boards;
o The alteration, erection, rendering or removal of chimneys;

o The erection, alteration, rendering or removal of boundary walls, fences or
railings and gates;

o Creation or alteration of hard standing areas.

The hypothetical example of the application of an Article 4 Direction would be
a non-listed but traditional stone cottage (identified as a heritage asset) in a
village high street in close proximity to listed buildings. The village is also
designated a conservation area. An Article 4 Direction to control window
replacement, erection of satellite dishes and solar panels on the front
elevation of the building would invite a planning application for such work.
Such an application would be open to public comment and would provide an
opportunity for the Local Planning Authority to negotiate a solution that would
both enable the household to access the modern technology whilst preserving
the integrity and rural appearance of the village high street and the setting of
the listed buildings.

There will be additional workload created, but experience of other local
planning authorities has been that the programme of directions should be
rolled out where those areas which need greatest protection and/or will incur
the least workload first.

Article 4 Directions are not new to the district; Balscote, Kidlington, Mollington
and Wroxton all have Article 4 Directions. In the case of Wroxton this direction
is extensive requiring all works, whether improvements or extensions, to
require planning permission.

Implementation Options

1.21

1.22

If we assume that a programme of Article 4 Directions is to be implemented
then a successful strategy for the rolling out of this programme is required.
There are two options:

o A gradual programme of implementation is adopted, with groups of
settlements being identified with a sequence of implementation dates; or

o A district-wide directive for identified buildings is authorised on a single
date.

The NPPF (Paragraph 200) specifies that Article 4 Directions should be

specific to ensure the protection of the ‘wellbeing’ of the local environment
and that Directions require justification. Therefore a gradual roll-out strategy

Page 76



1.23

with public consultation is preferred.

By engaging the local public, the Design and Conservation team can ensure
that:

o The importance of this implementation can be made on a settlement-by-
settlement basis.

o The NPPF is complied with.

o It reinforces relationships and communication with local communities and
amenity societies.

o It provides a mechanism where the Article 4 Direction programme can be
successfully implemented district-wide within a given period of time (in this
case two years).

Roll Out Scheme - Initially

1.24

1.25

1.26

The settlements within the district have been allocated to one of four
categories. The criterion for inclusion within any one group is the level of
anticipated additional applications that would result as a result of any
Direction.

See Annex A for the proposed list of settlements and the types of Direction
anticipated.

The Design and Conservation Team plans to start the roll out of the scheme
with a brief presentation to Parish Councils and Local Members to ensure that
the process is fully understood and bought into. Further engagement with
local communities, branches of interest groups and local historical societies
and may be undertaken if required.

Roll Out Scheme — Long Term

1.27

1.28

The proposal is to sequentially implement Directions for identified heritage
assets within groups of settlements. Settlements have been categorised into
one of four categories; 1, 2, 3 and 4.

o Category 1 settlements are generally the smaller settlements with limited
developmental pressure.

o Category 2 settlements are the larger settlements or those with
anticipated more development pressure.

o Category 3 settlements are urban conurbations or those settlements with
greater heritage pressure.

o Category 4 settlements currently do not have conservation area
designation although they still have heritage value.

In line with the procedure adopted by South Northamptonshire District Council
it is anticipated that an Article 4 Direction would be only imposed following
consultation period of, usually, 28 days and with at least 12 months notice of it
coming into force. It is proposed that following the consultation period the
Head of Strategic Planning and the Economy is delegated to sign off the

Page 77



1.29

1.30

1.31

relevant Directions, in consultation with the Lead Member. The proposal is
Directions for all category 1 villages to be implemented by the end of 2014.
Directions for category 2, 3 and 4 settlements will be implemented by the end
of 2015.

Once implemented, the information on the Directions will be made available
through the Cherwell District Council website, on our GIS system and on the
Cherwell Maps.

After the initial roll out, the Directions programme will be reviewed and up
dated on a regular basis. This review will form part of the conservation area
assessment process for those directions located within conservation area and
quinquennially for all others.

Conclusion

The National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF) requires local authorities to
ensure that local heritage is protected. This is done by understanding local
heritage assets and managing change to ensure that the significance is not
harmed. The criteria for Article 4 Directions are therefore straight-forward and
transparent to aid both Cherwell District Council and the local community in
managing local heritage assets appropriately thereby ensuring that their
significance is not harmed.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

2.1

To approve the rolling out of an Article 4 Directions programme.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendation is
believed to be the best way forward

Option One To accept the programme of Article 4 Directions with

phased implementation.

Option Two To decline the programme of Article 4 Directions as

described.

Consultations

There has been consultation with other Local Planning Authorities to ascertain how
other authorities have implemented similar programmes.

Implications

Financial: The cost of preparing and consulting on this document is
being met from existing resources.
Comments checked by Karen Curtin. Head of Finance
and Procurement. 0300-003-01606.

Legal: The proposal ensures that an obligation from the National

Planning Policy Framework is met.

Comments checked by Nigel Bell. Team Leader -

Page 78



Planning and Litigation 01295 221687 .

Risk Management: Lack of heritage guidance undermines the reputation of
the Council as the Planning Authority for Cherwell District
seeking high design and conservation standards.

Comments checked by Claire Taylor. Corporate
Performance Manager 01295 221563.

Wards Affected

All

Corporate Plan Themes

Corporate Theme 6: Protect and enhance the local environment

Lead Member

Councillor Michael Gibbard
Lead Member for Planning

Document Information

Annex No Title

Annex A List of conservation area and other related areas together with
potential Article 4 Directions.

Background Papers

None

Report Author Rose Todd, Senior Conservation Officer
Contact 01295 221846

Information rose.todd@btinternet.com

Page 79




Annex A. List of conservation area and other related areas together with
potential Article 4 Directions.

Conservation
Area

Type of Article 4 Direction

to be considered

Buildings
(* ‘Identified’
indicates
buildings
identified within
the Oxford
Archaeology
survey)

Introductio
n phase

Adderbury

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Ardley

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
¢ Ardley House
e Local list

Balscote

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

e Former
Methodist
Chapel

Banbury

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Page 80




Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Grimsbury
(Banbury)

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Barford st John

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

e Local list

Barford St Michael

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Begbroke

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Page 81




Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Bicester

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Bletchingdon

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Bloxham

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Bodicote

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable

¢ |dentified

e Fairholme
House Church
Street

e Methodist
Chapel East
Street

Page 82




technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Bucknell

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Caulcott

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Charlton-on-
Otmoor

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Chesterton

Boundaries
Chimneys

Doors

Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external

¢ |dentified

Page 83




drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

Claydon

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Clifton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Cottisford

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Cropredy

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e |ocal list

Page 84




Deddington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors

Meter boxes
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Drayton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Duns Tew

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Epwell (AONB)

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Page 85




Fewcott

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Finmere

Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Fringford

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Fritwell

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Great Bourton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights

¢ |dentified

Page 86




Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Hampton Gay,
Shipton-on-
Cherwell & Thrupp

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Hampton Poyle

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Hanwell

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Hardwick

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable

o |dentified

Page 87




technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Hethe

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Hook Norton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Horley

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Hornton

Boundaries
Chimneys

Doors

Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Page 88




RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

Horton cum
Studley

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Islip

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Juniper Hill

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Kidlington: church
Street, High Street,
The Rookery,
Crown Road +
Langford Lane
Wharf

Boundaries
Chimneys

Doors

Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

o |dentified
e Local list

Page 89




Satellite dishes
Windows

Kirtlington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Launton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Little Bourton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Merton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Middle Aston

Boundaries

¢ |dentified

Page 90




Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

Middleton Stoney

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Milton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Mixbury

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Mollington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Page 91




Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Milcombe

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Murcott

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Newton Purcell

Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Noke

Boundaries
Chimneys

Doors

Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external

o |dentified

Page 92




drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

North Aston

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

North Newington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Oddington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Oxford Canal

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

e Conservation
Area Appraisal

e Local list

Page 93




Piddington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

RAF Bicester

Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ Conservation
Area Appraisal/
Register of
Heritage
Assets

RAF Upper
Heyford

Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

¢ Conservation
Area Appraisal

¢ Register of
Heritage
Assets

Rousham (inc
Lower Heyford +
Upper Heyford)

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Shenington +
Alkerton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Page 94




Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Shutford

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Sibford Ferris

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Sibford Gower +
Burdrop

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Somerton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering

o |dentified
e Local list
¢ Mill Cottages

Page 95




Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Souldern

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

South Newington

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Steeple Aston

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Stoke Lyne

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable

o |dentified

Page 96




technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage

Satellite dishes
Windows

Stratton Audley

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Swalcliffe

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified

Tadmarton (Upper
& Lower)

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

o |dentified
e Local list

Wardington

Boundaries
Chimneys

Doors

Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including

o |dentified

Page 97




solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

Wendlebury

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Weston-on-the-
Green

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified
e Local list

Wigginton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

Williamscot

Boundaries
Chimneys

Doors

Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

¢ |dentified

Page 98




RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

Wroxton

completed

Yarnton

Boundaries
Chimneys
Doors
Rooflights
Rendering
Renewable
technology including
solar

RWG + external
drainage
Satellite dishes
Windows

¢ |dentified

4

Page 99




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 100



Agenda Iltem 8

Executive

Funding provision for enforcement action in connection with
Work-in-default and with bringing empty homes back into use.

2 September 2013

Report of Head of Regeneration and Housing

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To seek support in principle for the establishment, through the annual budget setting
process, of a capital budget against which the Housing and Regeneration Service
can draw when taking enforcement action to bring empty homes back into use, or
when needing to undertake Works-in-Default following the failure of a notice recipient
to comply with an enforcement notice requiring remedial works.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:

(1) To support the establishment of a capital budget, through the annual budget
setting process for 2014-15, and in successive years, that will enable
enforcement powers delegated to the Head of Regeneration to be utilised
effectively, and without the need for the necessary funding to be sought
separately in each particular case.

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1 The Council’s Constitution has delegated to the Head of Regeneration and
Housing authority to:
o Exercise powers with respect to bringing private sector empty dwellings
back into use; and
e Exercise all powers under the Housing Act 2004

1.2 Enforcement action to 1) bring empty homes back into use through the use of
Empty Dwelling Management Orders and 2) undertake Works-in-default in
cases where a notice recipient has failed to carry out specified remedial
action, is only possible if the necessary funding for that action is available.

1.3 No such budget currently exist, which means that the Head of Regeneration
of Housing is required to seek (ultimately recoverable) funding in each
particular case, even though responsibility for making those enforcement

Page 101



1.4

1.5

1.6

1.6

1.7

1.8

1.9

1.12

decisions is delegated to him. This situation not only delays enforcement
action but casts doubt over its use, since the Head Regeneration and Housing
cannot use his delegated powers effectively.

In order to facilitate effective enforcement, this report seeks to establish the
principle that a capital budget needs to be put in place and that it should be
set each year, at an appropriate level, through the annual budget setting
process.

It is anticipated that a budget of £80k-£100k will be required to allow the
expected level of enforcement activity.

The budget would not be set with particular cases in mind, but would be used
to support enforcement action as and when cases arose, and in accordance
with the Head of Regeneration and Housing’s delegated authority.

If unspent in any particular year, the budget would be returned as an under-
spend and then reset for the following year through the budget setting
process.

Capital used for empty dwelling enforcement (ie the making of Empty
Dwelling Management Orders) and for carrying out Work-in-default is
recoverable in full', so the capital budget would receive periodic income
(although this is unlikely to take place in the same year as the particular
expenditure) and may therefore be able to contribute funds back in due
course.

Proposal

That a capital budget should be established to finance housing enforcement
action; specifically the use of Empty Dwelling Management Orders (EDMOs)
and Work-in-default, and that it should be set on an annual basis through the
budget setting process.

Conclusions

The Council is under statutory duties to ensure that housing standards are
satisfactory and is required to take enforcement action in specified situations.
The use of enforcement notices is underpinned by the Council’s power to
carry out the required remedial work in default of the notice recipient, and to
recover its costs from him or her. This is called Work-in-default.

The Council also wants and expects to see long-term empty homes restored
to use and is prepared to underpin that message through the use of its
enforcement powers, particularly Empty Dwelling Management Orders.

In order to be effective the Council’'s enforcement action depends upon a
clear and consistent message from the Council that it will see enforcement
action through to a proper conclusion.

The need for enforcement funding to be sought on a case-by-case basis

' In the case of EDMOs the Council takes control and management (but not ownership) of the
property for up to 7 years and can use the rental income it receives to recover its costs
directly. When work-in-default is carried out the sum owed to the council is made a charge on
the property and recovered, with interest, at the time of next sale or transfer.

Page 102



compromises its effectiveness; whereas the establishment and availability of
a dedicated capital budget will improve decision making and efficiency.

Background Information

Empty property enforcement

21 In February 2012, following consideration of a report from the Head of
Regeneration and Housing, the Lead Member for Housing approved four
principles? as the basis for the Council’s approach to securing re-use of
empty property. The fourth of those principles was that the Council would be
prepared to take enforcement action to secure re-use of long-term empty
homes where a business case could be established. The Head of
Regeneration and Housing, in consultation with the Lead Member for
Housing, was made responsible for determining whether or not a business
case for enforcement intervention could be made.

2.2 The Council’s Private Sector Housing Team is applying the Council’s
Principles as the basis of a proactive work programme and is seeking to
engage with the owners of longer-term empty property. This work was most
recently reported to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 12 March 2013.

2.3 If informal measures fail to persuade or encourage an owner to re-use an
empty home, there are 2 possible enforcement routes available to the
Council: Compulsory Purchase using the powers provided by the Housing
Act 1985 (section 17); or the use of an Empty Dwelling Management Order
under the Housing Act 2004, which empowers the Council to take charge of
a property and to repair and let it for a period of up to 7 years (ownership is
not changed). Neither course of action has yet been employed by the
Council in relation to empty dwellings but a number of long-term empty
properties have been identified and EDMO action is being evaluated.

24 Compulsory Purchase is a process by means of which the Council takes
ownership of a property and compensates the owner at market-value.
Appeal provisions exist in relation to both the Compulsory Purchase Order
(CPO) itself (which generates a public enquiry) and in relation to the
compensation payable. Decisions regarding Compulsory Purchase are
reserved to Full-Council. It is not intended that the proposed budget will be
used in connection with CPO action.

Work-in-default

2.5 In order to ensure that enforcement involving remedial notices® is effective,
the Council is given the power to undertake the work itself and to recover its
costs (with interest) if the notice recipient fails to take the required action.
This is an important power because it allows the Council to ensure that its
notices are concluded. The possibility that Work-in-default may be required is
an implicit assumption each time a notice is served, even though it only
proves necessary in a few cases. Once the time period allowed for
completion of the required works has passed, the Council needs to take

2 The four principles are: 1) The Council wants empty homes to be used; 2) The Council will encourage
and facilitate their re-use (eg by providing advice, grants and loans); 3) The Council will take action to
resolve specific issues caused by empty homes (where powers permit) and 4) The Council will take
action to secure re-use of empty homes where a business case exists.

% ie notices requiring their recipient to undertake works

Page 103



prompt action both for the sake of its credibility and also to ensure that
health-risks inherent in unsatisfactory housing are resolved before harm or
further harm is caused.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

3.1

3.2

3.3

3.4

Members’ concern about the waste represented by long-term empty homes,
and their desire to get them back into use is underpinned and ultimately
dependent upon the Council’s preparedness to take enforcement action in
appropriate cases. It is effectively a last resort, but one that will not only get
specific properties back into use, but also demonstrate very clearly to other
owners of empty property that the Council is serious about reducing the
number of empty home in the district. Without recourse to enforcement,
where appropriate, the Council could appear toothless.

The Council is responsible for taking action to address unsatisfactory housing
conditions and uses a variety of enforcement notices to achieve that. In cases
where those notices are ignored the Council needs to be able to undertake
Work-in default to ensure compliance.

The Head of Regeneration and Housing is authorised to take empty-dwelling
enforcement action (EDMOs), to serve notices to remedy unsatisfactory
housing and to undertake Work-in-default action arising, but requires funding
to be available it that is to happen.

The most efficient and effective means of providing the necessary funding is
by establishing a specific budget and having funds in place at the beginning
of each year.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is
believed to be the best way forward

Option One Support the principle that a capital budget should be

established so as to facilitate and enable effective housing
enforcement action; and also support the principle that
this budget should be determined, on an annual basis,
through the budget setting process.

Option Two Decline to support this approach and require the Head of

Regeneration and Housing to seek funding, on a case by
case basis, by means of reports to the Executive (as is
currently the situation).

Page 104



Consultations

None

Implications

Financial: Since this report seeks support in principle, it raises no
financial implications. The proposed budget can be
considered at the budget setting stage for 2014-15

Comments checked by Karen Curtin, Head of Finance and
Procurement 01295 221634

Legal: There are no legal implications associated with this report
or in connection with the proposed budget should it be
established.

Comments checked by Richard Hawtin, Team Leader
Property and Contracts 01295 221695

Wards Affected

Implications for all Wards.

Corporate Plan Themes

Cherwell: A district of opportunity
Cherwell: An accessible, value for money Council

Lead Member

Councillor Pickford
Lead Member for Housing

Document Information

Appendix No Title

None

Background Papers

None

Report Author Tim Mills, Private Sector Housing Manager

Contact 01295 221655
Information Tim.mills@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 105




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 106



Agenda ltem 9

Executive

South West Bicester Sports Village Progress Update
2 September 2013

Report of Head of Community Services

PURPOSE OF REPORT

To give Members a progress report on the Bicester Sports Village project.

This report is Public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:
(1) To note the progress on the construction of Phase 1 (grass pitches, cycle

track and landscaping) and the progress on the procurement process for
Phase 2 (design and construction of a pavilion and car park)

Executive Summary

1.1 At the Executive meeting in June Members considered an update report on
the South West Bicester Sports Village project and requested officers to
provide progress reports to future meetings.

1.2 Details of progress are set out below. In summary the grass pitch works for
phase 1 are now complete with cycle track works about to commence.
Phase 2 and 3 procurement is in progress with timetable for award of design
contract for both phases and award of construction contract for phase 2 in
September. Members have already resolved that Authority be delegated to
the Council’'s Procurement Steering Group, in consultation with the Deputy
Leader, to award the contract for phase 2 of the project and the project
management arrangements for phase 2 and 3, subject to the costs not
exceeding approved capital estimates.

1.3 Work on future management arrangements is being considered by the
Project Board and Project updates made available to local clubs is to be
undertaken through the website.

1.4 Members of Bicester Town Council who sit on the Project Board have stated

their commitment to supporting the Sports Village with regard to any future
revenue implications.

Page 107



1.5

Construction of Phase 1 is on course for completion by November 2013.
Phase 2 procurement and appointment of Contractor for phases 2 and 3
design work and the construction of phase 2 is scheduled for September
2013. The design and planning consent work will commence in the autumn
with construction of phase 2 starting next summer.

Background Information

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

Progress on Phase 1 (Grass Pitch Construction)

The good weather over recent weeks has enabled the completion of the
construction of the pitch platforms, drainage system and seeding of pitches
for Phase 1. In the next two months the cycle track will be constructed and
the landscaping works completed. Maintenance of the Phase 1 area will be
carried out over the next two years in readiness for the pitches being
available for play in September 2015.

Issues in connection with the project are captured in the Project Issues log
and reviewed by the Project Board.

Procurement of Phase 2 and 3 design work; and construction of Phase 2
(Pavilion and Car Park)

At the time of writing this report, the Procurement process for the appointment
of the contractor for this work is progressing well. Design work for Phase 2
and 3 has been packaged together but only Phase Two works are fully
funded at this stage.

The invitation to tender (ITT) using the London and South East (LSEC)

framework was issued on the 12 June and five companies responded. Three
of these companies progressed through the first stage evaluation which was
based on their project understanding, pre-construction resource and on their
construction resource. They were then invited to submit a Stage 2 response.

The closing date for Stage 2 responses was 6 August and focuses on

1) Team working,

2) Procurement best practice,
3) Design led support,

4) Performance,

5) Management of quality, and
6) Financial.

Evaluation of Stage 2 submissions is currently taking place.

The timetable is working towards the Procurement Steering Group, in
consultation with the Deputy Leader, awarding a contract on 11 September
2013 with the contract start date (pre-construction) scheduled for 23
September.

Development and negotiation of the construction contracts with the successful
tenderer will commence from 23 September and will involve exploring Best
Practice Options, Including:

a) where key roles responsibilities and risks lay;
b) the contract form that offers the best practice solution;

Page 108



2.5

2.6

¢) construction performance & standards;

d) construction pricing & charging methods;

e) insurance arrangements, performance bonds/surety, risk share &
associated commercial values;

f) agreeing key clauses and terms and conditions;

g) finalising the contract package prior to any construction work
commencing.

Operational management arrangements and revenue funding.

The Project Board will also be considering the operational management
arrangements for the Sports Village including establishing a charitable entity
that can receive a number of financial benefits including relief of non domestic
rates and vat. External guidance on this is being sought.

Alongside this work and the design work for Phases 2 and 3 will be a financial
modelling exercise to get more certainty on any revenue implications which
will, in turn, inform further discussions with our partners.

Progress in this area will be reported further in the next bi-monthly update
report.

Bicester Town Council representatives on the Project Board recognise their
role in addressing any revenue implications of the sports village and have
suggested a number of options for consideration. These options will be
explored further in the next three months when more accurate financial and
operational information becomes available.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

3.1

This is a Project Board update report. There are no Key Issues or decisions
required at this stage. Project Issues are captured on the Issues log and
reviewed by the Project Board.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is
believed to be the best way forward

Option One The Project has been approved and is progressing in

accordance with these approvals. There are no other
Options being considered.

Consultations

Project Board The Project Board has representation from the Council,

Bicester Town Council and Oxfordshire County Council.
Consultation events have also taken place with Bicester
sports clubs.

Page 109



Implications

Financial:

Legal:

Risk Management:

Wards Affected

Phase 1 and Phase 2 are fully funded. Phase 3 is not
funded at this stage and further work is required to secure
external grant support.

Comments checked by Denise Taylor, Corporate
Accountant, 01295 221982

Officers shall have regard to the Council’s Comprehensive
Procurement Rules (which reflect current procurement law
and practice, and which, in particular, permit procurement
from a framework of the type described in this report) in
the conduct of procurement processes leading to awards
of contract for the construction of the Phase 2 works and
for consultancy support to help determine suitable delivery
vehicles for management of the new asset,

Comments checked by Richard Hawtin, Team Leader —
Property and Contracts

01295 221695

There are no risks arising from this report but it should be
noted that funding for Phase 3 is not yet identified.

Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate
Performance Manager, 0300 0030113

All Bicester Wards and surrounding rural areas.

Corporate Plan Themes

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District.

Providing the Bicester Multi-Sports Village would enable residents of Bicester and
surrounding areas including children, young people and adults to take part in greater
opportunities for meaningful, structured regular sport and physical activity. This would
give each individual the health related benefits of a physically active lifestyle and is
consistent with Eco Bicester — One Shared Vision.

A District of Opportunity

The Bicester Multi-sports Village would provide a training facility for sports clubs to
train and compete in their chosen sport. This would give players a participatory
opportunity and give coaches and volunteers the opportunity to gain nationally
recognised qualifications. If the full scheme was progressed the pavilion would also
provide a much needed conference, function and meeting venue for Bicester
increasing the facilities on offer to all organisations and companies.

Page 110



Lead Member

Councillor George Reynolds
Deputy Leader

Document Information

Appendix No Title

None

Background Papers

None

Report Author Philip Rolls, Recreation and Health Improvement Manager

Contact 01295 221697
Information Philip.rolls@Cherwell-dc.gov.uk

Page 111




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 112



Agenda ltem 10

Executive

Performance Management Framework
2013/14 First Quarter Performance Report

2 September 2013

Report of the Head of Transformation
and Corporate Performance Manager

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report covers the Council's performance for the period 01 April to 30 June 2013
as measured through the Performance Management Framework.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:
(1) To note the many achievements referred to in paragraph 1.3.

(2) To identify any performance related matters for review or consideration in
future reports identified in paragraph 1.4

(3) To note progress on issues raised in the Quarter four performance report
highlighted in paragraph 1.5

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1 This is a report of the Council’s performance in the first quarter of 2013/14
measured through the performance management framework. The report
covers key areas of performance, these are: performance against the
Council’s 17 public pledges and 2013/14 business plan.

The report also contains performance information around the Corporate
Equalities Plan and the Major Programmes.

To measure performance we use a ‘traffic light' system where Green* is
exceeding the target, Green is 100% of the target met, Amber 90% and
above, and Red below 90% and detailed performance indicators with
commentary is presented in the appendices to this report.

As part of the 2013/14 Business planning process all targets have been
reviewed focussing on key priorities, where targets don’t directly contribute
they are no longer reported on.

Page 113



1.2

Although this is primarily a report of corporate performance, the Council’s
performance management framework also includes monitoring at the
directorate level against service plans and strategies. The majority of
operational performance issues are dealt with at service and directorate level.
However significant service successes and issues are reported upwards and
where appropriate included in this report.

Proposals

1.3 The Executive is asked to note the significant progress made in delivering the

Council’s 4 strategic objectives. Particular highlights include:

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity

Processing of major applications within 13 weeks has significantly improved to
68.75% this quarter, compared to 25% at the end of Quarter 4, exceeding the
target of 50%.

The number of households living in temporary accommodation has reduced to
well below target. 34 have been placed in temporary accommodation with an
expected target of 41. Work is further progressing with partners (Registered
Social Landlords) to ensure delays in ‘move-ons’ and ‘turn arounds’ is kept to
a minimum.

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell

The amount of waste recycled this quarter has improved to 58% compared to
the last quarter of 55%, the target for this year is to maintain above 57%. The
Street cleansing team have completed a ‘Litter Blitz’ week with the community
of Hardwick. This involves road shows, swap shops, collection of large bulky
items for free and more importantly engaging with the community and
educating about recycling.

EcoTown work is due to start on site at the initial housing development at
Northwest Bicester in September. A2 Dominion will begin construction of the
spine road to serve the development. The construction of the first homes is
expected to begin in early 2014.

A Safe, Healthy and Thriving District

The new sports pitches at South West Bicester are making progress, the
contractor has completed the sports pitch construction including the drainage,
next stage is to seed the pitch. The cycle track will then be constructed in
August/September.

Supporting the local health sector in building a new community hospital in
Bicester has progressed; construction is underway of the new facility.

An Accessible Value for Money Council

Improvements to the website have started with a new online form systems
being implemented; this will allow the customer more options and a customer
friendly online form to report issues. This will also extend to include more of
the Councils services online.

Page 114



1.4

The performance management framework allows Councillors to monitor the
progress made in delivering our objectives and to take action when
performance is not satisfactory, risks to performance are identified or new
issues arise.

The report also contains direction of travel to highlight areas prior to them
becoming an issue. There are a number of such items identified in this report
and we recommend responsible officers should report on the latest position,
implications, and the action they are taking in the next quarterly performance
report. These are:

Cherwell: A District of Opportunity

Processing of Minor Applications within 8 weeks is reporting as Red, this is
51.72% compared with 73.74% last quarter. The target is 65%. Processing of
Other Applications within 8 weeks is reporting as Amber, this is 76.56%
compared to 86.28% last quarter, the target is 80%. This is due to the focus
concentrating on the submission and process of Major applications which
takes longer to complete. Priority action is being enforced by seconding the
Development Management Staff; this together with new appointments to the
team will ensure maintaining throughput of applications and ensuring they are
manageable moving forward.

A Cleaner Greener Cherwell

Reducing the amount of waste sent to landfill is reporting as Red, 6566
tonnages against the target of 5900. The landfill tonnages are ahead of
expectation. The waste and recycling team are working on reducing this for
the next quarter.

The number of Flytips is reporting as Amber, across the District there have
been 100 flytips in quarter 1, only 4 flytips over target which is 96. We are
experiencing an increase in either single item or small flytips in garage areas.
A joint approach with the housing associations to tackle the issue is
underway, this includes education of areas and also signage to discourage
the flytipping.

A Safe Healthy and Thriving District

Reducing domestic burglary incidents by 2% is reporting as Amber, Cherwell
has received 50 reports of Burglary compared to 44 reports. This slight
increase at this time of year is a common trend however, joint working with
Thames Valley Police through the Joint Agency and Tasking Co-ordination
(JATAC) meeting is underway to promote securing homes and sheds during
the holiday period.

Maintaining current levels of visits/usage to district leisure centres is reporting
as Amber, 295,570 visits compared with 309,900 at Quarter 1 in 2012/2013.
This is due to the teaching swimming pool being closed in Bicester which is
having an adverse effect. Spiceball and Kidlington levels have increased and
slightly exceed the target.

An Accessible Value for Money Council

Implementing and embedding shared back office systems and services to
secure efficiencies is reporting as Amber, this was also Amber at the end of

Page 115



the last quarter. Work is progressing in this area with the Human Resources
Business Case having been approved and the 3 way ICT business case is
also being developed.

e The percentage of housing benefit recovered, including outstanding is
reporting as Red, 15.82% has been recovered compared with Quarter one
2012/2013 of 12.56%. The team are looking into this area to ensure targets
are achievable.

e Invoices being paid within 30 days is reporting as Amber, 96.05% have been
paid within 30 days against a target of 98%. This reduction in performance is
due to missing information on the invoices which is delaying the process.
Proactive steps have been taken with regular communication of requiring all
information, this has been sent to all staff via email.

The Overview and Scrutiny Committee also reviews performance on a
quarterly basis and where appropriate makes recommendations for
improvement. This quarter the Committee reviewed planning performance,
specifically improvement seen in major applications determination and the
impact this has had on delivery in the rest of the development control service.
The Overview and Scrutiny Committee are keeping this issue on their work
plan and will make further reports to Executive as appropriate.

1.5 Matters raised in the last Quarter’s performance report with progress in Quarter
one. The RAGG” is included in the below with an indication of whether the

issue has been rectified or is on-going.

Table below illustrates progress against the last quarter's performance
reports.

Issues raised in the Quarter 4
Report

Number of households living in
temporary accommodation

Progress update

This was reporting as Red and is now
reporting as Green*. The number of
households in temporary
accommodation was reduced by the
end of June 2013 as planned.

Deliver 500 new homes including
through planned major housing
projects.

This was reporting as Red and is nhow
reporting as Amber. This has been
achieved by the delivery at Kingsmere
(South West Bicester) and the former
DLO Caversfield site.

Percentage of Conservation
Areas with published
Management Plans

This was reporting as Red and is now
reporting as Green. Consultation for
Cropredy and North Newington Area
Appraisals are now over and the team
are working to finalise. The target has
been revised.

Processing of major applications
within 13 weeks.

This was reporting as Red and is now
reporting as Green achieving 68.75%
over the target of 50%.

Page 116




Conclusion

1.6

In this report we show that at the first quarter of 2013/14 the Council continues
to make strong progress on delivering its ambitions to improve the services
delivered to the public and against key projects and priorities.

The report highlights a small number of areas which the Council needs to
keep under review to ensure targets are met. It also demonstrates the
Councils proactive performance management of issues raised and the role of
Overview and Scrutiny in supporting performance review.

Background Information

2.1 Overview of Performance
Paragraphs 2.1 — 2.5 provide a summary of the Councils performance against
its comprehensive performance and risk framework. The detailed
performance indicators and commentary against each of these are contained
within appendices A to D.
The tables below provide a summary against the pledges and business plan.
2.2 Table - Performance Pledges Summary
The table below outlines the 17 pledges which were included in the 2013/14
Council Tax Leaflet and sent to every household in Cherwell. Of these the
performance so far is; 1 Green*, 10 Green, 6 Amber and 0 Red. These
pledges directly reflect the Council’'s four strategic priorities and public
priorities.
Full details can be reviewed within Appendix A
Performance
Performance Red, Amber Green
Fremenert
Corporate Plan: Pledges 0 6 10 1 17
TOTALS 0 6 10 1 17

2.3 Table - Performance Business Plan Summary

Performance
Performance Red, Amber Green
reen
Data
Business Plan :
Excluding Pledges 14 51 5 1 75
Corporate Equalities Plan 0 13 0 0 13

Page 117




Performance Red, Amber Green
Framework

Performance

No

*
Green Data

Major Programmes 0 1 4 0 0 5

TOTALS 4 15 68 5 1 93

24

2.5

3.1

Major Programmes

The ‘major programmes’ template is attached as appendix C. This new
template reflects the Council’'s ambitious improvement programme around
place based regeneration and development and service transformation to
deliver improvement and efficiency.

It should also be noted that the template covers both Cherwell and South
Northamptonshire programmes, reflecting the shared nature of the agenda.
There is one area reporting as Amber relating to Cherwell detailed below

ICT Shared Services - The ICT Shared Services programme is reporting as
Amber which is the same as the last quarter. The systems harmonisation
phase is now in the planning stage, the amber status reflects concern around
the ability to resource business as usual, harmonisation and major IT change
projects.

Corporate Equalities Plan

The corporate equalities plan is a cross-council plan that aims to improve
customer access, tackle inequality and disadvantage, build strong
communities and improve community engagement. It also ensures that the
Council is compliant with all equalities legislation.

During the last year there have been a number of changes to the legislation
and the Council's plans and polices reflect this. As legislation changes
Cherwell District Council equalities policies are reviewed. Details in Appendix
D — All reporting Green

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

This report presents the Council's performance against its corporate
scorecard for the first quarter of 2013/14. It includes an overview of
successes, areas for improvement and emerging issues to be considered.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the
recommendations is believed to be the best way forward

Option One 1. To note the many achievements referred to in

paragraph 1.3.

2. To identify any performance related matters for review
or consideration in future reports identified in

Page 118



Option Two

Consultations

paragraph 1.4

3. To note progress on issues raised in the Quarter four
performance report highlighted in paragraph 1.5

To identify any additional issues for further
consideration or review.

No specific consultation on this report is required. However, it should be noted that
several indicators are based on public consultation or customer feedback.

As part of the process of performance review Overview and Scrutiny Committee have
reviewed the performance information for this quarter.

Implications

Financial:

Legal:

Risk Management:

Data Quality

Financial Effects — The resource required to operate the
Performance Management Framework is contained within
existing budgets. However the information presented may
lead to decisions that have financial implications. These
will be viewed in the context of the Medium Term Plan
and Financial Strategy and the annual Service and
Financial Planning process.

Efficiency Savings — There are none arising directly from
this report.

Comments checked by Sarah Best, on behalf of Head of
Finance, 0300 0030106

There are no legal issues arising from this report.

Comments checked by James Doble on behalf of the
Monitoring Officer, 0300 0030107

The purpose of the Performance Management Framework
is to enable the Council to deliver its strategic objectives.
All managers are required to identify and manage the
risks associated with achieving this. All risks are logged
on the Risk Register and reported quarterly to the Audit
Committee.

Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Corporate
Performance Manager.

Data for performance against all indicators has been
collected and calculated using agreed methodologies and
in accordance with Performance Indicator Definition
Records (PIDRs) drawn up by accountable officers. The
council’s performance management software has been
used to gather and report performance data in line with
performance reporting procedures.

Comments checked by Louise Tustian, Senior
Improvement and Performance Officer.

Page 119



Wards Affected

All

Corporate Plan Themes

The Performance Management Framework covers all of the Council’s Strategic
Priorities

Executive Lead Member

Councillor Nicholas Turner
Lead Member for Performance and Customer

Document Information

Appendix No Title

Appendix A Performance Pledges

Appendix B Corporate Business Plan

Appendix C Major Programmes

Appendix D Equalities

Background Papers

None

Report Author Louise Tustian, Senior Performance & Improvement Officer
Contact Tel: 01295 221786

Information Louise.tustian2@Cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Page 120




fangueq ul swwielboid @ jping S,/10UNOY) B pue 18]1sa01g
uluswidolaaap atawsBury su uo dnols BuisnoH pJojwolg Wodl AsAllap saphjoul Sy L

£Z yebire]
B/U FE [enoy
<D

S|4 ping Jias Buidojaaap pue pling Yas Jo) sanunpoddo
Hoddns pue 121SIp aU) Ul SAWOY 3|geploye 051 Jaaleg

"g|qe|ieAe sadlalas poddns sy pue ‘sJojoe) ucnealidap Jauyo pue

sanss| JuawiAoldws B SIS Usamiaq syul au Jo Buipuelsiapun Jajn e Buigeus ‘aunr g1 Uo
awwelboid Aungueg ul saining Jaybug uo palalig a1am S1ojI2unoD AJUNoD) pajoale Amau sy
‘sanneuasaldal [eoo| Buibebug

‘wsielnausidagua sbeinosus o) sishojdws yum sjidnd jooyss sbebus 0y sjusas Buibuele
‘aWayos plemy aslidiaug Buno A aJIUSPIOXO YLON U1 10 DD Aq diysueuLIeyD panuipuon
-aidoad BunoA jeunauaidanus BuLidsu)

‘awayos sdiyseanuaiddy suysplopxo sy ajowoid

diay o0} enbes|joo yH Ue yum papuape aopuaidde D0 v "24usD) UoeAOUU| Slapues UjoD
au} 1e auo Buipnjaul ‘play aJlam sassaulisng 1o} sjuaas sdiyseonuaidde Jo asuas Bupep, -
‘(ssaushg Bunesuibua Buunogybisu e ul

SHIOM OUM Z L 0Z Ul 22nualdde DD e yum ased ay) sem se) sqol 1010as ajealid pue Awouoda
|eo0| a4 Jo wswdojsasp ay) 0] uolnguUIuod 1oalip e - Auedwod Buuasulbus [eool e 1e j1sod
Adueunoooe aauied e pauleb Apealje sey aus jey [[om 0s passalbold adnusiddy suo ‘paapu)
“Apeal-om wal Bupew uyim pajeioosse Aldes|d ylomasinod Buneidwos ale pue s159) ZDAN
Jayy passed aney Iy €10z Aenuer Ul Buels 2ouls [[am passalbold [le aaey [10UNOD 12LASIA
[leauayD Aq pahodws saonuaiddy uonensiuLpy B ssauisng 9 auy ‘gdwexs Ag Bulpea -
sdiyseanus.idde Bunowo.id

Buien
1o wswhojdwa ‘uoneanps ul jou adoad BunoA Jo Jagquinu

al) a2npal pue Juawholdws [eoao| Loddns diay 0} Japlo ul sgn?
gol pue sdiyssonuaidde quawidojsasp s|ids poddns o) anupuon

[~

Pana 121
uvu

Anunpoddg 4o 3o13sIqg

20uUellOlad U0 sJUSWILIOD

[ereIL | £102/90/08 || Sldeaydde
Jouonoalid | | Jspend || £L/Z10Z #O

¢1L0Z unr LD : sabpad ajedodion

P10Z/SL0Z : Ueld Ssaulsng [19unoJ 301sId [I9MIYD

uoniuled alnsesiyeAnselgn




‘Anqueg ‘MompleH 1e aunp Ul paouswIwod sazyq e pooyinoqubisu jo swwelboid
MUY "£10Z ASAINS UONOBISNES JBWOISN) WOJ) S)nSad Bullieme 5i8As| UONDRISIES POOD) =

‘Buoys s1 abeuuo) a1seAM USpIRD) "UshElDadXa U UMOp a1l B Japenb 1sa1) ul ebeuuo) BulpAoay d

10UISI JeUSaIn) IBUES|D) ¥

alIs usauBpooaA aL uo y1om Aljgises) ey si se Aeauapun s1 ABAA PIRYDIO
louaLysIcunial syl ‘proy uojog pue |egadids plemio) Buld o) BuissaiBbold S13IOAA =

£10Z Uy anp mou 1oeduwl| [EUsWUUOIIALT [IUNoD)
[INs AQ U4 [220T 24} JO UOIRISPISUOD pakelap sabueyo pasnoo) Uo JNSU0I O] pasu ay | = v

@ ipIng ul edpied 01 ysim ouym Ja)sibal
Buisnoy 5,000 uo ajdoad o) ajge|iear apew ag 0} SI yoiym Ajuadied ajs pue Jlomyoug
U1 S25IN070) Z pUR | [9A97 Jaalap 0} Bulpuny paunoas asey (UolBulpny Ul paseq) Buiuiel| 30y

“@2URINSUI JO JUSLWaIN20.d aU) uLioul 0] paleldwod ussq sey Buishoy
pling Yas Jo Jadojeasp Buigeus, ue se DD o) papaau aouelnsul Jo adoos auy uo podad v

‘S|elalBLU 2AI203. 0] 5Bg pue JUByolaw (00| e apiacdd [ yoiym yiomaweld BuisnoH =
10J JUslWalnaodd aul UBnoly) Jueyasew siap|ing palsja.d, e ainooid o] Aemiapun s13IopA

‘syJom punoJB Joj uoneainads auy) Buidoas aue am pue Aemlspun S| SI0)12BU0D

uonlowsap Jo} asiolaxa Japual oyl Buned ypalo pue suondo abebpiow ssasse Jas

0] sjuedidde pjing asnaadsoud siqeus 0] paysiqelsa Buiaq si Jepiod aul uo, uy Buidojpasp
Mmou [aued Japim e yum swwelbold pjing auy 1o} Japus| pes), e painoas aaey 2101sp|ing

[arBl] £102/90/0E

S0UEWLlOLSH UO sjUSWILIo 10 UoRIRIIT | J8LenD

a|qealdde |
ELZL0Z 7O

s22)1q Jan) pooyinoquBiau Jo awweBolid
[NISS222NS N0 BuNUUOD SSaUUESID [eIUSLULIOIIAUD
R 1994S UM UONORISHES SIUSPISA [220] ano.dw]

9,/ G anoqge Jo a]el BulpAoal pjoyasnoy e uiejurely

saquan umo] Angueg

pue 1815321g Ul Sanijioe) (le1al g ainsia| usyibua.s o) osc_ycoo%“
i

PUsip ey Ul M_Wu
tmolB o1Woucoa Joy uolepunoy sy} se ueld [eao| au sjsidwon oy

s|i¥s piing jias Buidojsasp g ping y@s Jo) sanunpoddo poddng

uoniule] elnsesiy/eAoslgqo




Jaquisidagasnbhny Buunp 1onsuod aq |im yoed) 81942 sy "sayoyd auy pass
01 1nhode si pue ‘efeurelp Buipnioul ‘uononasuos Uand spods auy paje|dwod sey Jojorauor)

P LIS 1L0Z Ul J31e| uoneynsuod dnolsy BUILOISSILULUIO. [e21UND) SUIUSPIOIXO) [ello) & JO

192lgns auyp aq [ yoiym UoLIoH au) 1e saoiaas onsoubeip pue Ausbins aalog)e ‘sjuswuiodde
wienedino pasealaul 01 paxul I swia) 12buo| [esodold UIsouo [e20] 0] asl Bulab spunolf
A1ajes [eolul uo plolxQ o) UopoH sy wody Alebins jeuiuopge AsusBiawsa Jo [eaowsy

Remuapun [e)idsoy AJUNWILIOD maU B O UONSNASUOD JO JUSWISOUSILOD)

‘paalbe sjuasa sspUNWLIoD Bugosuuoy "sawsuy XIs [le Joj aoed ul sjuswabuele Jepes|
away | “Aemiapun suonde pue paysiqelsa sanold saining Jeybug ¢1/cL0Z HeISaWoH pue
annenul saled Buialyl au yusm uonelBaiul pue wewabebua Asuabe pinw poooy aanILULIOD

AUnnIog g malrdaaQ pue aAlnoaxg Ag palapisuod podsy [enuuy sainind Jaubug ¢1/Z102

1S Bulauy ] g AyesH ‘ajes v

‘¥10Z Alea
ul uibaq 0} paroadxe s SaWoy 1s11) aU) JO UoRaNASUoD JualldoRasp auy) aalas 0) peol auids
al] 1o uononnsuod ayl yum Buiuuibag ¢ .0z Jequisidas Ul 8IS Uo yJom Je)s o) uoluiwo( 2y

(padinbal 11 a|qe|ieae Loday)

‘leuonelado swooaq 0] | Q9 10) syaam g Ajgjewxoldde axe) (1w 1 ey paloadxa si1l julod
1B Woly ‘pue syeam 1o 2|dnod IxXau au) Ul pajad@ s1 ISpIAoid (e USaJD) B Sk UORRWIIIOY
‘abe)s sy 1e podal 0} Blep ou s| alay) 0s jeuonelado 194 jou si {1 o) Jlayebo ] |eaq usaln

uoliaed sy Joy sued asjeuly pue abejia sHodg Js)saolg
159AA UINOS 3L Je sayoyid suiods sy Jjo InoAe| au aeidwo)

[endsoH
[eJaussy UOLIOH 3U) e S321AJ95 U)eay dojaasp pue Ulejal 0]
15hd] [ejidsoH Alslaaiun plotxO ® Alunwiwiod [eoao| sy Joddng

12152219 Ul [eudsoy
Aunwiwioa mau e Buipjing Ui 101935 yyeay [eao| auy poddng O

Q

E

d

awwelBbold Anqueg Ul saimnd Jawbug b
U} uo Buipiing 1oLSIp SU) Ul Saljiwie} B Sfenplapul sidelsuina o
1sow sy} o} poddns apiaoid o} stauped yym Bupiom snuguod )

T L\J

uyu

18159019 1SemULION
1e Wwaludojaasp Buisnoy [eniul aU 10 21IS UO 3IoMm Lels

15BNy 1O pUa [NUN B[qelieA. JoU S) elep asuewlopad | JepUenD
‘Japenb 15111 e ul peonpoudiano aaey siaued 1ejos ‘1oramoH paielep usaq sey ausn
2SI 18159219 10 19(10q SSBLOIY 10 UaWSIN20.d - JULIdI00] UOGIED S15UNeY) |0 Uononpay

S0UEWLlOLSH UO sjUSWILIo

gy

|leaBl]
Jo uonoalg

£102/90/0C
L Jauent

Jepinold |esp usalb, e dn
195 0] staupied uyim Bupiom AQ uoneinsul 1s02 mo| Jo abejuenpe
ayel 0] Alunpoddo au sjuspisal [lpauayn aalb o) anupuon

a|qealdde |
ELZL0Z 7O

sapIyaa pue sBulpiing Jno 1o Asusioile ABisua sy Buiaoidu
JaUung Aq JULICKOO) UOGURD S,)1I2UN07T 3L 22npad 0] SNURUOTD)

uoniule] elnsesiy/eAoslgqo




"aUUO S82IAISS 210U JaAllap 0] Alljiqe &L AR PUE [I5UN0Y) 8U) SSOU0E
SUWIO0J X3|dWOD SI0W IBAIISD 0] B|de ad (W 1l *MOLIXI0M SILL LIIAA ‘Mol Iom ~B'a Alleuonaun)
pappe ss|geus yoiym wioneld suiuo pajsoy e o} pajelbiw Buieq si abexoed swuo) suuo o

€10 1shBny Ul paroadxe ale synsal Aaains auy |

malaal Bulpuads saisusyaidwos ay) 1o soushbasuod e se
paysallal Buieq si ABajeds reroueuld ula | whnipa eyl 198png gLy L0z 2ul 1o uoneledaud
pue swiwelboid Burpiom uiol 1no yBnouyy salousioie asauly) 81noas 0] ABAISPUN S| 3IOAA

@

[12UNO7) ASUOIA] 10} @N|EA 2[UISS800Y Uy

‘sue|d doup uoidweyuion s)sabbns 1seje dojeaap

IS MOy 23S 0} Umo] uoldweypon Buiyolesm JapuewilLIoD asljod se pajsanbal &
1o pasoduwl aq 0] AiR3un slapJo uonolsal Buiuloy Ale Japenb 1sai ul papodal senssi oN
Aiapeoy sy pue poomled Uim auad spods piojsocy pue uolbulpn
1e youd Jauieam e sy Buoedal uo pauurid Buieg si 3IoaA uoliaed 3L Uo 3lom pauue|d pue B/U
sayoud Jo uoneuaanial ybnoly) punolb spods axelg pieiens auyl uo aoejd usye)l Sey HIoAA
20UBLLIOLSH U0 SJUSLILIO Jerall
+Hed ¥ O Jo uonoalg

£102/90/0C
L Jauent

4

auluo saolaas Jo) Buiked pue saoines
1no Buissadoe Jo asea aU ‘aUsgam Jno 3A0IdWI 0} aNUUOD)

-

sa01Alag Bupied Jeo B suiUD [elUBLULIOIIAUT
‘gSV Jno uo Buisnoo) LUONORISIES J3LUOISND 1O S|2A2| SA0Idw)

Bana 192
uv\l

JaLwalinooud U sbuiaes ajgeyseo
uou AlUapI 0] SNUNUOD § ID1IP [RIDUERUI ULUS) WhIpaw
ay) 192w diay 0] 000 00GF 1sea| je jo sBuines ajgeysed ainoag

sBuiuaaa au) Ul JUBIQIA 3 3)BS UlBWRI SBUSD

v UMO] N0 2InNsUa 0} SJapjoy a2u2) % 22110d [20] Uiim YIOAA
pun4 Aseba oidwAo eyl Buish
=10
1211810 2} ssoloe sanlioe) spods jo spelbdn sy poddng
Sl fisle | uolue einses|y/enioslqo
AN AN A ] o o




‘Buissasold g1 pue gH Yyiog 01 palejal U sieah snolaaid ul1s)iysm ‘Ajuo
Buissaoold gH 01 a1e[al #1-¢10Z Jo) sainbiy 2yl 1eyl pajou &g pinoys 3 “Bulpig enuue
Jaye ylom uo dn ybBnes euden se Apjainb palanodal sey swie|2 mau Jo Buissaooid

‘pamalaal Buleq Aualing ale sjebie) esuewloled

"'SYLY ubnoiyy pessesoid
seBueyd Jo swnjoA Juedlubls ay) o} anp JoBle) Jo peaye 8¢ 0} SANUIUOD ddUEBULIOUS

‘peau Alloud ul 1eBuo| ou ale Asyl awin 1eU] 1B Il USAS Ssieak

Z UILIAA UAO J13U] Jo 1ney ou YBnolyl ssajawoy ale pue Juasaid-al Aoyl J uiebe sased
ay1 dn yoid 01 palinbal aq ||Ia [I2UNOD 8L "S2IDUBUS] J0123s Sjealld 01 Ainp ableyosip 01
Aluoyiny 18207 ayl Jo siamod ay) ybBnolay) pableyosip st Ainp Aloiniels 9soym sployasnoy
250U] 2pN|2UI 0] PAaMAIAR] UBaQ Sy UORIULISP 2Ul Z1.0Z 10 WSI|EI07 2] Japun

“Japenb syl ul uoiuep sivl Buigeaw suopesdde Aue paaadal 10U sey [[eamIayD)

‘pouad Jeak z e uiyum paydesoe Ainp

MaU B Ulm uoiedldde mau e axew 0] uInjal uayl oum ‘pableydsip Ainp Aloiniels Jisuys
pue ssajawoy se pajdadde usag sey eyl pjoyasnoy e sl (970) JUSWUIRA0L) (8207
pue salunwwo”n Jo wawyedsq aul Ag paullep sl ssaussalawoy 1eadal Jo uoluap ayl

sdiysuone|al Bunjiom pooB panuiuos

2INSUR |[IM S2INJDNIIS MAU JISU3 JBUL PUB UOIEPOWW022Y Alelodwa] Ul spunol uiny pue
suo-anow pakejap yaiym (1Sy) spiojpue [enos palalsibBay Jauped ino AQ passalppe
aq [ sawiy Buimel-al ul sAeap aul 1eyl [njadoy ale apA WBYL 01 9|ge[IeAR SUOdo
Unm BuiBeBus |y 01 Buljimun aie oysm 250U] 01 UOIEROWILIOIZE JO SI9Y0 2|delns
axew 0] siemod Ino Bulfidde usaq pue Buishoy |e12os 10} s)oadsold Jigy] 1noge onsijeal
alow aq 01 palbeinoosua usag aaey sannp paideosoe yum asoy] pauue|d se ¢L0z aunp
10 pud ayl Ag padnpal sem Uoepowlwodde Alelodwal ul Spjoyashoy Jo Jaquinu ay |

L 1o
iy ¥E [ENjoY
#O

‘uolepoWWoooe Alelodwa) Ul Mol Slaguinu ayl pue wnwiuiw

e 0] ssajawoy se Jugsald 0} Bulaey slaguinu ay) deay 0} senss| Buishol aajosal 0]
22UEB)SUI 1SJI4 AU Ul SpJojpue| 10 AllWe) yum uoienobau pue susia sWoy ‘aouB)sIsSse pue
aoiape Bulsyo ‘suoipdo uoljuasald uo sulewal snoo4  ‘sieah snolasld yum s|geredwos
sl sIY} ‘uado usaqg aaeY S8SED UOIJUSARIH PUEB S2IADY MaU OZE ‘€10z [Udy aoulg

1011517 243 Ul abejueape

sIp 8pjoe) 03 sisuped Yl SIOAA

(sAep) swielD yeusg
Xe] [12UnoD fJleuag BuisnoH mau 1o awi abelany

sjuaAs abuByD pueR SWIeD MaU JIjausg
Xe] |IsunoDaileuag Buisnoy ssaooid 0] uaye) awi)

S9sBD ssaussajauloy jeadal :adlApe Buisnoy

UoEpOWIWOoIIE
Aerodwa) Ul Bulal sployasnoy Jo Jagquinp

Dasal4D

rage 129

aoueulopad Jo sjaag] JuUa1IND
1e aolape Buisnoy pue uojuaasid ssaussalauloy
uo Buissnooy yBnoly) spuapisal ajgessuina yoddng

20UewWlolSd U0 SIUSLWIWIOD

[PARIL £10Z/90/02 a|qeai|dde
Ho WelRRAg| | layeno SLZLOZ O

€102 aunr Lo : Ayunuoddo Jo 101381 ¥

¥102/€10¢ - ue|d ssaulsng [1DUno) J03sIq [IPMIBYD

uoniullaq ainseajp/eanaslgo




‘Gz 10186181 1sUIEBE PaABIUDE 218M SALIOY i AJUO UsUm £1/Z102
| I8LEND 0] ||8m saledwod sIYL 8Us plallsiaarD OTA JeWlo] syl pue (I181se21g AS)
alowsBury 18 Alenllep Ag padiay SUOIPUOD 183JEW JUSIND Ul UWINA) LD 3|deuosesl ¥

VA
LD uo

4

Gzl :jebue]
L2l - [enjoy
v

WamolB Buishoy pue Jusldo[sAsp S1LIoUcs souejeq

paalbe

SIURAR SAIIUNWIWOSD Buiposuuos "sawayl Xis (e Joj @oe|d ul sjuswabuelle Japes| away
‘Aeauapun suolloe pue paysiigelsa senuold ¢L/eLog wawabebus Aouabe ninul pooo
SANIWWON AUNIZS PUEB MAIAISAC PUB dAIRNDAXT AQ palapisuod Hoday [enuuy €1/21L0Z

yloa pue Buiuiely Jeiua o saiigesip yuam ajdoad Buidjey ‘sunr g uo wnio4
Allgesiq [lamiayD aul ela paplacld sem sa21A19s gnio gol au3 Jo ssaualeme Jayund

AN 02 yorewus|EXo dojeaspydny
BUNPC £ U0 paydune| sem ‘Bunass ale Aal S[IIYS 1eym sjowoid
0] siefo|dws 1o} puUE “YIom 10) S[|INS UIelgo sisyaasqol djay 0] (001 Udew Jus(el v

‘Buipuene siexsas qol 2z Uim 62 01 71/£1.0Z Bulinp play sgn|o gof jo

Jaquinu [e1o) Ul sBulg sIyL  "slax@es qol Z/ |1 pIoBINe Ydiym sgnjd ploo Jo Buioo |}
pue ‘sieuoissajoid/siabeuew g1 Buiorme Judy Ul pjay alam sgn|2 Aemeres Aunuoddo
2 sl9aleD, 7 ‘awwelBoid Ainqueg ul saining Je1yblg syl ubnouyl ‘uoippe u|

(padjay a|doad )

uolBuIIpIy Ul g pue (padiay aidoad |11) Jeisaoig ul 2 (pediey sidoad z¢)) Anqueg ul 2
11 Jaueny Buunp play a1am sgn|D gor [elausb g|

‘aBueyo 0] pajoadxs jou SISyl 'SYLY 10 10edw)
ayj 0] anp 1061e] JO peayE ||9M 8¢ 0] S8NUIIUOD Sa2URISWNIID Jo sebueys Jo Buisssosold

a4

20UewWlolSd U0 SIUSLWIWIOD

[PABIL

1o uonoallg

£102/90/0E

| lauenp

a|qeai|dde
EL/ZLOZ ¥O

‘s108loid Buishoy Jolew
pauueld ybBnoiyy Buiph|oul sawoy Mau ggs Jenag

swuwelBoid Aingueg ul sainindg Jaybug eyl Jaaeq

o]

1011810 Y] SSOJoR S301A18S N|D qOr aplAcid

Dasaasald4iDn
rage 12

(shep)
S82UBISWN2ID Ul eBuey ssed0d 0] L] obelaay

uoniullaq ainseajp/eanaslgo




‘Aingueg

0] AlnglieyD woly uonesojal Buiamo||o) ‘oolwes ybnolyy uoxQ Jo) paplenbajes sqol g
aliysfingueg, 1hoybBnoiyl saal Buppom Jiay) poddns

0] 8|qe 8g 0} SlaAlp aininy Buurely ul eouenodwl sjgelapisuo? Jo i Alngueyg Ul 82IA18s
SIU3 4o uonualal auyl ‘sqol Joanp ayj o] UoIppe U] ‘slesA z 1sed ayl Jeao a2IA1es 4|HD

ay) eia sasiwald anjeula)e Jo) Yoseas e Buimoloy ‘Ainqueg ‘aljuen 1se] BulaLg 8yl 1€ OF
‘1 Jayeny Buunp pajesio/paplenBales alom sqor o7

"$9552UISNQ §,21IUsplopi 1sBuowe uoeAouUl a1o0wold 0] JUaAD 1S3JaINJUdA,

[enuue ay] puape 0} pabeinodus alam [|aAmlayD) SSOIJE WO SIapes| ssauIsnd -

“Jayuny dojaaap 01 195 sI pue

payoddns os|e sem 191sa21g ul Buishoy pling-4as a|qeua 01 Dd0 AgQ pIg Jayuniy “aining
Ul [ngash aq [1a spig Juawido@aap auyl ‘Wil SIUY} [NISSa22NSUN ISIIUAA "PUNH UIMOID)
|euolBay s1UsWUIBA0D) J0) BUlppIg SassauIsng |B20] oAy 0] paplaoid sem poddng -

'd37 _dIYsSploO pue 437 spUe|plp 1B UINoS aul ([leMlayD

Bulanoo sdiysiauned esudiaiug [eoo7 Ylog Jo Jusuidojaaap 8y} 03 UORNJLIUOD Jayund -
AN 02'SpIeMESSaUISNY|[aAISY D MMM/ AIIY TUSAS BlIUMULIom Alan B 8 01

sajeBajap Ag 1121 Juana ue 0] e|doad ssauisng ggol Jaao Bunoeipe ‘0an A pejdeus pue
palosuods ped uieBe ‘udy Ul pjay os|e sem AUOLISISD Splesmy SSauIsng |[aamayD syl -
dyd-xapuipn 02’ piemeuoieAoUUIAINGUEBG MM Ay

"AWOU029 [B20] 81 LIy AJIJELIA Jaypuny

abeinoous 0} pue saluedwos SABAOUUI [[BWS |EDO| [NISSS0NS ]BICS[9D 0] Ploy SEM
‘na0 Ag pajsisse pue palosuods Led ‘g0z Auowalan spiemy Uoileacuu| Alngueg sy -
‘a2IAlas S| 1M N pue sdiysiauped asudisjug [esoT ayy yum diysiauped ul yum

JBap alom SEasIano Wol) sallinbua Jusullsaaul plemul 1aUl0 ‘JlemiayD Ul sqol pue says
Ul Juswisanul ajgeniea apiaold pinoo yolym pajpuey alam salinbua ssauisng pajielep 6 -
‘SyUBU} Jayo 0] Ul Buipum syuspisal Ag pajelisuowap

Buieq uonenaldde 9|qEISPISUOD UM %66 PUNOIE 819 S|9A3| UOIJOBISIIES -

"sjUSpISal S,81IUSPIOLXO JO |8 0] 8|dEB[IBAE SIAISS U] JO JBUS(] UO SpE|odIe

1sayBiy siuy Buluieb Ul [nisse2ons usag pey UoUlaA UYor 18Ul paules|] OdD 'uoljowold
asudialug Joy plemy s,usany ayl 1o} IGO0 10 JSSIAPE J0IUSS aU} pajeulwou Bulaey -
'na0 Ag paisoy aoines (3g0) sesiidiaiug ssauisng allysploxo ybnoays

ao1Ape dn-Lels 8SaUISNg SU0-0}-aU0 Ylm paplacld alam [[amvlayD JO sjusplsal /¢ -

‘1 Jepeny Buung

20UewWlolSd U0 SIUSLWIWIOD

[PABIL
1o uonoallg

£102/90/0€
| lauenp

a|qeai|dde
EL/ZLOZ ¥O

sqol ooz Jo BuipienBajes;uoljeals 0] 81nguUuoD

Dasna—4077

rage 127

(s437) sdiysisuped asiidiaug
[E207 2U] PUE JUSWISaAUl plemul ‘Loddns ‘aoiape
ssauIsng YybBnolyl YmolB 21Wou2a [820] 910Wold

uoniullaq ainseajp/eanaslgo




v1/eloc

10] pasiaal Useq sey 18Ble]  laqualdag ul @ssey] Uo JNsUoD o) Ueld (1M am pue fem
lapun |jeam ale UoIBUIMBN UINOS pue Uolsy a|desls Jol siesieldde eale UOBAISSUOD By
‘SyeaMm g - ¥ IXeU s Ul sue|d Juswabeuell

sue|d juswabeuey

UM Seale UoIJeAIasUOoD aloul Inoy palajdwos aaey 0 sue(d alojaiayl wes) ay 4 pausiignd ypm sealy uoljeAlasuos Jo abeluadiad
oYW 1S ploded pue uyor 1§ piodeq Jo) pouad UoIBINSUOD U3 Ul AJUSLIND aIe 9pA
‘slesieldde asayy asijeuly 0] Buiom ale Wea] SU3 pue Jano
mou sl sjesielddy ealy uolealasuoD UoIBUIMaN YUON pue Apaldols 1o} uoieynsuod ayl
Apnis Aemalnoy JUsIduy au] 99s1aA0 -
[BUBD PJOIXO
2y} 1oy 1SNJ] sIaAly puUe s[euBD ayl yum Juawsaalbe uawabeuew e dojeasg -
101138I(J 8Yl SSOIJE S, 3[2IUY 10 asn ay) Jo) ABalens e ysijqeisg -
sjessy abejlaH |20 Jo 18)s1Bal e dojaasg -
.01 Bupjlom os|e s| weey ayl
‘seale asau Jo Juswdojaasp Alenb ybBiy pue |nissesons syl poddns o} Jaisaoig dvy pue sjusuidojansp
: : : MaU || Joy aauepinB ubisap Buouls pue smalnay
plojfaH Jaddn se yons says Jabie| uo papiaoid Bulag os|e s| adlape abejlay |BluBISgNS = v v d i aQ
‘aBelay 1Ing 1no Jo Aljenb ayj Jo uoisols |eluawaloul ue Bunuaasid EelY UOREAISSUOD JO LUORRALIOD A JUSWLOIAUS: ¢N]
Ul Juepodw ate A8y ‘aunjeu ul ojeos |lews Aleane|al ale sjesodold ay) Jo AUBW BIIYAA HING 8u3 Jo Ayjenb auy SoUBYUS PUE J03101d 4W
[
‘sanss| abeylay ouoads Y SUOITED0| JSUI0 PUR SBALY UOIIBAISSUON “Wu
uiyum suoneadde Buluue|d pue sBuip|ing pelsi| U UCHE]YNSUOD )dads pue o
adiape dde aud Buipinoid 121181Q 243 ss012e suonesiueBlio Jayio pue siedojaasp ‘olgnd
|elauab ayl o1 Juswabeuely sbelieH uo adape Aljenb yBiy Janljep 01 @nUU02 Wea) ay |
"ADI|0d MaU BU] WO [[IA H10M UB|4 [B20T ayl e3e|dwod 184 jou s Adljod maN & v v suonngLiues
: : T Jadojanaq Jo) Ao1j0d smsu Jo uoneluawRdWI 2indag
ue|d 207 MO[I0) [IIM 1D @43 Joy uoineledald "GLOZ 11Un paonpoul Buiag AAT 2inionnselU] AJUNWWOS JO UOIDNPOIIUL 0L
10U 81 (710) Ana @injonnseliu] AjunwwoD ayl "uonedwos Bullesu ueld ainjoniiseiiul = v v aledald g DO 10) U4 @INjonAsSeIU| Ue 2iedald
ylomallel) Buiuued pauluisiap Ajeoo| pue 1sngod e dojaaag
‘Aemuapun sl (yDH) A2usbBy SaiUNWILLOD P SAUIOH 2U] YA JapInoid
palalsiBey, e se Ja)siBal 0] Ylom pue sluaA JuaLWabelbug Ajunwwon Jo Jaguinu e/ e/ (17D) 18N41 pue] AIUNWWOD
e Buipjoy s1 179 [1amiayD 2yl diysiaquual puaxs o] malA B UIm £1.07 Jlequiaides [laamdays Jo Juawidoasp BuioB-uo aey|ioe4
ul eoe|d saye] Bunesy |eieuan [enuuy (1 70) 1sni] pue ANUNWWOoD [[emiayD ayl
[onel | €1.02/90/0€ a|qeolidde y
SIUBWLIOLSH UO SJUSLIWOD 10 UONaANCT L JSUEND CLZLOZ bD uonuaq alnses|/aAns[qo




(1apenb siyy sieadde Jolew o)

%, 0 Sl @ouellopad UualINo 3y (Jeadde

18 paulnuaa0 ag pinoys juauidolanap Jofew o) suoedldde uo suoisipap s.Alioyine

ue Jo Jua2 Jad gz ueyl alow ou a1} exuewlouad s Ajuoyine Buiuue|d [eoo| e Jo

Allenb ayl 1oy pjoysalyl paiels suawuIaAob syl yum paledwos eyl pajou ag pinoys 3
‘paloyuow Anjaled ag 03 sanuiuod siyl ybnou ‘eouruliopad Jood Jo 2uUspiAS ou

sl aloyl -sieadde Jo) ainsealwl asuewlouad Su3 U 10BAWI UBD UOISIDAP YdBD 210J218U)
pue siaqunu [eadde |[elaA0 MO| U0 paseq Sl )l SB a|1JB|0A S| ainseall asuewlouad ayl

pieauo) Buinow sjgesbeuew

aqg | suoiesdde Jo andyBnoly; Buiulejuiew 8inNsus |IA Wes) auyj o] Juawiuiodde

MaU Y Jaylebol siy) ‘uels juaswsbeuey uswdojaasq Buipuooss Ag Bopjoeq ayj Jes(o
0] uaye] Buiag si uonoe Ajolld “syeam ¢z Alerewixoldde si yoiym Bopjoeq uoijelsibal
uonealdde Jo [aAg] JUSLIND BU) 01 PINGIIUOD OS|B aABY SAEDI|OY pUE SSIDUBIRA JEIS
‘saooeld

Bunjiom pue uoie|siba) ul sabBueys juasal pue Jo)siBal 0] 1ebuo| ayel pue xa|dwoo alow
ale yaiym ‘suonealdde Jolew Jo Jaquinu syl Ul asealoul [elauab e ‘asuapadald Bunel
mou suoiesldde Jolew Buipnjaul ‘sio1oe] Jo Jaguinu & 0] anp ale uonensiBal ul sAejaQ

aoueulopad snolaaid yum paledwos ‘ssalboud jueosiyubils sjuassidal

SIU1 pue paAdIyde udag SBY %59 Jo ainbly B ‘sainseswl Juawaaoldull JO UOIIONPOIUL aul
Buimolo) pue 1ey] sudsaq "aAIyde 01 JNJLIP I S83BLI 0S[e SIY] pUe 2INSESW 2|11B|0A B
aunb sawoo2aqg pessadold suoneadde Jo abejusolad ay) ‘suonedidde Jolew Jo siaguinu
MO UIAA “sawoaino Buluued punos ainsua 01 8¢ 0] sanuipuoed yoeoldde juswabeurw
Ayl YwolB Jaajap 01 paau 3Ul pUB 31BWID DIWOUOIS INDILIP JUSLIND 3] USAID)

18189019 4wy pue usalbpoops ‘[legadidg epnjoul seyg o1Berens Jaylo

‘weyxo|d Je se)s SNoleA

pue uo1Buippag pue uwied WeyyAp ‘plojhaH J1addn Jeisanig pAN ‘18188019 MS 1B

SE ||am SB PEOY YOIMIBAA JO 1S3AA |IIH UDlalg ‘apisyueg ‘splald ||omuUBH ‘peOY WeyInog
ae Alngueg ul seps Buisnhoy Jolew uo uaalb uaaq sey jhdul [enuelsgng

"alUl} SUO 1e piemio) Buiwoo

suoiealdde Jolew Jo Jagquinu B yym ‘sswi 18 payolals Alaa usaq aAeY $82In0sal ay ]
‘1011810 @3 Ssoloe says o1bejel]s Uo senssi

Buiuueld Jeisew pue Ayjenb uBisap ssaippe o] usalb uasqg sey adiape ubisap |eiueISgNS

20UewWlolSd U0 SIUSLWIWIOD

[PABIL
1o uonoallg

%0008 196.eL
%959/ [enjoy
v

%0005
1ebie| pasinay
%S89 [enjay

#o

£102/90/0€
| lauenp

a|qeai|dde
EL/ZLOZ ¥O

uolsioap [eshjal jsulebe pamojle sieadde Buluue|d

syeam ¢ Uiynam suonesldde Jeuio Jjo Buissasold

q
d
A |
(
syeem g Uiynm suonesldde Jouiw Jjo Buisseaold
[
C

rage 129

syeam ¢ uIyum suonealdde Jofew Jo Buissaoold

sjuawdojaasp Jolew o) souepinB ubisap aiedald

uoniullaq ainseajp/eanaslgo




Alanlep
2ys Jo Buluue|d uo asiape 01 sueag nbBejuoy Ag Aeadspun sl Juawssasse A)IgeIA Y
‘g1e1dwod amou s Yelq Buluue|d Aelusweddng yeiQ

‘ue|d |20 ayl Jo uoia|dwod mo|o)
o1 sey uondopy "IounoD Ag palapisuod usag sey Jeld SUl pue yoel uo ue|diaisel

‘paje|dwon aqg 0] syiom Jo awwelBoid |eull syl sjgeU uay] |Ia siyl Buiping
ay} 1o uoioniisuod pue ubissp pajielap ay) Jo) 10aloid piing pue ubisaq e apiaoid
0] J0]0B.11U0D Ulew Jo juawiuiodde Jo) a38/dwoo 1sow|e si asioiaxa Juawainoold ay |

‘uoipoelsies @1e|dwod Ino 01 passalbold aq |1m BuiBBeug a1gidwon Aleanoeld
se £10Z AINr 181 9L U0 DAD 0} 180 papuUel S19M SYUN [IB1eY W 320|810} 308(0.d

=

seale UBgIn pue $aJiuad Umol Jno Jo AouelgiA pue Aljenb ayy sAoldul o] 3I0AA

%96 01 salenba Yalym

%00'SZ 196JeL

Alngueg ul eale
peoy uoljog au} Jo Juswdolaaspal aul g ||eqaolds
‘uonelausbay apig |eueD ayl uo ssalboid ayep

18159219 Jo) Ueldieisely & 18|dwon

q
q

Al

sue|d Buiping Ayunwwon Jassolg ssalbold

(
{
(

age 1ou

awdo@asp
[BI2JSWLIOD 21UaD UMmO] 12159219 ssa1bold

- pue| padojansp Alsnolasid Lo 11ING S1aM 0 | JSLIEND Ul 1IING SSWOY 18U 1.Z]. 10 (€101 ¥ Il ﬁoo.mm_m:uo( pue| padojaasp A|shoiasid uo padojaasp sasnoy 9,
%E°'9g 0] UINJal 8y} Jamo| 0] SI SIUY JO J0aya sy Juswalinbal Jesh g syl 0] pappe aq 0]
Jayng %G B 1seg| 18 salinbal mou A21j04 JUSWIUISADD) "UB|4 |BD0T Mau Uy} WO} PIBMIO, 0,001 18618 %001 Jebre |
yBnoig ale se)s mau Se asll 0] ahuijuod [Im pue Buisealoul si Alddns ‘pajelisuowap | %0906 [eNaY || %0906 [enjoy sa)s Buisnoy dojanaap o] Apeal Jo Alddng
ag Apussalid jouues Alddns Jesh ¢, e yBnoylly "SUOiIpUOD 2ILIOUOIS [EUOCIEU PUE 18YJEW v v
Buishoy |eoo] ayj Ag paloaue Apoaldip sl seys Buisnhoy dojaasp 01 Apesal Jo Alddns ay
[PARIL £10Z/90/02 a|qeai|dde
SIUBWLIOLSH UO SJUSLIWOD 10 UONaANCT L JSUEND CLZLOZ bD uonuaq alnses|/aAns[qo




S3NIUNWLWOYD) pue SawoH ‘Adcuaby uswuoliaug au Buipnjoul
slauped Lum 310M O] SBNUUOD Wea | 193l014 pue pieog Alaalaq oiBaels 19)sa01g 003 ayl

J21sa01g Joj ueidiaisely
al] Jo Aaallep ay) ssalboud o) suauped UM HIOAA

‘panjonul 198 01 sjuapisal Jo) Alunuoddo auy) apinoad [eag usaln J181s221g au)
se Yons spalold Jauyio palgnadin Jons|smaul J8)sadlg 003 au) pue pajepdn ag 0] SahURUOD SlISJam
J21s801g 003 ay| padedaud Buieq si sjesodoud 12152219 159AA YUON 341 Jo) ABajens uoneynsuos v

awwelbold 1215921g-023 8y}
ul ayedionied o) sidoad [eoo] Jo) saniunpuoddo ainsug

&

sAem 9|0BUIBISNS Ul SLUI} 3.nsI8] DIy} puads 9 siom 0} ‘sl 01 950042 ajdoad susym aoe|d JuBIgA

e Buijeald ‘Jejdwsxa |eUoijeU B Sk 19)52219-097 Jo wawdojeaap uoddns o) siauped yum dIopn

U [[ermdayD Ul paleadde ssjoily

"MmoYS 1oL1sIq p Angueg au) Jo Hed se sjuapisal gop pue younT Big Jeisaoig au jo Led se sjuspisal
oGl ‘(Ae L Licy) Aely ul sAeme aalb 1sodwod Big 2aay) ay) Jo ped se siuspisal goos ol paxel

-] Japenp Jo) sjinsey  “sjuspisal o} aoiape aAlb pue Aousioiye ABlsus sjowold wiy

s|iig ABisua
a|geploye aAIyOE 0} SJUSPISa] 2J0W 2|geus § SaoY
10 Aousioiys ABlsus ay) aaoldwi o] sisuped Upim JIOAA

=

alWes au) op 0] 12LSIp 83U} Ul S18U10 Loddns \, $821n0sad [elnjeu Jo 85h HIWI| JUBLULIGJIAUS [lnjeu SL uo 1a.dwl 1no 85npal o] JIOAA

‘slapuayo [ejusjod

abelnoosip o} eale sy Ul ubis e J0a.8 O] S| BAlRHUI BUQ ‘Wa|do.d SIY} Bj42E} 0] SUD)EIJOSSE
Buisnoy au ypm Bunpiom are apa “Buidwnp Joj pasn Alises pue sjowal Usyo ale S8)Is 8sal|
‘seale abeieb ul sdiy A lews Jo way ajbuis Jaypie Ul asealoul ue Bupusadxa Ajusiing ale app

Angueg ul
Angswisy pue |IH Yolalg pue ‘1s1sa01g puasburny ‘uoiBuipry ul sesA auy Buunp aoeid aye] 0] sazjig
Jayung Anqueg ‘¥oImpJeH Je aunr Ul paouswLLIed sazyg Jay pooylnoqubiau jo swwelbold mau v

4I
95 19b1e] 19618} s1eak SIY) LINPNo steak 1se7 D
o 00} [erioY 1ousIq 2 Ul sdndly Jo [2A3] urejurew o} sbueyo T
Y - sdpAy Jo Jaquiny @
(9)]
o
s B a
“ ZH|g 4=yl pooyinogybisu Jo

awwelBbo1d anunuoo 0] SBIUNWILIOD [220] UMM 3IOAA

2Jes pUe paulelulewl [|2m ‘Ueajo ale seale [eQuspisal pue

saoeds uado ‘s2.1U22 UMO] ‘S123.)S INO SINSUS O] HIOAA

£10Z Aaning uoiorsies Jawojsny Wolj s|iejap 1oy Bunieme poob sjaas| uonoelsnes

0965 10 €L/Z10Z | Jopen uo dn
"asay) sonpau o} Bupiom are am ybnoue uoneloadxs Jo pesye ale safieuuo) |pue

S30IAIBS
P uonos|od asem 3 BuloAosal Jno Liim uooeisies
18wo1snd Jo sieag| ybiy jusiing syp urejurely
005°cT 19b1e |
1t 005°SZ [enloy [4pUR] O] USS 81SeM JO JUNOWER UL 83npsay

(AD) v

Jo11sIp 9y} ssoloe BuljoAoal asesloul 0} pue pashpold s1seas Jo JUnowe auy} 8onpal o} Bunjiom ‘seolaes BuljoAosl pue

UOI108(|00 S1SeA JUS||80X8 aplACd

S0UEWIOl2-4 U0 slUallILIOD

a|qealdde |
€L/ZL0Z YO

EYCITR
10 uoIalIg

£102/90/0E

L ENET uoniue ainsesiy/ealselqo

£1L0Z dUnf LD : J01)SIJ 12UdDI5) JduUed|D Y

¥102/¢10¢ - Ueld ssaulsng

[IPUNOJ JOLISIA [ISMIBYD




aWlel] ALl Yedm g aul ulynm |1e polad sy Bulinp peso|d sased 69

gL 18 paaladal s1sanbal aoiaas sind yoiym J1as1 Wwioyun wioy Indino syl yuam
3J12u0Dal 10U Saop ainbl siy] JeaemoH asuodsal e Jo) awiy 19618) ay] apisino
Buijies Z Aluo yum paaleoal s)sanbal a21A18s 59 Sa1eaIpUI 8|npow spuodal ay |

jueule|dwoo woil AlAIOR ON O asen

‘pazias Juswdinba punog "palnoaxa JUBLIBAA g 9SBD ‘syIlleq

kg pa1olAa g 10 ABS| MOU 1SN JUBUS| "LN0D Je pajuelb uoissassod v asen
‘peppe sases juelsisal 1o juajsisiad mau op

“YIuoW 2y JO puUS ay] 1B puUBY Uo
SOSBD g 219M 318l | 'Pas0|d Z PUB POAIR0al alam SaSED Palel ysil Wnipaw mau
£ yuow a1 Jjo BuiuuiBag ay] J& puey U0 SaSED pajel ysil WNIpawl G alam alay]

"alnoes-ul Y|
uaaq aAeY sieo/spaysysaipadold JI SI00P U0 payI0Uy OS[e SABL SUSPIEAA 188118
‘'syjuoW Jawwns ayj Buunp ainoses pue ajes saipadold Buidseay punole eale
[[eAUaYD Ul Ul panssl uaaqg sey Aualignd uonusasid awilo pasealdu] Jauenb
15414 BU1 1B puall |BULIOU € 8] Janamol sIUL Buljamp e ul AelBing Jo suodal aiow
9 paAladal sey [[amiayD 1eak 1se| awl siyl ueuy JaybBiy Apubls sl sjel AelBing

B SIY] T8 98BIl LB 885 0] A|8YI|UN 2I0l8l8L)) 1U81SISU0D
sulewal dnolB Ajwel Jeius ‘Aiunod ssoloe Buisl WD 1O SUoREdIpUl [eUoeu
ON "Wiou 0] yoeg Buljjel ale selel auwlo sasinbae ‘exids femul ue Buimoljo-

Builel seiel Ae|Bing pue a2
a[oIyaA JaW aqg 01 A[gYI| s1 19B.e] 21BdIpUl JUBAR|SI AWILD papodal Jo seale ||y

1011810 241 Ssoloe palaAllap Buleq swwelBboid Jojeanoy

i) S)2aM g UIUIA PaN0SaI S3SED 92UBSINU %,
(sinoy gf Jo wnuwpew e) pouad
<~ paquasald ayl uiyum 01 papuodsal sases aouesinu o9
& S35B2 QY JIUCIYD 2oNnpay
SWIIDIA YSI WNIpaW pue
<~ UBIYy BulAjoaul s1USPIDUL INCIABYS( [BI20S-JUR JO Jaguiny
- N
BETH
- o oy (‘udod 000k D
.< Jad) w4z Ag psuodal sjusplioul AelBing onsaulop sonpey Y
(1))
()]
o
| (udod 0oo1 Jed) %] Ag peuodal spuapiaul WD |[B 8onpay
S2J]U80 UMO} PUEB SaIIUNWIWIOD
| Jlayy ul sjes 994 sjdoad ainsua pue JoL1SIp ayy Ul
AW JO S|aA3] MO| Apealle Ulejuiew 0} siauned ypam JIopn
“ 1o11s1p ssouoe a|doad Bunoh 1o saunuoddossanaloe

[euonealaal Jo abuel apim apiacld 0] snunuod

spooylnogybisu pue ssiiunwiLLlod 2ol BulALIYl pue ajes Jo Juswdojaasp syl Loddns o1 siauped yum 1o

S0UEBUWLIOLISH UO SJUSWIWOD

[anel] £1.02/90/0% ajgeal|dde

JouoaNd | | JeHEND EL/TLOZ ¥O HONULRQ SINSESN/oARRIA0

€10Z aunr LD : 10M3siqQ BuialyL pue AyjjesH sjes v

¥102/€10¢ - Ug|d ssaulisng [1dUnod Jd3sIq [lPMIsyd




“Japenb 1xau auj Jo pus ayl Ag ||e 0} 9|qB|IBAR SpBL

aqg |1m podal siy "eo1alas syl Jo dn-aye) eyl uo podal AJepenb Jgnbal e
aplaoid Asyl "spasu Jiay] 198U URD S2IAI9S 21U auluLISlep 0] 82lApe pue dijay
Buiyeas suoAue uaslios 0] abeuy Jayo Asyl "uolBulpry pue Je1ssalg ‘Aingueg
Ul sjulod 1oB1U0D € aaBY Aayl ||@Ausy”) JO SlUSpIsal (e 0} aoiape Asuoll

pue 1qap apiacid o} 1aunon syl Ag papuny sl (gyD) neaing a2Apy suaziyn

Alunwwon [eao| ay) 10} SA2IAISS
Klosiape apiaold 0] 101088 AIBJUN|OA [B20| UM YJOAA

1911SIp 8y Ul 8j0l sAloe ue Aeld 0] S10199s Jjold Joj Jou pue AlejunjoA ‘Alunwiwod [eso| syy Hoddng

(uonesedo pauue|d)
s5aUY2IS puk 2Ae2| Joy Buiuueld 0} anp Japenb 1y Ul sauewLiopad pooo

4

sanuiuon
Auoyiny Alewild uo (SSyDN) UOIIEID0SSY SI1a1eD) SPIMUOITEN UM YJOAA
soualsuod (IS L/0axd) s1nIsu| spiepuels Buipel|

7 90140 Alanlleg uonenbay Jeyeg aul Je pleme Jeak au] Jo 1810 Yd Uom
18210 Yd SlIBeH 218y - SAINQSUIES YAt S8NUIIU0D ylom (yd) Alloyiny Alewld
sassauIsng |BOO| +0C UYIM play Jeuiwes Aleieg [euoijednoo

aouesinu pue asiou 3ybiu 81| Uo
Buipenusouos uolBullpiy ® Angueg ‘181saalg Bueaod zzer uonelado Ajuaung
‘Renns s eak s1y Jo s)nsal Buemy

€102 VAWs

au1 Jo uonanpoiul ayl Jo) Aesmlapun ale suoneledald pue snopald do 1o ued
I8 OUM SI2IL0 dAL Ula PaUsI|JeISS USad aABY SUORR[aI BupIom Jua|[8ax3
"'S92UBL0 QWS Jo) pauodal s1ash ayl pue palnsul un sem

SE paysnid pue pazias sem pasn Bulag a)aiyaa auyl ao1od Ag paddols sem QNS
palalsiBaiun ue wea) aul Jo Jaquiaw e Ad palddns uoewloul JO JNsal B sy
llemiayD ul sqNs BuipleBal pajelausB useq aaey suodal aausbijjeiul 2
‘uoiloe Jo Aep [elew delds |euoneu e Jo Led sem uolelado

sIUL 2o110d BIDISN 1S9AA PUB SIUBULION ‘w3 aUl ‘dAL Buinjoaul uonelado
yoey2 dois e ‘Adojer uonelado ul paledisiued wes) syl €10z Ael LZ UO
‘sjuealdde sy Jo) parsenbal uasg sey uoneLuloul leuonippy Buipuad ¢ pue
I Uoljoas Japun suonedijdde z aaeY apA L UOIIDaS Japun apew (QINS) Jeleaq
jerely delog e se uonensiBal o) uonealdde | passaooid aney am | Buung

S0UEBUWLIOLISH UO SJUSWIWOD

[orgI]
10 uonoalg

6l 1 1ebiel
Ovl ‘|enjoy
#.Mu

£102/20/0¢€
| I8LEBND

ajgeal|dde
ELZLOZ ¥

pale|dwoo suoioadsul sasiwald poo) paseq 3sil Jo Jaguiny

uoipoajold Juswuoliaue g A1a)es M

‘Unesy aljgnd poddns ‘sesssuisng/sieuped Y IO o

Py

Sep Joye saued
UAO] Ul BUOE Buly|em ales |38l paySE LUaym sjuaplsal 1o %

rage Too

yiep laye
auole awoy Buiag ajes |aa) PaySE USUM SJUpISal JO 9,

sjusplaul Jyauyi [els iy

uoniullaq ainseajp/eAnoelgo




‘uawsslbe
Buipuny e yBnoiyl yn by Ag palaajep Bulag suoissas a]A1Sa)l| a0y

lagquieydeg
Ul WnioH 1o013sig aul Jo) padojaasp usaqg sey epuabe Ue pue saajeluasaldal
dnolo ajdoad Jop|O AQ papusne (oM 21aUm SUINIOL Balk [B20] 3L

“

a|doad Jap|o 1ol Ajyjuow
suoIssas a|k1Sa)l| aAIDR OF JaAallap 0] siauped Uum YI0pA

a|doad Japjo
1sBuowe sajA1se)l| Juapuadapul g aaIloe ajowold 0] YIOAA

1011SIP BY1 SSOJ0R SpIepURIS puB S80IAISS 'Salll[Ioe]l Ylesy |20 1o uswaAcldwl Loddng

laqo1o0 o1 Ajne | wody yoeq 1nd usaq

Alunwwos
alf) 10} 558208 UlBJUIBW puUk Wnashpy Aingueq Jo aimny
wia) Buo| 8yl a1noes 0] 1shi] JUuepuadapu] Ue ysljgelsy

|o00yYoS
ladoon pue AWapesy allyspIoXO YUON ‘eliuan ainsia
usalBpoopp 01 aBesn/syISIA 10 §|2A2| 1USLIND UIBJUIB|Y

rage o4

Sey 91ep 1SNl 0] Jajsuel] 8y} ‘pasiaal usad SeY ajnpayds syl [jam Buissaibold =
‘1818901g ‘|ooyog 1adoon pue Awapedy el gL0'zZ 19618
2IYSPIOXO ULON 1B SJUSAS pUB aljuad ainsia usalbpoopa e abesn apis O uo L¥3°0¢ [enioy
Alp pasesaloul 0] anp ‘ZLozZ Ul poldad swes uo £7g'g dn uolysod Japenb 15114 1 M)
1ndyBnolyy saljuad syl joaye >_mmhm_>_um 0] ezl S0 E0E L
sanuiuoo ainso|d jood Yyoea) pue Ae|d anuaen ainsie Ja)saolg Jaramoy ‘1able) 1O Uo : N
papsaoxe Ajpyblls aaey aljueD ainsia uolbulpry pue ajueD ainsie [[eqeoldg 7 048 mmm_ WY

'ZLOZ UO OEE b UMOP 818 Ydlym 0.G'GEZ (10} Japenb 1siy

saldwA|ered
2 dWAIO Z10Z |NISsa00Nns 3yl Buimo||0) S311Ua0 31nsIg)|
1013sIp 01 aBesn 7 susia Jo [aa8] YBIY S1aA8] JUSLIND UIBIUIR

1911s1p 8yl Ul seiunyoddo ainsig| pue uoiesiosl Aljenb poob spiacid

‘flojoelsies s| pue aoeld uaye] sey Buloyuow
Japenb 18114 ‘saunpoddo Jasjunjoa Buliaalap SI 10BIIUOD J02UUOD J123JUN|OA

“

S0UEBUWLIOLISH UO SJUSWIWOD

[orgI]
10 uonoalg

£102/20/0¢€
| I8LEBND

101118Ip 8yl ssoloe Buleaiunjoa uoddng

uoniullaq ainseajp/eAnoelgo




314 sefoidws 1ad aoussqy ssauyaig wia) Buo sfeq sbeisay §0°00
314 safojdws 1ad soussqy sseuydIS wWia Hoyg sheq abeisay 9900

9zl o ¢L/ielog
ul poliad aules 1aao Juawaacidwi - G200 SeM LD 0] 2181 S0UASIE SSAUNIIS

314 Jad souasqe ssauyois shep abelaay
2aoUasge SSaUYIIS

‘| Japenb 1oy sposloud

1o Buiyousd jeyden sy Jo maiaal yBnoloul B 18l GL/yLOZ 0 PJEMIO) pallied aq
o] paysanbal Bulaq s saueleA oyl Jo Ajiolew syl sunr Ul GLAFLOZ Ol #L/ELOZ
wol} paisanbal abeddiis awos ag ||1m alay] 18yl ale suonosloid Alles Aepy Ul

(965 / %z+) a|yoid 1suieBe ainypuadxa
18Bpng |enden uo souellea abejusolad

oel uo sl 1ng 186png o) puadsiapun |[ews e Aluapl suonossloid Alues
aunr u) 1ebBpng syl yuam sul ul si puads 1eyy Alnuspl suonosloid Alueae Aew u)

(965 / %z+) a|yoid 1suieBe ainypuadxa
196png snusasy Uo aouellea abejusolad

100

‘€10z lequaidag ul uoissag
Buiuue|q anjhosxg pue sapiwwon Buluue|d 1@6png sy Jo swwelboud
3iom ‘ysalyal S yua Buisuswwos ssasoid 186png GLLOZ - YoB1 UD

ABojouy2a] Jo asn aAloale 2loul Bupew Buipnpul Alaalep
QOIAISS 221D pUE ASUOL 1O anjeA 0 JUSWHWWIOD
s JIounos ey Bunowold pue Buielsuowap sanuoud
21Bajea1s 0] paydlew sl 19Bpng §,10UN0D aUl 2insul

D alay -

rayc

sanIwwon Buiuue|d 186png o1 Buipodal pue
dn jas saley SsauISNg pUE aWSYIS Sa1By XB] [19Uno) Jo Buloyuow ayinadg

18U XE] [I9UN0D pUE S&1el SSaUISNY 10 UOITES![EI0)
0] seBueyo sy Alleallvads MalAsy S821N0SaY JUSWLISAOD
[e207 83 Jo suonesldwi sy o) ued o] enunRuon

s3]y S58UISNg puUR shuog
SaWOH MaN Buipn|oul MaIngy $321N0SaY JUSLIUISAOLD) |B20T JO suoiedlduw
12pIsu0d 0] paysallal Bueg (sS4l W) ABs1ens |eiouBUId W] WnIpapy

wiojal
ale]|am JUSWUIRA0L) |0 10edLUl [BIDUEBLIL 8U] SSAIPPE 0]
yoeoldde aa1aa U paquuis pue JuaWwe|dull o] 8nunuon

=

saoines Alloud pue suljuol) uo sebpng [1oUNoD Jsjjews Jo

10edwi syp Buisiwiuiw ‘uonesiueBio punos Ajjeloueul B pue ASUcW 0} SnjeA SplACld

90UBWIOUSH UO S]USWIWOD)

[PABIL £1.02/90/0€ a|qealidde y

louonand | | JspEND €L/ZLOZ ¥O UOIIUYSQ SINSESIN/BAFOSIG0

€10Z 2Unr LO : [I2UN0) A3UOJ 10) anjeA 3|qISSa20y

vLoc/cloc - ueld

ssauisng [I9UNoY 3913SI] [IPMIRYD




ulnnno aenajes o] pash ag

1w s1aBIe) £1/210Z dWiUBsW o) Ul Ing pamalaal Bulag Ajusling ole sjebie] =
el
¥1/21L0Z | JSHEeNnD ypm sjgeledwo) LD uo
-
el
€1/210Z | JsHEenD yum sjgqeredwo) LD uo
-

GZ'0g Jebiel

96'6¢ [enjoy
v

‘uonealgnd podal [eull syl 0] sABjep ||BWS SWOS Ul Jnsal ABW ]| "e1el asuodsal
a1 1s00q 01 sial|ddns ayy yum uSyeUapUn USad SBY UOIIOB SAIJ021107)
‘UMOp ale sa]el asuodsal JaAsmol ‘PaUOoISSILILLIOD Uaag Sey AeAlns ay |

‘paysiignd os|e 1 UONEWIOJUI [BIZUBULL PUE 81ISHEM S,[10UN0D
8U1 U0 3|ge|iea. sl Jodal [enuue aU] "panuiuod sey e1ep 1o uoiedlgnd

souewloyad pue s]s00 N0 INoge 1Usledsuel

5Z°0€ Jefie]
£8'6¢ [enjdy
ELECL 1D
v

juswhediaaQ (palanodsy gH %

P=3531100 HANN %

(aneINWND) pa102(|02 XB] |IoUNoD) 9%,

sanuoud
|eo0| Jo Buipuelsiapun pool B SeyY [1I2UNoD) 8yl 2INsUd
0] JSUUBL A3 1500 B Ul SIUBPISAI [BD0] UM JNSUOD)

40N
'S

Anunuoddo pue Ayjigeluncoaoe
‘Buipuelslepun ajowold pue ‘eouewlopad pue S3S00
1no 1noge a1gnd sy 0} 8|qejieAR UoBWIoIU au3 aaodw|

rFage

1 Buleq Aq noA 1oy Ajladoud 108 0] palshl] 8g UBD am JeU] 8] l1SuUcwa]

saiped paiyy o) paplacid Buleq sasines 1oy sajonb - ssalboid Ul

iy

L0£ZZ OS8| - WawabBeuey Alnuiuod ssauishg - piepue)s aojoeld 1seq

awoaul Buisiwixew pue s1soo Bupnpal ‘sadiales aplaoid
10 21eYs 0] sieuned yum saqunuoddo Jayuny alojdx3

{uonesiuouliey pue UoiesIplepuRlS Wa1sAs)

Al1snpul paipalooe A|[eulalxa Jayloue 18A paAsIyoe SEeY 9JlAISS aleys a AH_ swuweiboyd S} Jo omy wwmco_ 03 uone|al ul >__mo_up_omo_w
isnpul paip I W W 19h parsly Y ol Lol paieys syl a2IAI2S | D) paleys syl pagquie pue dojeasp 01 anuiuon
padojanap Buleq ased ssauisng 10| Aem ¢ pue uoneluawadwl S3IDUSIDILS 2.NI3S 0] SADIAISS B SUISISAS
10} panoidde asen ssauisng s821n0say UeWnH - ssaiboud ul yIopp = v v 2110 Yoreq paleys paguie pue Juawa|dw 0] anuiuoen
8]S02 [10UN0Y) 8onpal 0] siauned Ul MJOAA
[aAB1L £1.02/90/0% ajgeal|dde
80UBWIoLSH UO SJUSWWOD 16 UONIAC L JeLEND CL/ZLOZ YO uoniuaq ainseay/aaloalao




18Bpng pajuoid uo o4s Ag dn swoou

el
LD uo

vL/SL0Z € Jepent [pun Hodal 03 anp JoN

B/U

paonpal jabie] 810N

‘pasioyIne pue

pasiel uaag sey Japlo aseyoind pijeA B [lun ao10AUl Jejnoiued ayy o uswhed
ay1 Bulkelap s1 SIYl “@dueIsuUl 1sii) 8yl ul pasiel Bulaq Japlo aseyoind e 1o
lagwnu Japio aseyaind e 1noypa Jaypa paalasal Buiaq (|18 a1e Sa2I0AUl AWOS

00'g6 19bie]
G096 [ENIOY
v

FL/SL0Z 1o} pamalaal Bulag Alualino ale sjeble]
95,/€°0 10 eoUBLlIONSd | JOUBND €1/Z10Z U0 UM

pamalnal Buleq Ajualing ale sebie] ¢1/2102

(Al
19Bie] 18UIEBE 99/ 71 Jo @duewouad | Jalend ¢1/210zZ Uo dn S| aauewllolsd

2

S0UBWIONSH UO SIUBWWOD

[oABIL
10 uopoalg

00°0f Jebue]

)

anusaal Buped Jen ¢
A

1o/

[

uone|Ul n.

MO[2Q SI YDIUM GL /¥ L 0Z Ul 9SBaIDUI XB] [12UN0D B IaAIlRQ

rayc

sAep og uIypsm pred saoioau|

(eAnBINWND)
HO usnupp (Aed,0 aH %

(anneINWNI)

£102/20/0¢€
| I8LEBND

E.Nm/,_\mao,q Buipueisino Buipnioul paisaodey 9H %
ajgeal|dde
CL/ZLOZ YO uoniuaq ainseay/aaloalao




‘sallinbus Xe)] 1I2UnoD pue s1sanbal
21SEM - S82IAI8S BUIN|OA 158U BIY 2] 10 0M] S1BLUOINE 0] ABM Japun 8 198loid v

‘prepuels UBIY e 0] palaAlep
1 Yalyam uonedljgnd pasug|ed pue sAlBWIoUl Ue SUlBLUa] YUl [[amlayD

‘AlBuipIo22E YoeQgpaa) 0] puodsal pue sASAINS UOIJDBISIES B 1IN0

Buijjod &g (A Wea) SUOREIIUNWLWOD 3U| "SSIIAISS [12Unod a1owold pue ueadjal
alaym s1uaAd algnd puane (1M Wea) aul Woll aalelussaldal v -a|qissod

sk Apjainb se sauinbus elpaw [e1208 |[e 0] puodsal 0] Wik apA "S)Isgam pue
22IA18S 18UI0ISND SE YONS spoylall [euoiipel] alow yum diysisuped ur Buiom
‘a11gnd ay1 yum BUIFESIUNWLIOD JO SUBSUI SAllBUIS)E UB SE BIPaLU [BID0S JO

ash Bupjew ale apa “UolBWIoUl JUBAS|al Buipeojdn pue 2ngnd syl yum Ajjoalip
BuiBeBua Ag Ja1Irm] pUB Y00gaded Uo slamo||o) BulmolB snuijuos elpsw
|BI20S pUB Blpaw syl ybnolyl sallols ssasons 1aunos Buigowold Ag sanoeold
ale apn ‘palsanbal usym asuodsal Al0]OBJSIIES B SaNsSS| SABMIE [IDUN0D aU) pue
1oW ale sauUlpeap || 2INsua 0] BIpaW S} Yum Bunjiom oS|e ale spp ‘9oUBADPE
ul dn pabbe|) ag ued sanss| saebau ranysod Aue os sjuawpedap [eulaiul

unm sdiysuoigejal Buoils ulejuiew o) Bupiom S| LIES] SUOIIEIIUNWWOD aU |

"alUBIBWI paledo|e ay) uiyum suonesidde

pue sjue|dwos ‘sauanb Jawolsno |[e 0} puodsey ‘Buiyiom ale ausqam

N0 uo syulladAy (e ainsug ‘sajnuiw /sepuabe ‘e sBunsaw o Bunejal
UOIBLWIoUI pUB Sasea|al smau ‘sjuawnoop Buiuueld apnjoul o] "Ajejeinaoe
pue Apjoinb aysgam syl 0} papeojdn ag pINoOUS UOIJBWIOLUI JUBAS|S) pUB

MaU |y "SY21|2 9ShoL 8a1y3 UIYIM UOIJeLIoUl pajsanbal Ulelqo ued ausqgam
2y Buisia slawo)sno ainsua o] pley Bupom ale Uea) S9oIA1as J1aWolsno ay |

S9211J0 [1oUN0Y 1B S82IAI8S BUISSa2e UBY] Joylel 582IAleS
3UIUO 1O &SN JaWo]sho BuIsSealoul Ag 51502 @0npay

[louno auy1 Ag peplaoid uonewlolul
0] SS200E PUE Y1IM UOIIORISIIES JO S|aAd] aroidwl|

FPage 190

S20IAISS 8|QI185200. pue Alenb ybiy Jo Asalep 2yl ybnoiyl 201A18s JaWo1sno poolb aplacid am ainsua 0] HIOAA

S0UBWIONSH UO SIUBWWOD

[oABIL
10 uopoalg

£102/20/0¢€
| I8LEBND

ajgeal|dde
ELZLOZ ¥

UouLaq ainsean/2an0aldgo




'SN20Y JEA[D 2INSUA 0} Jualldojaasap Ul S| aupno aulwelfold v jualaleusw spiodal pue

JUAWNJoP Jlucsidal@ Bulpnjaul ‘uoljBLLIo)SUR) 231A1aS 18 pajoallp sioalold jo Jaguinu e Jayjabio) Ind o) BuuuiBaqg s1 awwelbold ay | « UOHBLLIOISUBLL SOIAlRS

‘abueys jeuonjesiuelilo NG se yans spafold Jofew pue ‘uoljesiuouLBy ‘[ensn S SSaulsng 22Inosal o) AJljige punole

WI22U02 soajjal shyels Jaguly ‘abe)s Buiuueld ay) ul mou aseyd uonesiuowleH "pasofa Alleulo) pue aja|dwod aseyd uolesipiepuels ~ v v SA0IAIBS PRIeUS LD

awwelBold uoewiojsuel |

"€1/20/Z0 U aauBlLopad Malaal 0] J2all || Spea| aLlal)) ay)
pue Anp Buunp aoe|d aye} || | Japenb jo pua au} 1o} UOKOS|0D BB SaUBLLIOLAd "PRIYBIYBIY Usag aABY SaNss] 10 SYSH OU Ajuaund| o
“Jeak Buioa ayy Joy sanuoud jas sey pea| alwayy yoea yom siy) Jo Ued se pue paja|dulod uaag sey Jodal jenuue ay]

salnjnd J2yBug Alingueg

yuow pau Apea pauado Ajlejolo aq i Juawdopasp mau ayL | o anuan umo] Jejsang

‘JuawdolaAap Ul AjJUaling S| 24jUad ssauisng

2y} o} ased ssaulsng v “Alleucieu pajuelf ag o) uoissiuad Guuueld umol-o0aa Js41 2y} si uoissiwiad Guuued Jejdwaxa ayl « 1oysadlg UMe L 093

awweliBold ase|d

leael] Jo | €LOZ/90/0C gLeLoe

awwelfolq
uooadqg | layenp YO

20UBLLIOLSH UO SJUSLILIOYD

gLoz aunr Lo

¥102/€10¢ - STNAVEOO0Hd TIONNOD LIIH1SIAd TTAMEIHD

Page 139



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 140



‘Pleydn jou suonebaje UCIBUIWLIASI - "2SED Jendiged ay) Yjism PaAjoAUl U9ag Jou peyY I2I1L0

2y} se 122140 2y} Jsurebe suonehis|e ay) panyal pue (safepoys jeis pue suoneddde jo awnjoa ybiy o}
anp ylom Jo Bopaeqg) AB[ap 1o} UOSEaI [ENJIE Y] pRULIUOD asuodsal ay] ‘pouad Jeak om) B JaA0 apew
pey 2y ey suoneaidde (e jsurefie uBedwea e pa| Apeadle Buiaey uoned)dde Buuueld siy dn pjay pey
1321140 Jeinaiped B Jey) Ul UOHEUILILIISIP O] pajejal sem juieidwod ayj Jey) pabs|e jueuiedwos syl (AVIA
playdn jou suocijefiaje uoeuILILISI]

- ‘uoenyis Jay ul Jueadde Aue Jo) swes ay) a1am DHAD JE sUswWalinbal 2y 18y} Ing eusiud Busyp asn
AeW SafjOYINE Jey) PauLuod asuodsal ay] "UOIJEWIOUI SWES aU} Jo} PaySE g Jou PiNoMm UOIEN)S
12y Ul SI13YI0 |24 OS[B 3US Ul PAAI PeY ays 1ouisig snolald B Ag pauinbal usaq jou pey Jey) UoIRULIOI
10} PaYSE SEM 2US SE UOIJRUILILIISIP O] pajejal sem Juiedwod sy jey) pabaje jueuieidwos ay] : 7144V
o=sunr | =Aepy | =udy

uoneulwlasip o) Bullajal 1o Buifia)e paalaoal sjuedwon

‘dnoufi ayy uni diay o} s1aajunjoa Guipuly U pue
slagquuawl mau Buiinioal yia sannaip Buiaey asam yaiym sdnouf aidoad Japjo omy ©) poddns papiaold

suoIe)NsSUO Jo Jaalgns pue Aouasnbaly ‘diysiagquiawl
3PN[auUl [|IA SUCISSNASIP USYM Z JALEND IO} PRINPaYIS S| [AUBH SS220y g AJIBND aU) JO MalAll Y

‘Aemuapun si Jaquisidag 1o} pajnpayds wnioH yjie4 ayj Jo) Buuuel4 ¥aegpas) aalisod
Aiaa Ul paynsal pue sjuedidiyed 09 JSAO UYJIm PIpURE |2 SEM )| "LUIOJSY aJBlapA Pue saiunyoddo
Alejunjoa Buipnpoul ualufojduwa alam Yaiyam 10} sauwlal) A2y ay) ‘sunp Ul aoe(d 400} wnio4 Ajjigesip 2yl

"1sNBNY Ul JUsAS XaU ay] O PALIE]S SBUY IOAA “S2IILOUIW Jluyle pue Auaple Alenaiued ‘suspisal
[e20] AUBLU AQ PRPUalE [|[am Alaa SBMm pue |Udy Ul play SBam JURA2 [lBAA AlUnwIWo? ay) Buiosuuo)

UOI1OBISIIES JaWO0]ISND) PUB §8800Y IR | | aWway |

S221A18G 1IN0 Jo AIBAI[Op aU] M3IAR) O

Deasna—4 44

rage 141

[lol pue uonejusws|du] Ueld YieoH g 2oy aul Uluim
pley sidoad Jap|o 0] pajelal sanloalgo aloads JojUo

salbaieis s2|doad Jep|O 2uads Jo 1no

UOoIIE)NSU0D

Aunwwos [jamiayn syl 1noyBnoldy) sjusas
[njBullBaW  pue 3|gissedde apiaold o)

S2UBLLIOIaH U0 SIUSLULLOD

[ored] €10Z/90/0¢ || @lgeoydde y
Jouooang | | JeuEnD CLZL0Z +O

¢loz3dunr Lo

¥102/¢1 02 : senifenb3 [1ouno 101sIg [IPMIBYD

uouleq sinsesn/BANR3[M0




ABajelns auy Ul paiiuepl

SLUIE 0} AINQLIUOI Op UCIDas SHIHUNLIWIOY 3 apISAIJUNOY) 23U} JO SWEBIISHION [BIAARS ‘IBARMOH
‘palojuocwl 1o pansind Ajpaloeold Jafuol ou si ABajens [end ay} Jo Alaalap saiuoud Guedwod o) and
1eak sy} puny o) diysiauped ayy ‘aaisod Alaa s) diysisupe 0] spodal aAloy 09

J1L0Z un paysaljal uaad sey ueld diyslauped AJUNWWOD) JaJes [eadayD 8yl

‘passnasip alam sallebing pajable) 0] 1oalgns Bulag AjJunuwiwod

uelsY 2y} punolde sanss| GUISSIL SBm SaIJIUNWWIOD UBISY 2y} Wol) uolejuasaldal jng pasoidu

SEBU S2[IUNWILWOID J[|RAET} U} WOy asuepually "Bunsaw [einBneul sy play sey pue dnolf allyspioixo
1SaaA aY) Yy pafilaw sey Buijesw [[pauayD 2yl "anuijuod sjuaas dnolsy Alosiapy Juapuadapu)

"1shBny Ul JuaAa JXau ay) 1o} PalE]s SBY HIOAA “S2IIIOUIW Jluyle pue Auaple Alenalded ‘suspisal
[ea0] AUBLU AQ papuaje [|[am Alaa sem pue |Udy Ul play seam JUaAa [lBAA AlUnWIWIO?) ay) Buioauuo)

=

SaNIUNWWOD 8AISaLY0D puUe Buong Buiping : ¢ swayl

paalfie sjuane salUNWWOD Bujosuucy "saway) XIs ||e 1o} aae|d

Ul sjuawiaBueLre Japea| sway] ‘AeMmiapun SUCIIOE pue pays|geisa sanuold sainnd Jabug ¥ 1/ 102
"JB}SaWOoH pue AU SaliWeS BuiaLyl 2y) ypam uoielGajul pue juawabiebus Aouabe nw poosy
20D AUNNIDS g MAIAISAO PUB aANd2aXT AQ palapisuod Hoday [enuuy sainind Jabug ¢1/z 102

&

uonealdaq pue Ale

“Japlenb Jxau ayj Jo
pua auy} e ajge|ieAe aq [ pue BuisnoH Ul pajuawaldll ad 0} ale sainseall UOIBLSIES JaWOISNd maN

playdn jou suoijeBbale ucljeUILLIISI - "25ED Jenalyed ay) Ylia PaAjoAUl Usad Jou peY Jadllo

ay} se 122140 ay) Jsurele suoneba|e ay) painjal pue (safiepoys jeis pue suoneadde jo awnjoa ytiy o}
anp sJoa Jo Bopjaeq) Aejap 1o} UoSeal [ENJIE Ay paullijuod asuodsal ay] "pouad Jeak om] B JaA0 apew
pey ay ey suoneaidde (e jsurebie ubredwea e pa| Apeadle Guiaey uoneadde Guuueld siy dn piay pey
1321140 Jeinaiyed B Jey) Ul UOIEUILILIISIP ©) palejal sem juiedwod ayj Jey) pabae jueuedwod ayl " AVIA
playdn jou sucijefiaje uoyeuILLISI]

- ‘uolenyis Jay ul Jueaidde Aue Jo) awes ay) alam DHAD JE slUsWalinbal ay} ey} Ing euajuo Bulayip asn
AW saljLIoyjne Jey) paulijuod asuodsal ay] "UOIJELIOUI SWES aU} IO} PaySE ag JoU PinoMm UOIEN)S
12y Ul s13yjo |24 Os[e aUs Ul paAll pey aus Jouisi sholald e Ag palinbal usaq jou pey Jey) Uoijeuliou
10} payse Sem ays Se UOIJBUILILIOSIP O] palejal seam juiegidwod ay) Jey) pabaje jueuredwos ay] : J1y4dY
o=aunp L =ABl | = |Udy

uoneulwlasip o) Bullajal 1o Buifia)e paalaoal sjuedwon

S2UBLLIOIaH U0 SIUSLULLOD

EYCITR
10 uoIalIg

nhbau| Buipioe] : Z sway |

£102/90/0€
WEIT=)

s|geadde )1
SLTLOZ ¥O

S23IAISS INO UIYIM
spaau sjuapIsal (e (14N} @M AINSUa 0} AHUNLULLIOD Japim 2y} JO
Buipueisiapun pue aBpajmouy s laslayD) asealoul o) anUuoy

'S20IAISS [820] Ul JSN1) PIINg PUB UOISUa} AJUNWWod Aue
aonpal pue JGIYBIY ©) 221104 A3lleA sawey ] uja Bupiom Juior

suolje|al Ajunwwod Buolis ping pue Jayjafio) yiom
0] SaUNWILIOD uypam sdnouf Jualayp 1oy saiunpoddo aacidw)

(pwwelfiold Aingueg Ul sainjnd Jaybug)
19UISIP a4} Uy UoEALdap Jo 91940 Y} yBaIg O} SNUIUOD)

D a e
rage 14

Salnseaul UOIIDBJSIIES
aoliaeg Jewolsny Buisnod Jo aBuel e eyepapun

paAlgsal sjulE|dWod o aInJeu § JUNOWE JOJUOKH

uouleq sinsesn/BANR3[M0




‘ssauyeam pue asoeld poof Jo seale Bunybiybiy sease

22IAas JURIaLip Je Aleuwsaiul Buyool ag s dnolsy Bulaa)s AJlenb3 ay) JeaA siyl 'ssa20.4d uoonpul
llay) Jo ped se ajnpowl Buiulea-3 ay) pajejdulod asey siapels mau Iy Buiuiel] Ayenb3 alemy «

Ie4 ayj papuajpe pey yels Guiuea|D pue jodap ayj Buipnjoul ‘ye)s [ Jeak [elouBUl JSE| AU} JO pua au) Iy

“1eak siy) Jo ¥ Japenb ul uefie adeld aye) || 2s101aXa

SIY] JUAWILIAAOS) [BI0T JO) ylomaweld Ajjenb3 ay) Japun Bulasiyay, JO [aAd] @ouewlopad B surejurew
[I9UNOY) 28U} JEY} SLLIJUCD SJUALUSSASSY J[8S Ul "JUALUSSASSY Jas §,[10UnoD) 2y} JO MalAal B yoouapun ~

dnousy Buuaals Alfenb3 ayy ypam Buole ‘1210 Adllod ajelodion ay) ‘Jeak [elaueuly 1SE| au) JO pua ay) v

€L0C

1snBiny Ul pajeidwod uaaq aAky sjeaddy Ae4 [BjUaWIRIIU| 22UO UYBUApUN a4 |14 JIphy Aed [enb] Uy

spoday aosueullopad Alayeny

3|01 22I0BUOAA
plesaloas Allenb3 Aapen «

sv[3 pajeidwo)

ueld Buflioy vI3

ueld uonoy Ajenb3

-:3JI5gaa S|12UNOY) JDUISI [@AJRYD U punoy ad (e ued Buimoliol ayl

Alenb3 o1 JuswwwoD

“1eak sy}

uo Jaje| sjusAa Buimojio) dnjas 0} usyeUapUN S| YoM AJUSLND “SAIUNWILWIOI [820] Jordu] [[IAA JI AMOY pUE
s]lauaq ay) 0} sabuey? JUadal puelsIapun 0} Jels DA pue siauped padipy pue aidoad oz 12A0 Ag
papualie alam [udy Ul Pjay LWIoJaI SUB)apA UO SJUSAR [BUCHIPPY "Sisuped woll yoeqpas) aalisod Alsa
YlIm [NJSS239ns AIaA alam SIa)aAkl) pue AsdAD) pue 21| [290] OJUI UCHEIBaJUI-) SISPUSLIO SIUSAS JUSIaY

&

"RAAING UONOBSIES
[BNUUY 2U} UILIIA P2PNIOUL S|21UE UB PUB YUl [[2MIayD) Ul dn 2)um ‘SJUDAR J& 2|qe|IBAR slayaysialsod
SaPN[UI YaIym M N 2)eH dojg Joy Jeak ay) Jo Japenb 1s.1i au) JnoyBnouy} SUCIIEIIUNWILIOD Panuiuoy

S22IAI9S JAWOISND) YIm os[e pue pakedsipsa|gelieak siaisod pue afieq AJjenb3 DD Jepun a)sgam
ZW¥dO1 2Y} 01 qul| B aABY MOU DD "gNH 2Y) wodl uel Anguegq o} aijoads dnolb B sAey Zvd4O 1
'GZ-¢ | 10 26e ay) usamiaq 2idoad | 997 10} dnolb W 2401 Uia yul| DD u2as sey Japenb siy |

"diystauped ay) Aq palaaliep Bulieq pue 22e(d Ul 51 Ajuno)

3y} JO BaJE JS2M YHOU 3U] 0} Ue|4 uoljay §,3/doad Buno, *g usipjiyD [19unoy) AJUnoD auIYspIoxo
1200120 Ul ¥2am Aoeloowa(] [e207 ay) 0} dn Buipes| aoeid Buye) sanialoy

‘PR)0Sj2 SUOAIOS SBY MOU

|00Yas AlBpuoaag yoeg "JUaWwelied yino A ay) uo pajuasaldal 2idoad BunoA au) o) poddns Buipiaoid
"J2J)IA] pUB YOOgade{ SE YINS BIPaW [BID0S JaYjo

Buisn os|y “aidoad BunoA 10} uoijeuLoUl JU2.LNd apiacid ©) pajepdn ApeinbBal si 2)sgaaA UINCA ([RAJaYD
-} Jlayenb Buunp apew ssalfoid pooon

oM Jiay) ojul Ajjenba
paguwsa pue ajowold $221A18S PUE JJels ainsug

SpJepuels aacldwyuieluiew o} eLajld
Buiaaiyoy jsuretie asueullopad DD Mmalnay

sjuawalinbal Juawularch (e sjeawl DD alnsug

40

1no Buiensuowaq : G sway |

- 4 AN

ANUNWILIOD NG Uy AJISISAIP
1O SSBUIIBME ,SIaUPRH pue saahojdwa DD 9siey

-

madyc

diay 0} sdnouff Ajunwiliossuoleiuasaldal
AJUoUIW Ypan syl ysijgeisa pue aiojdxg

uonesaub Jabunok sjusip syl yum abebus
0} SWIOY YIS *g s262(|00 ‘S|O0YIS [B20] YA JIOAA

Buipueisiapun pue Juawsbebug aAnsod | ¢ aWsy L

S2UBLLIOIaH U0 SIUSLULLOD

EYCITR
10 uoIalIg

£102/90/0€
WEIT=)

s|geadde )1
SLTLOZ ¥O

uouleq sinsesn/BANR3[M0




"SBAJE 201AI2S 0] SNV 5,]1 UINJ2) puB AIBSSaoau Uaym J2all ‘anuiuod pinoys

dnouf Buyiom sy} 1euy) slaquiawl e AQ paalbe sem s| Buljeawl jse| ay| Jeak [BIoUBUl JSE| 3U) JO pUR &
2y 12 [19UNOD) AU 13| slaquualu Auew diysiaquisw mau paulelb mou sey dnoioy Buuaalg Ajllenb3 sy
EYCITR
aoUBWIOUSH UO SJUSWWOD 5 R

£102/90/0€
WEIT=)

s|geadde )1
SLTLOZ ¥O

Page 144

dnoio) Bulie)g
Alstaal] 2 Ajenb3 ayy wiody Indino asiuxey

uouleq sinsesn/BANR3[M0




Agenda ltem 11

Executive

Quarter 1 2013/14 Finance and Procurement Report
2 September 2013

Report of Head of Finance and Procurement

PURPOSE OF REPORT

This report summarises the Council’'s Revenue and Capital performance for the first
3 months of the financial year 2013/14 and projections for the full 2013/14 period.
These are measured by the budget monitoring function and reported via the
Performance Management Framework (PMF) informing the 2013/14 budget process
currently underway.

To receive information on treasury management performance and compliance with
treasury management policy during 2013/14 as required by the Treasury
Management Code of Practice.

This report is public

Recommendations

The Executive is recommended:
1) To note the projected revenue & capital position at June 2013.

2) To note the quarter 1 (Q1) performance against the 2013/14 investment strategy
and the financial returns from the two funds.

3) To note the contents and the progress against the Corporate Procurement Action
Plan (detailed in Appendix 1) and the Procurement savings achieved at June
2013 (detailed in Appendix 2).

Executive Summary

Introduction

1.1 In line with good practice budget monitoring is undertaken on a monthly basis
within the Council. The revenue and capital position is reported monthly to the
Joint Management Team and formally to the Executive on a quarterly basis.
This report includes the position at Q1.

1.2 The revenue and capital expenditure in Q1 has been subject to a detailed

review by Officers and reported monthly to management as part of the
corporate dashboard.

Page 145



1.3

1.4

1.5

1.6

1.7

The CIPFA Code of Practice on Treasury Management which this Council
has adopted requires a regular budget monitoring report - this full report will
be taken to Accounts Audit and Risk Committee on the 18" September 2013.

Conclusion

Due to the downturn in the economy, impact of the credit crunch on Council
services and the volatility of the financial markets, the Council is keeping a
watching brief on any challenges that they may need to face which may result
in a redirection of budgets.

The variances on the revenue and capital projections are within the Council’s
stated tolerances of +2% / -5%.

The Council has a General Fund Revenue reserve to meet any budgetary
surplus or deficit.

At the end of Q1, interest received is projected to be on target. It is worth
noting that the revenue budget for 2013/14 has been prepared utilising only
£150,000 of investment income; however, total Investment income within
2013/14 is budgeted as £550,000. The balance of £400,000 will be used to
replenish reserves after transferring interest received in respect of Eco Town
funds to the Eco Town pot.

Background Information

Revenue Projected Outturn 2013/14

2.1 At quarter one, we are projecting a small underspend at the year end of
£89,000.
TOTAL
DIRECTORATE ANNUAL PROJECTED | VARIANCE TO
BUDGET OUTTURN ANNUAL
£000's £000's PROJECTION
Community & Environment 8,015 7,934 (81)
Resources 2,660 2,652 (8)
Development 3,833 3,833 0
Chief Executive 794 794 0
Services Executive Matters (1,567) (1,567) 0
(SURPLUS)/DEFICIT SERVICES 13,735 13,646 (89)
Investment Income above amount built into revenue budget: (400)
Transfer to reserves - MTFS principle of not relying on investment 400
income
Q1 Net Revenue Projected (underspend) 2013/14 (89)

Page 146




2.2

2.3

2.4

Community and Environment shows a projected underspend of £81,000.

This primarily relates to vacant posts within the service. There are two vacant
warden posts in Safer Communities that will not be filled this year. There are
two vacant posts that will be filled during the year within Arts, Tourism and
Health. In the Q2 report we will review vacancies and update interim costs
and overtime to improve our projections.

Resources shows a projected underspend of £8,000.

There are some small variances throughout the service and an increase in
search income due to an increase in the volume of searches requested. The
service will look at income estimation in Q2.

Development is projected to be on budget at Q1

However, due to the current economic climate and the increasing numbers of

voids in Castle Quay, there has been a shortfall in income in quarter 1 which
will result in a year end under recovery. This projection will be included at Q2.

Capital Projection 2013/14

2.5

Total capital spend to June 2013 including commitments, is showing
significant credit value due to a few large accruals from 2012/13 for which the
invoices have not yet been received. These are being chased and expected
to be called upon in Q2/Q3. The estimated variance at year end is £1.7m of
which £1.6m is being requested to be carried forward to 2014/15 after a
thorough review of the capital profiling of projects for quarter 1. The variance
after the re-profiling is £98,000 which is 0.6% of the total budget and within
tolerances.

Full-Year Projected Projection
JUNE 2013 PROJECTIONS Budget  Out-turn Variance
2013/14 2013/14 2013/14
£000's £000's £000's
DIRECTORATES
Community & Environment 4,037 2,349 (1,688)
Resources 418 418 0
Development 13,482 13,482 0
Capital Total 17,937 16,249 (1,688)
Identified slippage 1,590
Variance after slippage 98

Page 147



2.6

The Capital Budget for 2013/14 can be analysed as follows:-

Capital Budget 2013/14 £000’s

Approved Capital programme for 2013/14 7,131

Prior years approved schemes

(primarily Cherwell Community Led Programme) 2,353

Slippage from 2012/13 Programme 8,453
17,937

Treasury Management Performance Q1 2013/14

Upd

2.7

ate on Cherwell’s Treasury Performance

The Treasury Management Strategy for 2013/14, which includes the Annual
Investment Strategy, was approved by the Council on 25 February 2013. It sets
out the Council’s investment priorities as being:

e Security of Capital; Liquidity; and Yield

2.8 The Council will also aim to achieve the optimum return (yield) on investments

2.9

2.10

2.11

commensurate with proper levels of security and liquidity. In the current
economic climate it is considered appropriate to keep investments short term to
cover short term cash flow needs but also to seek out value available in
significantly higher rates in periods up to 12 months with highly credit rated
financial institutions, using Sector's suggested -creditworthiness approach,
including sovereign credit rating and Credit Default Swap (CDS) overlay
information provided by Sector: this applies in particular to nationalised and semi
nationalised UK banks.

During the quarter ended 30th June, Sector highlight the following:

¢ Indicators suggested that the economy accelerated;

e Stronger household spending, both on and off the high street;

¢ Inflation remained stubbornly above the Monetary Policy Committee
(MPC)’'s 2% target;

e The MPC remained in a state of limbo ahead of Mark Carney’s arrival

e 10-year gilt yields rose above 2.5% and the FTSE 100 fell below
6,100;

e The Federal Reserve discussed tapering the pace of asset purchases
under Quantitative Easing 3 (QE3).

Investment rates available in the market have continued at historically low
levels. The average level of funds available for investment purposes was
£69.5m. These funds were available on a temporary basis, and the level of
funds available was mainly dependent on the timing of precept payments,
receipt of grants and progress on the Capital Programme and ECO Bicester.

As highlighted in the executive summary, it is worth noting that the revenue
budget for 2013/14 has been prepared utilising only £150,000 of investment
income; however, total investment income within 2013/14 is budgeted as
£550,000. The balance of £400,000 will be used to replenish reserves after

Page 148



transferring interest received in respect of Eco Town funds to the Eco Town
pot.

Investment performance for quarter ended 30 June 2013 was:

Amount at Interest Actual Rate of return
Fund 30th June 2013 Budget Interest Variance %
Investec £11,840,069 £14,375 (£9,194) (£23,569) (0.8%)
In House £57,735,505 £123,258 £178,969 £55,711 1.24%
Total £69,575,574 £137,633 £169,775 £32,142 0.98%
2.12 At this point in the year we are currently projecting to be on target. The

213

variance shown above has arisen through the timing of interest received.
Although there is currently a negative balance against budget on the funds
managed by Investec, this has arisen through the global drop in government
bond prices in anticipation of an eventual rise in official interest rates.

UK government bonds were not immune to this and unfortunately the price at
30th June 2013 had fallen from the initial average purchase price; therefore,
showing an unrealised loss at quarter end. Given that since this quarter end
position the new governor of the Bank of England has communicated to the
markets that UK rates are on hold for longer there is an expectation that gilt
process will rise again accordingly. We are therefore confident that the current
negative balance will reverse itself in quarter 2. By the 31% July 2013 the
position had already moved positively by £16,000.

Icelandic Investments

2.14

2.15

There is currently no further update in respect of funds remaining within
Iceland. As reported previously, out of the £6.5m original capital investment
£5.7m has been returned to the Council. The remaining capital balance of
£729,000 along with associated interest relating to the investment is still held
within Iceland and is accruing interest on an annual basis.

We continue to work with the LGA and Bevan Brittan on the potential for
transfer to the UK.

Procurement Action Plan and Record of Savings 2013/14

2.16

217

2.18

Progress against the Council’'s procurement action plan is detailed under
Appendix 1 with a record of savings achieved to June 2013 detailed under
Appendix 2.

The team have delivered cashable savings to date of £38,649 against an
annual target of £75,000. Non-cashable savings of £24,568 have also been
achieved.

There are a number of capital projects under way, including the bringing
together of two construction projects in Bicester: the Community Building and
the South West Bicester Sports Village Pavilion. Under a single tender
exercise, we will drive out savings and provide opportunities for the local
supply chain. The team are also working on tenders via regional and national
frameworks for the supply of electricity and liquid fuels along with reviewing

Page 149




options for single solutions across both Councils for financial management
and hosted payment systems.

2.19  Work with Stratford-on-Avon is underway with tender exercises in progress for
cash collection and external printing and specifications are currently being
drawn up for building cleaning and bailiff services.

Key Issues for Consideration/Reasons for Decision and Options

3.1 This report illustrates the Council's performance against the 2013/14
Financial Targets for Revenue, Capital, Treasury and Procurement
Monitoring.

The following options have been identified. The approach in the recommendations is
believed to be the best way forward

Option One To review current performance levels and considers any actions
arising.
Option Two To approve or reject the recommendations above or request that

Officers provide additional information.

Consultations

The revenue and capital position has been subject to regular review by the Corporate
Management Team.

The investment and procurement strategies have been subject to regular review with
Members and the Corporate Management Team.

Implications

Financial: Financial Effects — The financial effects are as outlined in the report.

Efficiency Savings — There are no efficiency savings arising directly
from this report however the budget 2013/14 was based on a
number of efficiencies. In addition we made a public promise of
£500k savings which are being actively pursued as part of the
2013/14 budget setting process.

Comments checked by Nicola Jackson, Corporate Finance
Manager 01295 221731.

Legal: There are no legal implications. Presentation of this report is in line
with the CIPFA Code of Practice.

Comments checked by Kevin Lane, Head of Law and Governance
0300 0030 107.

Risk The position to date highlights the relevance of maintaining a
Management: minimum level of reserves and budget contingency to absorb the
financial impact of changes during the year.

Page 150



Comments checked by Claire Taylor, Performance Manager 01295
221563.

Wards Affected

All

Corporate Plan Themes

An Accessible and Value for Money Council

Executive Portfolio

Councillor Ken Atack
Lead Member for Financial Management

Document Information

Appendix No Title

Appendix 1 Record of progress Against Procurement action Plan 2013/14
Appendix 2 Procurement Savings Achieved April to June 2013
Background Papers

None

Report Author Karen Curtin, Head of Finance & Procurement

Nicola Jackson, Corporate Finance Manger
Viv Hichens, Corporate Procurement Manager

Contact 01295 221551
Information karen.curtin@cherwellandsouthnorthants.gov.uk

Page 151




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 152



£G| abed

Joint Procurement Action Plan 2013/14
Q1 Update — Appendix 1

8.1 Embedding Good Governance and Best Practice

Action

Status

Narrative

¢ Regular engagement with officers at Directorate Management Team,
Service Management Team, operational team levels:

o}

O

Procurement Manager and Senior Procurement Officers to have
regular slot across three tiers of meetings;

Each directorate to have a senior member of the team assigned:

— Resources — Corporate Procurement Manager

— Community and Environment — Senior Procurement Officer (SNC)
— Development — Senior Procurement Officer (CDC)

e Regular updates and reminders via:

o Intranet — ‘Did you know?’ sections, etc
o In Brief — need to know information
o Team briefings

e Use of divisional coordinators as a corporate means of enabling a two-
way communication between procurement and the service areas

o Quarterly briefing to Divisional Coordinators
o Ad hoc issue raising by Divisional Coordinators and feeding of
information from Procurement.

Onward going

Onward going

Onward going

Slots being booked for quarterly attendance.

Greater focus on Officers being included on key
working groups such as Financial Management
System Working Group, SNC Waste Project
Board, SNC Organisational Change and
Relocation Working Group, CDC Accommodation
Board and SW Bicester Sports Village Board

Intranet and In Brief being used for updates on
Contract Procedure Rules and who to contact for
information.

Effective consultation with service support staff
over mobile phone review contributing towards
£7k of savings for SNC and £9k for CDC.

Divisional Coordinators at SNC being consulted
over postal review with proposed change in
premium and second class services.

Page 1 of 6




G| ebed

Joint Procurement Action Plan 2013/14

8.2 Value for Money and Transparency

Action

Status

Narrative

¢ Deliver significant cost and efficiency savings; Cherwell District Council -

£75,000 target and South Northamptonshire £50,000 target.

o Meet 50% of the departmental salary cost (£100k — i.e. £50k SNC &
£50k CDC) via delivery of capital projects and work for other public

sector partners.

e Monitor off contract and expenditure approved without an order:

o Promoting benefits of correct purchasing sequence;

o Challenging habitual offenders by escalating within Finance.

e Ensure clear visibility and procedures for all procurement exercises with

data published on corporate websites.

Q1 target exceeded

Final figures to be
agreed

Onward going

Onward going

SNC - £26,796 - i.e 54% at end of first quarter
CDC - £38,649 - i.e. 51% at end of first quarter

CDC - £20,000 identified (construction projects
for Bicester Community Building and SW
Bicester Sports Village)

SNC - seeking £25,000 for Moat Lane.

SNC monitored via processing of POs — only 2%
expenditure without POs & all off contract
expenditure challenged at point of issue. CDC
monitored via spend analysis and implementation
of no PO no payment policy. Off contract spend
below 5%. Spend without POs currently running
at 53% in Q1

Opportunities advertised via Source
Northamptonshire, websites and South East
Business Portal.

Page 2 of 6




GG| abed

Joint Procurement Action Plan 2013/14

8.3 Local Business and SME Engagement

Action

Status

Narrative

¢ Allocate on the forward plan which projects will involve a market
engagement exercise with a focus on SMEs.

o Ensure corporate websites make it easier for local businesses to trade
with us:
o Develop use of engagement forums for all relevant projects
o Seek and record feedback from local businesses

e Provide links to both corporate websites on FSB, Chambers of
Commerce and other local business link websites;

e Attend appropriate breakfast and other meetings.
e Participate in business engagement exercises undertaken by the

Economic Development teams at both councils.

e Track expenditures with local businesses and SME’s.

Onward going

Onward going

Onward going

Onward going

Onward going

Put back to 2014

Planning bidder engagement events for:

e AV fit out for Moat Lane and Bodicote House
e FM services for Pioneer Square, Bicester

e Supply of vehicle spare parts.

Updates made to ‘Selling to the Council’ pages
with links to sourcing opportunities across the
region — Source Northamptonshire and South
East Business Portal.

Following up with latest forward plan.

Looking at dates for September.
Initial discussions with Adrian Colwell to be
followed up on.

To be included in upgrade of Financial
Management System.

Page 3 of 6




9G| abed

Joint Procurement Action Plan 2013/14

8.4 Collaboration

Action

Status

Narrative

e Provide a clear forward plan for working between SNC and CDC
o Monitor outcomes — not just in terms of savings
o Undertake lessons learnt exercise for procurement and service
areas after each project

e Provide a clear five-year work plan with Stratford
o Assign officers for each project in 2013/14
o Monitor outcomes — not just in terms of savings
o Undertake lessons learnt exercise for procurement and service
areas after each project

¢ Review opportunities and evidence follow up with:

o Strategic Procurement Partnership for Oxfordshire

o Northamptonshire Procurement Forum

o East Midlands Cities and Districts Procurement Forum
(Northamptonshire, Nottinghamshire, Derbyshire, Lincolnshire,
Cambridgeshire)

o Milton Keynes, Oxfordshire and Buckinghamshire Procurement
Partnership

e Review opportunities with Warwickshire and Buckinghamshire
authorities

Onward going

Onward going

Onward going

Onward going

Forward plan for 2013/14 in place. Lessons
learnt exercises undertaken for mobiles
(responsibility of monitoring passed to budget
holders) and waste project (seeking discounts for
onward going supply of wheelie bins and boxes).

Plan for 2013/14 agreed for:
e Building cleaning

Cash collection

Debt recovery

Printing

Agency staff

Looking to undertake joint contract management
project with SPPO.

Seeking e-tendering opportunities and lessons
learnt from hybrid postal services with East
Midlands Cities and Districts Procurement
Forum.

To progress Q3.

Page 4 of 6




/S| abed

Joint Procurement Action Plan 2013/14

8.5 Selling Services

Action

Status

Narrative

o Identify:
o Contracts to be sold
o Approaches to be sold
o ldeas to be sold

Onward going

Internal Audit contract has been reviewed by
NBC and Northamptonshire Police — still to
receive confirmation.

e Create action plan with clear objectives Q3 Looking to identify interested parties for Internal
Audit, Dry Recycling, Council Tax Single Person
Discount Review contracts and public notice cost
reductions.
8.6 Transformation
Action Status Narrative
o Assess level of procurement support required for the following Onward going e Moat Lane Relocation — tbc
programmes: o Silverstone — nil
o Moat Lane Relocation e Brackley Swimming project — tbc
o Silverstone e Build! Programme (Affordable Housing
o Brackley Swimming project across Cherwell) — 30 days
o Build! Programme (Affordable Housing across Cherwell) e Bicester Community Building — 45 days
o Bicester Civic Building _ e Canalside and Spiceball Regeneration — 14
o Canalside and Spiceball Regeneration days
o South West Bicester Sports Village o

o Postal Services Review
e Agree payment methodology with service areas where appropriate
e Report back on outcomes and successes

South West Bicester Sports Village — 45 days
Postal Services Review — 10 days

Page 5 of 6




8G| ebed

Joint Procurement Action Plan 2013/14

8.7 Contract Management

Action

Status

Narrative

e Convene a contract management steering group

e Agree objectives along lines of:

Clear contract management methodologies

Examples of best practice

Reference guide of ‘do’s’ and ‘don’ts’

Review adoption of hosted corporate contract management
system

o O O O

To be put back to
Q3

To be put back to
Q4

Initial discussion over sharing resources with
Oxford City and the Strategic Procurement
Partnership for Oxfordshire.

8.8Sustainability

Action

Status

Narrative

e Determine which projects for the year provide the best focus for
sustainability considerations

Onward going

Already considered:

e SNC waste project — particularly vehicle
purchasing

¢ MFDs at SNC — reduction in colour printing

e CDC - scrap metal processing from
abandoned vehicles

e Low energy hand dryers — implemented by
FM Officer at SNC and green funding grant
being sought at CDC.

To be considered:

Bicester construction projects

Electricity re-tender

Building cleaning services

Building materials

Biodiesel and gas oil supply

Cash collection services

Seeking input from Energy Officer at CDC with
targets and recording data.

Page 6 of 6




Appendix 2

Cashable Non-
Service Area Contract Description| with budget

) cashable
reduction

Various P Cards £24 568
Finance & Procurement Internal Audit £6,930
Urban & Rural Pay & Display Parking Tickets £2,680
Environmental Services Scrap Metal Processing from Abandoned Vehicles and Other Sources £4,240
ICT Mobiles £9,000
Regeneration & Estates Mobile Security, Alarm Response & Keyholding £10,000
{Democratic Services Election printing £5,524
@: ICT Multi Functional Devices (MFD) A4 Paper £275

L Total YTD £38,649 £24,568

aC

Page 1 of 1




This page is intentionally left blank

Page 160



	Agenda
	5 Minutes
	6 High Speed 2 (HS2) Update
	Appendix A - HS2 Formal Response to ES Consultation (2 Sept 2013)

	7 District Wide Programme of Article 4 Directions to Protect Heritage Interest
	8 Funding Provision for Enforcement Action in Connection with Work-in-default and with Bringing Empty Homes Back into Use
	9 South West Bicester Sports Village Progress Update
	10 Performance Management Framework 2013/14 First Quarter Performance Report
	Appendix A
	Appendix B
	Appendix C
	Appendix D

	11 Quarter 1 2013/14 Finance and Procurement Report
	Appendix 1 - Procurement Action Plan 2013 to 2014 - Q1 Update
	Appendix 2 - Procurement Savings Achieved for Q1 of 2013 to 2014


